
MARSHALL CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 

JANUARY 16, 2019 



Marshall Creek Community Development District 
INFRAMARK, INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
210 North University Drive • Suite 702 • Coral Springs, Florida 33071 

Phone: (954) 603-0033 • Fax: (954) 345-1292 

January 9, 2019 

Board of Supervisors  
Marshall Creek 
Community Development District 

Dear Board Members:  

A meeting of the Audit Committee, to be immediately followed by the regular meeting of the Board 
of Supervisors of the Marshall Creek Community Development District will be held Wednesday, 
January 16, 2019 beginning at 4:00 p.m. at the Marshall Creek Amenity Center, 625 Palencia 
Club Drive, St. Augustine, Florida.  Following is the advance agenda for the meeting:  

Audit Committee Meeting: 

1. Roll Call  
2. Ranking of Audit Firm Proposals 
3. Adjournment  

Regular Meeting  

1. Roll Call 
2. Audience Comments 
3. Approval of the Minutes of the December 19, 2018 Audit Committee and Regular 

Meeting 
A. Discussion of Open Items

4. Auditor Selection  
A. Consideration of the Audit Committee Ranking Recommendations  
B. Authorization to Enter into a Three Year Agreement with the Selected Audit Firm  

5. Engineer’s Report 
A. Ratification of Requisitions #80 and #81 
B. Consideration of Pavement Rehabilitation Bids  

6. General Manager’s Operations Report  
A. SJCSO Off-Duty Roving Patrol Violation Report  
B. Palencia Security Report  
C. Palencia Traffic Patterns  
D. Radar Data Report  
E. ADA Compliance Update – Neighborhood Publications 
F.  FEMA Update  

7. District Manager’s Report  
8. Attorney’s Report



Marshall Creek CDD 
January 9, 2019 
Page 2 

9. Supervisors’ Requests 
A. Suggested Policy for Supervisor Authority (Hoffman)  
B. Guidelines for Communications (Entman)  

10. Acceptance of the December 2018 Financial Reports and Approval of December 
2018 Check Register and Invoices

 11. Adjournment

Prior to the regular meeting, the Audit Committee will meet to rank the audit firm proposals and to 
prepare a recommendation to the Board.  The materials received in response to the District’s request 
for proposals for audit services, are enclosed separately for your review.  A form to be used in the 
evaluation based on the Committee’s previously established criteria will be provided under separate 
cover.  

Enclosed for your review is a copy of the draft minutes of the December 19, 2018 audit committee 
and regular meetings and the December 2018 financials, check register and invoices.   

Under the Engineer’s Report for your review and ratification are Requisitions #80 and #81.  Also 
enclosed are the pavement rehabilitation bids for your review and consideration.   

The General Manager’s Operations Report is enclosed for your review.  Also enclosed are reports on 
the SJCSO Off-Duty Roving Patrol Violation Report Palencia security, radar data, and traffic 
patterns.   

Enclosed for your review under Supervisors’ Requests is a suggested policy for Supervisor authority 
from Supervisor Hoffman and guidelines for communication put forth by Supervisor Entman at your 
last meeting.  

The balance of the agenda is routine in nature.  I look forward to seeing you at the meeting.  In the 
meantime, if you have any questions, please contact me at (904) 940-6044, extension 40592. 

Sincerely,  

Janice Eggleton Davis 
Janice Eggleton Davis/ms 
District Manager  

Cc: Jonathan Johnson  Katie Buchanan Jennifer Gillis 
Gabriel McKee  City of St. Augustine  Warren Bloom 
Ryan Stilwell, P.E. Katie Hollis  Gordon Mobley  
Brett Sealy Michelle Rigoni



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Committee 
Meeting 

  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Second Order of Business 
  



    

      
  

  
 
 

    
    

 
 

Proposal to Provide 
Financial Auditing Services  
 

 
MARSHALL CREEK  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

 
Proposal Due: January 07, 2019 - 11:00AM 
 
 

 
Submitted to: 
Marshall Creek Community Development District 
210 N University, Suite 702 
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
Submitted by: 
Antonio J. Grau, Partner 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Road, Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
Tel  (561) 994-9299 / (800) 229-4728 
Fax  (561) 994-5823 
tony@graucpa.com / www.graucpa.com 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

mailto:tony@graucpa.com
http://www.graucpa.com/


    

Table of Contents  
   PAGE  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY / TRANSMITTAL LETTER ..................................................... 1 
FIRM QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE ..................................................................... 3 
STAFF QUALIFICATIONS ............................................................................................ 21 
REFERENCES .............................................................................................................. 28 
COST OF SERVICES ................................................................................................... 30 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ............................................................................... 32 
   

   
 
 



 

    

  951 Yamato Road, Suite 280 
      Boca Raton, Florida   33431 

      (561) 994-9299 ▪ (800) 299-4728 
       Fax (561) 994-5823 

 
 

 January 07, 2019 
 
Marshall Creek Community Development District 
210 N University, Suite 702 
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
Re: Request for Proposal for Professional Auditing Services for the fiscal years ended 

September 30, 2018 with an option for two (2) additional annual renewals. 
 
Grau & Associates (Grau) is pleased to respond to Marshall Creek Community Development 
District’s (the “District”) Request for Proposal (RFP), and look forward to working with you on your 
audit. We are a team of knowledgeable professionals with extensive experience in audits for 
organizations just like yours, and we know how to work with you to complete an effective and 
efficient audit.  

 
 Since our focus is on government, we fully understand the professional services and work 

products required to meet your RFP requirements. Our team provided services in excess of 
19,000 hours for our public sector clients last year, and we currently audit over 300 governmental 
entities. Our practice is unique as 98% of work is either audit or work related to government and 
non-profit entities.  

 
 In addition to our firm’s focus, Grau & Associates is a great fit for your audit for a variety of 

other reasons, including: 
 

• Experience  
Grau is proud of the fact that the personnel we assign to your audit are some of the most 
experienced auditors in the field. Unlike many other firms, our auditors work almost 
exclusively with governmental entities, which mean they are more knowledgeable and 
efficient on audits like yours. Our engagement partners have decades of experience and 
take a hands-on approach to our assignments, which all ensures a smoother process for 
you. Also, due to Grau’s very low turnover rate for our industry, you won’t have to worry 
about retraining your auditors from year to year.  
 

• Service 
Our clients are pleased with the level of personalized service they receive from our talented 
professionals. Because of our extensive experience, we are adept at making the transition 
to a new firm as smooth as possible. We work with you to resolve any issues and keep in 
regular contact so there are no surprises when the final report delivers. In fact, your 
engagement team will report any potential audit adjustments to you on a regular basis so 
you will have adequate time to research and respond. Additionally, we have a disaster 
recovery plan that includes daily data back-ups and offsite file storage, so in the case of an 
emergency, your records would be safe.  



 

2 
 

Marshall Creek Community Development District 
January 07, 2019 

 
• Responsiveness 

We pride ourselves on our high level of responsiveness. We answer emails and telephone 
calls within 24 hours, and usually right away. We are always accessible to clients during 
business hours, and make every effort to answer any questions as they arise. Additionally, 
we don’t just complete your audit and disappear. We understand the “big picture” and think 
beyond the traditional auditor’s perspective. We remain in touch for the entire year, 
suggesting ways you can improve your District’s performance, procedures and controls. 
We will update, advise and educate you on new or revised reporting requirements so you 
are sure to always remain compliant.  
 

• Reputation 
Our reputation in our field is impeccable. We have never been involved in any litigation, 
proceeding or received any disciplinary action. Additionally, we have never been 
charged with, or convicted of, a public entity crime of any sort. We have the 
professional staff available to perform the engagement and resources required to complete 
the work. We are financially stable and have never been involved in any bankruptcy 
proceedings. 
 

• Standards 
Grau & Associates is a professional association / licensed certified public accounting firm 
serving clients through the state of Florida. We are a member of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (FICPA). Additionally, individuals are members of both the (GFOA) and 
(FGFOA). Grau is also a member of the Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC). Our 
audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Rules 
of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and any other applicable federal, state and 
local regulations. We will deliver our reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
 This proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer for 90 days. We certify this proposal is made without 

previous understanding, agreement or connection either with any previous firms or corporations 
offering a proposal for the same items. We also certify our proposal is in all respects fair, without 
outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action, and was prepared in good faith. Only 
the person(s), company or parties interested in the project as principals are named in the proposal. 
Grau has no existing or potential conflicts, and anticipates no conflicts during the engagement. Our 
Federal I.D. number is 20-2067322. 

 
 We would be happy to answer any questions or provide additional information as needed. Please 

do not hesitate to call or email either of our Partners, Antonio J. Grau, CPA (tgrau@graucpa.com) 
or Racquel McIntosh, CPA (rmcintosh@graucpa.com) at 561.994.9299. We thank you for 
considering our firm’s qualifications and experience, and look forward to serving you. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
Grau & Associates 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Antonio J. Grau  

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com
mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

3 
 

 

 

 

Firm Qualifications & 
Experience 

 
 



 

4 
 

Grau & Associates is a medium-sized accounting firm providing comprehensive financial and compliance 
auditing, attestation and accounting, and other management consulting services and we are properly 
registered and licensed by the State of Florida. The Partners, Consultant and Managers of Grau are members 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.  
 
Grau & Associates is a properly registered/licensed State of Florida professional corporation and all assigned 
supervisory professional staff are properly registered/licensed to practice in the State of Florida.  

 
Grau’s Focus and Experience 
 

• We are dedicated to serving Special Districts. 
• We currently audit over 300 Special Districts. 
• Last year, Grau performed in excess of 19,000 hours of services for our Public Sector Clients under 

Governmental Auditing Standards. 
• Grau currently only provides audit and attestation services principally for governmental and non-

profit entities under government auditing standards. The firm and staff are 100% dedicated to the audit 
practice.  

 
During Grau’s history we have consistently focused on providing service to the public sector. By focusing our 
resources on this industry, we provide the highest level of services to our Public Sector Clients. 

 
Grau & Associates has a total of 17 employees, 15 professional staff, including 2 Partners and 13 
professionals who specialize in providing auditing, accounting, consulting, and monitoring services to the 
Public Sector and 2 administrative professionals. The number of professional staff by employee classification 
is as follows: 
 

*ALL FULL TIME EMPLOYEES 
 
Compliance with Government Education Requirements 
 
In order to maintain our high level of technical competence, we provide continuing professional education 
programs for all partners and professional staff members, which exceed national and state standards.  All of 
the audit professionals of Grau & Associates exceed the education requirements as set forth in 
Government Auditing Standards, published by the Comptroller General of the United States, and our 
continuing professional education programs ensure that all audit professionals meet the requirements to 
participate in audits of government agencies. 
 

Team Member Total Professional Staff Total CPAs Total Government  
Audit Staff 

Partners * 2 2 2 

Managers * 3 3 3 

Advisory Consultant 1 1 1 

Supervisor / Seniors * 4 2 4 

Staff Accountants * 5 1 5 

                      Total 15 9 15 



 

5 
 

Professional Staff Training 
 
Partners - All of our Partners are CPA’s and have diversified public accounting experience.  They are 
responsible for overall engagement performance, policy, direction and quality control and have far exceeded 
minimum CPE requirements. 
 
Managers - All of our Audit Managers are CPA’s who have demonstrated the ability to plan audit 
engagements, supervise personnel and maintain frequent contact with clients.  They continually upgrade their 
skills through the firm’s continuing education programs and courses sponsored by the AICPA, FICPA and 
GFOA. They have far exceeded minimum CPE Requirements. 
 
Seniors - All of our Seniors have a minimum of 3 years of diversified public accounting experience. They 
perform audits, evaluate staff, review findings and prepare audit reports.  They possess the potential for 
upward mobility and have far exceeded minimum CPE requirements. 

 
Memberships 
 
All of the firm’s CPA’s are properly licensed as CPA’s and members in good standing of both the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  In addition, 
certain firm professionals are members or have been members of the following professional groups: 
 

• FICPA Committee on State and Local Government 
• Florida Government Finance Officers Association (FGOA) 
• Special Review Committee of the Government Finance Officers Association 
• Florida Institute of CPA Non-Profit Conference Committee 
• Florida Association of Special Districts (FASD) 
• FGFOA Annual Conference Program Committee  
• FASD Finance Committee 
• FICPA Young CPAs Committee 
• FICPA Accounting Careers Committee 

 
In addition, we have an ongoing recruitment program that seeks only those accountants with a proven record 
of academic success. When we recruit at the senior and manager level, we select CPA’s with proven 
governmental accounting and auditing experience.  

 
Results of State and Federal Reviews 
 
During the last three (3) years, all state and federal reviews of the firm’s reports and working papers have 
been accepted without change or revision to issued reports. 
 
Disciplinary Action 
 

 During the last three (3) years, Grau & Associates has not been involved in any litigation, proceeding or 
disciplinary action from any state or federal regulatory body or professional organizations. 

 
Litigation Status 
 

 There is no current litigation or any pending. Additionally, during the last three (3) years, Grau & Associates 
has not been involved in any litigation or proceeding by a court or administrative agency has ruled against 
the firm in any manner related to its professional activities. 
  



 

6 
 

Quality Control and Confidentiality 
 
Grau participates in an external quality review program requiring an on-site independent examination of our 
auditing practice. Grau has consistently received an unqualified opinion on the quality of our audit practice. 
During our firm’s last external quality control review, six audits were reviewed, including five government 
audits. A copy of the report on the firm’s most recent quality review can be found below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In addition to scheduled Peer Reviews, our firm continually monitors performance to ensure the highest 
quality of services. Under the supervision of the Audit Partner, an Audit Manager is responsible for 
monitoring quality control of all appropriate engagements 
 
  



 

7 
 

Partial List of Clients 
 

The following is a partial list of clients served and related experience: 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Aberdeen Community Development District      9/30 

Allen Plantation Community Development District      9/30 

Amelia Concourse Community Development District     9/30 

Amelia National Community Development District     9/30 

Amelia Walk Community Development District     9/30 

Anthem Park Community Development District     9/30 

Antigua at St. Augustine Community District     9/30 

Aqua One Community Development District     9/30 

Arbor Green Community Development District     9/30 

Arbor Green Community Development District     9/30 

Arlington Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Armstrong Community Development District     9/30 

Artisan Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Asturia Community Development District     9/30 

Ave Maria Stewardship Community Development District     9/30 

Aventura Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Bahia Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Ballantrae Community Development District     9/30 

Ballantrae Hillsborough Community Development District     9/30 

Bartram Park Community Development District     9/30 

Bartram Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Bay Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bay Laurel Community Development District    9/30 

Bay Tree Community Development District     9/30 

Bayside Improvement Development District     9/30 

Baywinds Community Development District     9/30 

Beach Community Development District     9/30 

Beacon Tradeport Community Development District      9/30 

Beeline Community Development District     9/30 

Bella Verda East Community Development District     9/30 

Bella Verda Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Bella Vida Community Development District     9/30 

Bellagio Community Development District     9/30 

Belmont Community Development District     9/30 

Belmont Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Bexley Community Development District     9/30 

Blackburn Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bluewaters Community Development District     9/30 



 

8 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Bobcat Trail Community Developement District     9/30 

Boggy Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bonita Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Bonita Village Community Development District     9/30 

Bonnett Creek Resort Community Development District     9/30 

Bonterra Community Development District     9/30 

Brandy Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bridgewater Community Development District     9/30 

Bridgewater of Wesley Chapel Community Development District     9/30 

Briger Community Development District     9/30 

Brighton Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Brooks of Bonita Springs I Community Development District     9/30 

Brooks of Bonita Springs II Community Development District     9/30 

Bull Frog Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Candler Hills East Community Development District     9/30 

Capital Region Community Development District     9/30 

Captain's Key Dependent District     9/30 

Caribe Palm Community Development District     9/30 

Carlton Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Cascades at Groveland Community Development District     9/30 

Catalina at Winkler Preserve Community Development District     9/30 

CBL/BM Port Orange West Community Development District     9/30 

Cedar Pointe Community Development District     9/30 

Celebration Point Community Development District     9/30 

Central Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Century Gardens Community Development District     9/30 

Century Gardens at Tamiami Community Development District     9/30 

Century Gardens Village Community Development District     9/30 

Century Parc Community Development District     9/30 

CFM (Coolidge Fort Myers) Community Development District     9/30 

Chapel Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Champions Gate Community Development District     9/30 

Champion’s Reserve Community Development District     9/30 

Channing Park Community Development District     9/30 

City Center Community Development District     9/30 

City Place Community Development District     9/30 

Clearwater Cay Community Development District     9/30 

Coastal Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Cocot Palms Community Development District     9/30 

Coconut Cay Community Development District     9/30 

Concorde Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Concorde Station Community Development District     9/30 



 

9 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Connerton West Community Development District     9/30 

Copper Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Copper Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Copperstone Community Development District     9/30 

Coral Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Coral Keys Homes Community Development District     9/30 

Coral Town Park Community Development District     9/30 

Cordoba Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Corkscrew Farms Community Development District     9/30 

Coronado Community Development District     9/30 

Cory Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Country Club of Mount Dora Community Development District     9/30 

Country Greens Community Development District     9/30 

Country Walk Community Development District     9/30 

Covington Park Community Development District     9/30 

Creekside Community Development District     9/30 

Crestview II Community Development District     9/30 

Crestview West Community Development District     9/30 

Cross Country Home Services Community Development District     9/30 

Cross Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Cutler Cay Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Cove Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Grove Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Shadows Community Development District     9/30 

Deer Island Community Development District     9/30 

Deer Run Community Development District     9/30 

Diamond Hill Community Development District     9/30 

Double Branch Community Development District     9/30 

Dove Pond Community Development District     9/30 

Downtown Doral Community Development District    9/30 

Dunes Community Development District    9/30 

Dupree Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Eagle Point Community Development District     9/30 

East Bonita Bridge Road Community Development District     9/30 

East Park Community Development District     9/30 

Easton Park Community Development District     9/30 

Enclave at Black Point Marina Community Development District     9/30 

Encore Community Development District     9/30 

Enterprise Community Development District    9/30 

Epperson Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Estancia at Wiregrass Community Development District     9/30 



 

10 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Estates at Cherry Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Estuary Community Development District     9/30 

Falcon Trace Community Development District     9/30 

Fallschase Community Development District     9/30 

Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk I Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk II Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk III Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk IV Community Development District     9/30 

Fleming Island Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Florida Green Finance Authority     9/30 

Founder’s Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Fountainbleau Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Forest Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Gardens at Millenia Community Development District     9/30 

Glen St. Johns Community Development District     9/30 

Gramercy Farms Community Development District     9/30 

Grand Bay at Doral Community Development District     9/30 

Grand Hampton Community Development District     9/30 

Grand Haven Community Development District     9/30 

Greater Lakes/Sawgrass Community Development District     9/30 

Green Corridor PACE District     9/30 

Greyhawk Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Groves Community Development District     9/30 

Habitat Community Development District     9/30 

Hacienda Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Hamal Community Development District     9/30 

Hammocks Community Development District     9/30 

Harbor Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Harbour Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Harbourage at Braden River Community Development District     9/30 

Harmony Community Development District     9/30 

Harrison Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Hawk's Point Community Development District     9/30 

Hemmingway Point Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Greens Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbor Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbor at Braden River Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbour Market Place Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbour South Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Isles at Viera Community Development District     9/30 



 

11 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Heritage Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Oak Park Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Park Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Heron Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Hickory Hammock Community Development District     9/30 

High Ridge/Quantum Community Development District     9/30 

Highlands Community Development District     9/30 

Hollywood Beach Community Development District     9/30 

Homestead 50 Community Development District     9/30 

Hypoluxo-Haverhill Community Development District     9/30 

Independence Park Community Development District     9/30 

Indigo Community Development District     9/30 

Indigo East Community Development District      9/30 

Interlaken Community Development District      9/30 

Islands at Doral III Community Development District     9/30 

Islands at Doral (NE) Community Development District     9/30 

Islands at Doral (SW) Community Development District     9/30 

Islands at Doral Townhomes Community Development District     9/30 

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District     9/30 

Journey's End Community Development District     9/30 

Jurlington Creek Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

K-Bar Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Kendall Breeze Community Development District     9/30 

Kendall Breeze West Community Development District     9/30 

Key Marco Community Development District     9/30 

Keys Cove Community Development District     9/30 

Keys Cove II Community Development District     9/30 

La Collina Community Development District     9/30 

Laguna Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Laguna Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Ashton Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Ashton II Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Francis Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Padgett Estates Independent District     9/30 

Lake Powell Residential Golf Community Development District     9/30 

Lakes by the Bay South Community Development District     9/30 

Lakeshore Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Lakeside Community Development District     9/30 

Lakeside Landings Community Development District     9/30 



 

12 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Lakeside Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 1 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 2 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 3 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 4 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 5 Community Development District     9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 6 Community Development District     9/30 

Legacy Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Legends Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Lexington Community Development District     9/30 

Live Oak Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Live Oak No. 1 Community Development District     9/30 

Long Lake Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Longleaf Community Development District     9/30 

Lucaya Community Development District     9/30 

Madeira Community Development District     9/30 

Magnolia Park Community Development District     9/30 

Magnolia West Community Development District     9/30 

Main Street Community Development District     9/30 

Mainstreet Community Development District     9/30 

Majorca Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Maple Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Marsh Harbour Community Development District     9/30 

Marshall Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Mayfair Community Development District     9/30 

Meadow Pines Community Development District     9/30 

Meadow Point I Community Development District     9/30 

Meadow Point III Community Development District      9/30 

Meadow Point IV Community Development District      9/30 

Meadow Woods Community Development District     9/30 

Mediterra North Community Development District     9/30 

Mediterra South Community Development District     9/30 

Mediterranea Community Development District     9/30 

Middle Village Community Development District     9/30 

Mira Lago West Community Development District     9/30 

Mirada Community Development District     9/30 

Miromar Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Montecito Community Development District     9/30 

Monterey/Congress Community Development District     9/30 

Myakka Community Development District     9/30 

Moody River Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Myakka Ranch Community Development District     9/30 



 

13 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Myrtle Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Naples Heritage Community Development District     9/30 

Narcoossee Community Development District     9/30 

Newport Tampa Bay Community Development District    9/30 

North Dade Community Development District     9/30 

Northern Riverwalk Community Development District     9/30 

Northwood Community Development District     9/30 

Oak Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Oakridge Community Development District     9/30 

Oaks at Shady Creek, The Community Development District     9/30 

Oakstead Community Development District     9/30 

Old Palm Community Development District     9/30 

Orchid Grove Community Development District     9/30 

Osprey Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

OTC Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Beach Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Coast Park Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Glades Community Development District     9/30 

Palma Sola Trace Community Development District     9/30 

Palms of Terra Ceia Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Pan American West Community Development District     9/30 

Panther Trace I Community Development District     9/30 

Panther Trace II Community Development District      9/30 

Panther Trails Community Development District     9/30 

Parker Road Community Development District     9/30 

Parklands Lee Community Development District     9/30 

Parklands West Community Development District     9/30 

Parkway Center Community Development District     9/30 

Paseo Community Development District     9/30 

PBR Community Development District     9/30 

Pebblewalk Village Community Development District     9/30 

Pelican Marsh Community Development District     9/30 

Pembroke Harbor Community Development District     9/30 

Pentathlon Community Development District     9/30 

Pine Air Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Pine Island Community Development District     9/30 

Pine Island South Community Development District     9/30 

Piney-Z Community Development District     9/30 

Pioneer Community Development District     9/30 

Poinciana Community Development District     9/30 

Poinciana West Community Development District     9/30 



 

14 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Portico Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Cove Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Landings Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Shores Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Vineyards Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Vista Community Development District     9/30 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Principal One Community Development District     9/30 

Quantum Community Development District     9/30 

Quantum Park Overlay Community Development District     9/30 

Quarry Community Development District     9/30 

Randal Park Community Development District     9/30 

Remington Community Development District     9/30 

Renaissance Community Development District     9/30 

Reserve Community Development District     9/30 

Reserve 2 Community Development District     9/30 

Reunion East Community Development District     9/30 

Reunion West Community Development District     9/30 

River Bend Community Development District     9/30 

River Glen Community Development District     9/30 

River Hall Community Development District     9/30 

River Place on the St. Lucie Community Development District     9/30 

River Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Rivercrest Community Development District     9/30 

Rivers Edge Community Development District     9/30 

Sable Palm Community Development District     9/30 

Sail Harbour Community Development District     9/30 

Sampson Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Sandy Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Sausalito Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Seven Oaks I Community Development District     9/30 

Seven Oaks II Community Development District     9/30 

Silver Palms Community Development District     9/30 

Silverado Community Development District     9/30 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Somerset Community Development District     9/30 

Sonoma Bay Community Development District     9/30 

South Bay Community Development District     9/30 

South Fork Community Development District     9/30 

South Fork East Community Development District     9/30 



 

15 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

South Fork III Community Development District     9/30 

South Kendall Community Development District     9/30 

South Shore Corporate Park Industrial Community Development District     9/30 

South-Dade Venture Development District     9/30 

South Village Community Development District     9/30 

Southaven Community Development District     9/30 

Southern Hills Plantation I Community Development District     9/30 

Southern Hills Plantation II Community Development District     9/30 

Southern Hills Plantation III Community Development District     9/30 

Spicewood Community Development District     9/30 

Split Pine Community Development District     9/30 

Springridge Community Development District (formerly Killarney)     9/30 

St. John's Forest Community Development District     9/30 

Sterling Hill Community Development District     9/30 

Stevens Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Stonebrier Community Development District     9/30 

Stonegate Community Development District     9/30 

Stoneybrook at Venice Community Development District    9/30 

Stoneybrook Community Development District    9/30 

Stoneybrook Oaks Community Development District    9/30 

Storey Park Community Development District    9/30 

Summerville Community Development District    9/30 

Summit at Fern Hill Community Development District    9/30 

Sunny Hills Units 12-15 Dependent District     9/30 

SWI Community Development District     9/30 

Talavera Community Development District     9/30 

Talis Park Community Development District     9/30 

Tampa Palms Community Development District     9/30 

Tampa Palms Open Space and Transport Community Development District     9/30 

Tapestry Community Development District     9/30 

Tara Community Development District     9/30 

Terra Bella Community Development District     9/30 

Tesoro Community Development District     9/30 

Thousand Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Tison's Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Tolomato Community Development District     9/30 

Tomoka Community Development District     9/30 

Toscana Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Town Center at Palm Coast Community Development District     9/30 

Tradition Community Development District     9/30 

Trails Community Development District     9/30 

Trails at Monterey Community Development District     9/30 



 

16 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Treaty Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Tree Island Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Treeline Preserve Community Development District     9/30 

Trevesta Community Development District     9/30 

Triple Creek Community Development District     9/30 

TSR Community Development District     9/30 

Turnbull Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Turtle Run Community Development District     9/30 

Tuscany Reserve Community Development District     9/30 

Twelve Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Two Creeks Community Development District     9/30 

University Place Community Development District     9/30 

University Square Community Development District     9/30 

Urban Orlando Community Development District     9/30 

Valencia Acres Community Development District     9/30 

Vasari Community Development District     9/30 

Venetian Community Development District     9/30 

Venetian Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Venetian Parc Community Development District     9/30 

Verandah Community Development District     9/30 

Verandah East Community Development District     9/30 

Verandah West Community Development District     9/30 

Verandahs Community Development District     9/30 

Verano #1 Community Development District     9/30 

Verano Center Community Development District     9/30 

Verona Walk Community Development District     9/30 

Viera East Community Development District     9/30 

Villa Portofino East Community Development District     9/30 

Villa Portofino West Community Development District     9/30 

Villa Vizcaya Community Development District     9/30 

Village Walk of Bonita Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Villages at Bloomingdale Community Development District     9/30 

Village at Gulfstream Park Community Development District     9/30 

Villages of Glen Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Villages of Westport Community Development District     9/30 

Vista Community Development District     9/30 

Vista Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Vizcaya in Kendall Community Development District     9/30 

Walnut Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Waterchase Community Development District     9/30 

Waterford Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Waterford Landing Community Development District     9/30 



 

17 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Watergrass Community Development District     9/30 

Waterlefe Community Development District     9/30 

Water's Edge Community Development District     9/30 

Waterset North Community Development District     9/30 

Waterstone Community Development District     9/30 

Wentworth Estates Community Development District     9/30 

West Lake Community Development District     9/30 

West Villages Independent District     9/30 

Westchase Community Development District     9/30 

Westchester Community Development District     9/30 

Westridge Community Development District     9/30 

Willow Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Winding Cypress Community Development District     9/30 

Windsor at Westside Community Development District     9/30 

Winston Trails East Community Development District     9/30 

Winter Garden Village at Fowler Groves Community Development District     9/30 

Woodlands Community Development District     9/30 

World Commerce Community Development District     9/30 

Wyndam Park Community Development District     9/30 

Wynnfield Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Wynnmere West Community Development District     9/30 

TOTAL 437 3 255   

 
 
  

 

A
tt

e
st

a
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

C
A

FR
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

  Broward County School District (Joint Venture) (Assessment of Maintenance Operations)       N/A 

Broward County School District (Joint Venture, 20%)       6/30 
Florida Community College at Jacksonville (Internal Audit)       6/30 
Florida Transit Association Finance Corporation       6/30 
Highland County School District (Internal Funds Audit)       6/30 
Palm Beach County School District (Assessment of maintenance for Facility and Property 
Management) (Internal Funds Audit)       6/30 

Palm Beach County School District (Joint Venture, 20%)       6/30 
Migrant Health Services of Palm Beach County       N/A 
South Florida Water Management District       9/30 
South Florida Water Management District CERP Program Management Services (Joint 
Venture)       N/A 

State of Florida Department of Management Services (Construction)       N/A 
State of Florida Department of Transportation (Overhead Audits - Various)       N/A 

TOTAL 2 3 8 4 2 1  



 

18 
 

 
 A

tt
e

st
a

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

T
ax

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Aid to Victims of Domestic Abuse, Inc.        6/30 
Alliance for Human Services, Inc.        6/30 
Brevard Workforce Development Board, Inc.        6/30 
Broward County Human Rights Board/Division (Joint Venture, 30%)        N/A 
Broward Education Foundation        6/30 
CareerSource Broward        9/30 
Christian Manor        12/31 
Delray Beach Community Land Trust        9/30 
Family Promise        12/31 
Florida Public Transportation Association, Inc.        9/30 
Florida Transit Association Finance Corporation        9/30 
Hispanic Human Resources Council        9/30 
Mae Volen Senior Center        6/30 
National Board for Registration of Registrars        3/31 
National Cancer Registration Board        6/30 
North Lauderdale Academy High School        6/30 
Northwood Development Corporation        9/30 
Palm Beach Community College Foundation        6/30 
Palm Beach County Workforce Development Board (Joint Venture, 25%)        6/30 
Pasco-Hernando Workforce Board        6/30 
Southwest Florida Workforce Development Board        6/30 
Urban League of Palm Beach County        6/30 

TOTAL 9 13 5 13 9 13 6  
 

 
 
 
 

  Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

u
d

it
 

E
R

IS
A

/
D

O
L 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Campbell Property Management 401(k)    12/31 
City of Cooper City General Employee Retirement Plan    9/30 
City of Lauderhill General Employee Retirement Plan    9/30 
City of Parkland Police Pension Fund    9/30 
City of Sunrise General Employees' Retirement System    9/30 
Cross County Home Services and Affiliates 401(k) Plan    9/30 
Danmar Corporation 401(k) Plan    12/31 
Florida Public Utilities 401(k) and Pension Plans    12/31 
Jacksonville Police and Fire Pension Fund    9/30 
Pinetree Water Control District Defined Contribution Retirement Plan    9/30 
San Carlos Park Fire Protection and Rescue Service District    9/30 
Town of Davie General Employees Retirement Plan    9/30 
Town of Hypoluxo Defined Contribution Retirement Plan    9/30 
Town of Lauderdale By The Sea Volunteer Firefighters Pension Plan    9/30 

TOTAL 14 4 8  



 

19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Belle Fontaine Improvement District       9/30 
 

Boca Raton Airport Authority       9/30 
Central Broward Water Control District       9/30 
Central County Water Control District       9/30 
Citrus County Mosquito Control District       9/30 
Coquina Water Control District       9/30 
East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility      9/30 
Greater Boca Raton Beach and Park District       9/30 
Greater Naples Fire Control and Rescue District       9/30 
Greeneway Improvement District       9/30 
Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District         9/30 
Homestead Educational Facilities Benefits District       9/30 
Horizons Improvement District       9/30 
Indian River Mosquito Control District     9/30 

Indian Trail Improvement District       9/30 
Key Largo Waste Water Treatment District     9/30 
Lake Padgett Estates Independent Special District       9/30 
Lakewood Ranch Inter-District Authority        9/30 
Lost Rabbit Public Improvement District       9/30 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District       9/30 
Myakka City Fire Control District       9/30 
Old Plantation Control District       9/30 
Pal Mar Water Control District       9/30 
Palm Beach Soil and Water Conservation District       9/30 
Pinellas Park Water Management District       9/30 
Pine Tree Water Control District (Broward)       9/30 
Pinetree Water Control District (Wellington)       9/30 
Ranger Drainage District       9/30 
Renaissance Improvement District       9/30 
San Carlos Park Fire Protection and Rescue Service District       9/30 
South Central Regional Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Board      9/30 
South Indian River Water Control District      9/30 
South Trail Fire Protection & Rescue District       9/30 
Spring Lake Improvement District     9/30 

St. Lucie West Services District       9/30 
Sun 'N Lake of Sebring Improvement District      9/30 
Sunshine Water Control District       9/30 
Twelve Oaks Improvement District       9/30 
West Lakeland Water Control District       9/30 
West Villages Independent District       9/30 
TOTAL 38 4 3 26   



 

20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  



 

21 
 

 

 

 

Staff Qualifications,  
Experience & Resumes 



 

22 
 

QUALITY AND EXPERIENCE OF FIRM’S ASSIGNED AUDITING PERSONNEL  
 
You will have two partners available and our consultant for any technical assistance. In addition, an audit 
manager will be available for the engagement and a senior will be assigned to the engagement that will 
perform the majority of fieldwork. Additional staff are available to assist with the engagement should the need 
arise.   

 

Name Years 
performing 
government 

audits 

CPE within last 2 
years 

Professional 
Memberships 

ANTONIO J. GRAU, CPA 
(Partner) 

 

Over 30 Government Accounting, 
Auditing: 63 hours 
 
Accounting, Auditing and 
Other: 62 hours 

AICPA 
FICPA 
FGFOA 
GFOA 

ANTONIO S. GRAU, CPA 
(Concurring Review Consultant) 

 

Over 40 Government Accounting and 
Auditing: 32 hours 
 
Accounting, Auditing and 
Other: 62 hours 

AICPA 
FICPA 
ICPA 

 

RACQUEL MCINTOSH, CPA 
(Partner) 

 

Over 13 Government Accounting and 
Auditing hours:62 
 
Accounting, Auditing and 
Other: 20 hours 

AICPA 
FICPA 
FGFOA 
FASD 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 

23 
 

POSITION DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Engagement Partner 
The engagement will be performed under the direct supervision of an Engagement Partner.  The 
Engagement Partner will participate extensively during the various stages of the engagement and has direct 
responsibility for engagement policy, direction, supervision, quality control, security, confidentiality of 
information of the engagement and communication with client personnel.  
 
The Engagement Partner will also be involved in: 
 coordinating all services; 
 directing the development of the overall audit 

approach and plan; 
 performing an overriding review of work papers; 
 resolving technical accounting and reporting issues; 
 reviewing, approving and signing reports, 

management letters, and other audit engagement 
products; and, 

 ascertaining client satisfaction with all aspects of our 
engagement, such as services and the personnel 
assigned. 

 
Concurring Review and Advisory Consultant  
A Concurring Review Consultant will be available as a sounding board to advise in those areas where 
problems are encountered. He will also perform a second review of all reports to be issued by Grau & 
Associates. 
 
Audit Manager and Senior  
The assigned personnel will work closely with the partner and the District to ensure that the financial 
statements and all other reports are prepared in accordance with professional standards and firm policy. 
Responsibilities will include: 
 
 planning the audit; 
 preparing or modifying audit programs, as needed; 
 evaluating internal control and assessing risk; 
 communicating with the client and the partners the progress of the audit; and 
 determining that financial statements and all reports issued by the firm for accuracy, completeness and 

that they are prepared in accordance with professional standards and firm policy. 
 
Information Technology Consultants and Personnel 
 
In addition to the assigned personnel above, Grau and Associates has staff with significant IT auditing 
experience that will assist in the evaluation and testing of internal controls. Because our staff has both a 
financial audit and IT background, they are able to communicate effectively all IT related concerns to 
management. In addition, Grau contracts with an outside group of IT management consultants to assist with 
matters including, but not limited to; network and database security, internet security and vulnerability testing.  

 
Grau’s engagement team’s workload is organized in such a way that additional activities 
brought about by this engagement will not impact our current commitments to our 
clients. We have sufficient staff capacity to integrate these professional services into 
our present operations, while continuing to maintain the highest standards of quality 
and time lines for our clients.   
 

  

 
 



 

24 
 

15%

20%

20%

45%

PARTNERS
MANAGERS
SENIOR
STAFF

10%

15%

20%

55%

PARTNERS
MANAGERS
SENIOR
STAFF

20%

30%

30%

20%

PARTNER/CONSULTANT
MANAGERS
SENIOR
STAFF

COMPOSITION OF ENGAGEMENT TEAM 
 

In contrast to the majority of both national and local firms, Grau’s proposed engagement team is 
comprised of an exceptionally large percentage of high-level audit professionals.  This gives us the 
ability to quickly recognize problems and be more efficient as a result of our Team’s DECADES of 
governmental auditing experience. 

 
 

Grau & Associates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

80 percent of engagement will be performed by 
Partners, Management and Senior Staff 

 
VS. 

 
Typical Local CPA Firm: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fifty-five percent of engagement is 
performed by “Management” 

 
Typical National CPA Firm                                                   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Forty-five percent of engagement is 
performed by “Management” 

 
 



 

25 
 

Antonio J. Grau, CPA, Partner  
e-mail: tgrau@graucpa.com 
 
Education 

Bachelor of Arts, Business Administration, 1983 University of South Florida; Certificate of Educational 
Achievement from the AICPA in Governmental Single Audits, 2016 

 
Professional History  
 CPA, in Florida since February 28, 1985, Certificate No. 15330 
 Grau & Associates  Partner   2005-Present 
 Grau & Company  Partner   1995-2005 
 Grau & Company  Audit Manager  1987-1995 
 International Firm  Auditor   1985-1986 
 Grau & Company  Staff Accountant 1983-1984 
 
Clients Served (partial list) 

 
Professional Education (over the last two years) 
 Course     Hours 
 Government Accounting and Auditing     63 
 Accounting, Auditing and Other      62  
          Total Hours     125 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 
 
Other Qualifications 

As a member of the Government Finance Officers Association Special Review Committee, Mr. Grau 
participated in the review process for awarding the GFOA Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting. 
Mr. Grau was the review team leader for the Quality Review of the Office of Management Audits of School 
Board of Miami-Dade County. 
 

Professional Associations/Memberships 
 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants        Florida Government Finance Officers Association 
 Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants            Government Finance Officers Association Member 
 City of Boca Raton Financial Advisory Board Member  

(>300) Various Special Districts Key Largo Water Treatment District 
Brevard Workforce Board Mae Volen Senior Center, Inc. 
Broward Education Foundation North Lauderdale Academy High School 
City of Cooper City   Orlando Housing Authority 
City of Lauderdale Lakes Palm Beach County Workforce Development Board 
City of Lauderhill  Peninsula Housing Programs 
City of Lauderhill General Pension School Board of Broward County 
City of North Lauderdale  School Board of Miami-Dade County 
City of Oakland Park School Board of Palm Beach County 
City of Weston  South Florida Water Management District 
Delray Beach Housing Authority  Southwest Florida Workforce Development Board 
East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facl. Town of Davie 
Florida Community College at Jacksonville Town of Highland Beach 
Florida Department of Management Services Town of Hypoluxo 
Greater Boca Raton Park & Beach District Village of Golf 
Highland County School District Village of Wellington 
Hispanic Human Resource Council West Palm Beach Housing Authority 

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com


 

26 
 

Antonio S. Grau, CPA, Concurring Review Consultant 
e-mail: asgrau@graucpa.com 
 
Education 

Bachelor Degree, Business Administration, 1966, University of Miami, Certificate of Educational Achievement 
from the AICPA in Governmental and Not-For-Profit Accounting and Auditing, 1994/1995 

 
Professional History  
 CPA in Florida since April 29, 1970, Certificate No. 2623    
 Grau & Company  Partner   1977-2004 
 Public Company  Financial Officer  1972-1976 
 International Firm  Auditor   1966-1972 
 
Clients Served (partial list) 

Mr. Grau was the head of the governmental audit department of Grau & Company, and performs the 
concurring review and advises on all the governmental audits of the firm. 

Atlanta Housing Authority Hispanic Human Resource Council 
Broward County Housing Authority Mae Volen Senior Center, Inc. 
City of Dania Beach Miami Beach Housing Authority 
City of Lauderdale Lakes North Lauderdale Academy High School 
City of Lauderhill Palm Beach County Workforce Development Board 
City of Lauderhill General Pension School Board of Miami-Dade County 
City of Miami Springs South Florida Water Management District 
City of Oakland Park Town of Hypoluxo 
City of Sweetwater Pension Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea 
Florida Community College at Jacksonville Town of Miami Lakes  
Highland County School District Town of Southwest Ranches  
Downtown Development Authority of the City of 
Miami / Community Development Block Grants 

Village of Biscayne Park                                                     
West Palm Beach Housing Authority  

 
Professional Education (over the last two years) 
 Course     Hours 
 Government Accounting and Auditing    32 
 Accounting, Auditing and Other     62 
          Total Hours     94 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 
 
Other Qualifications 

Mr. Grau was the review team leader for the Quality Review of the Office of Management Audits of School 
Board of Miami-Dade County. 

 
Professional Associations/Memberships 

Member, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Institute of Certified Public Accountants (1996-1997) 
Member, Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants Institute of Certified Public Accountants (1991 - 1993) 
Past member, State and Local Government Committee, Florida 
Past member, Quality Review Acceptance Committee, Florida 
Past member of BKR International Committee on Government and Non-Profit Accounting and Auditing 
 

 
  

mailto:asgrau@graucpa.com


 

27 
 

Racquel C. McIntosh, CPA, Partner  
e-mail: rmcintosh@graucpa.com / 561-939-6669 
 
Education 

Master of Accounting, MACC; Florida Atlantic University, December 2004;  
Bachelor of Arts – Majors: Accounting and Finance; Florida Atlantic University, May 2003 

 
Professional History  
 Grau & Associates  Partner    2014-Present 
 Grau & Associates  Manager   2009-2014 
 Grau & Associates  Senior Auditor   2007-2009 
 Grau & Associates  Staff Auditor   2006-2007 
 Grau & Company  Staff Auditor   2005-2006 
 
Clients Served (partial list) 

 
 Professional Education (over the last two years) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Professional Associations/ Memberships 

 
 
  

(>300) Various Special Districts Pinetree Water Control District (Broward/Palm Beach) 
Boca Raton Airport Authority Ranger Drainage District 
Brevard Workforce Development Board San Carlos Park Fire Protection & Rescue District 
Broward Education Foundation South Central Reg. Wastewater Treatment & Disposal Bd.  
Central Broward Water Control District South Trail Fire Protection & Rescue 
City of Cooper City Southwest Florida Workforce Development Board 
City of Pompano Beach (Joint Venture) Sun N Lake of Sebring Improvement District 
City of West Park Town of Highland Beach 
City of Weston Town of Hypoluxo 
East Central Reg. Wastewater Treatment Fac. Town of Lantana 
East Naples  Fire Control & Rescue District Town of Hillsboro Beach 
Greater Boca Raton Beach & Park District Village of Golf 
Key Largo Wastewater Treatment District Village of Wellington 

Course Hours 
Government Accounting and Auditing 62 
Accounting, Auditing and Other  20 

Total Hours  82 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants FICPA State & Local Government Committee 
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants FICPA Atlantic Chapter Board Member 
FICPA Young CPAs Committee FGFOA Palm Beach Chapter 

mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

28 
 

 

References 



 

29 
 

We have included three references of government engagements that require compliance with 
laws and regulations, follow fund accounting, and have financing requirements, which we believe 
are similar to the District. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Two Creeks Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Racquel McIntosh 
Dates Annually since 2007 
Client Contact William Rizzetta, President 

12750 Citrus Park Lane, Suite 115 
Tampa, Florida 33625 
813-933-5571 

Dunes Community Development District  
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 1998 
Client Contact Darrin Mossing, Finance Director 

475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
904-940-5850 

Journey’s End Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 2004 
Client Contact Todd Wodraska, Vice President 

2501 A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
561-630-4922 



 

30 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Cost of Services 



 

31 
 

Our proposed all-inclusive fee for the financial audit for the fiscal years ended September 30, 
2018 - 2020 are as follows: 
 

Year Ended September 30,  Fee 
 

2018  $8,500 

2019  $8,800 

2020  $9,100 
TOTAL                                  

(2018-2020)  $26,400 
 
The above fee is based on the assumption that the District maintains its current level of 
operations. Should conditions change or Bonds are issued the fee would be adjusted accordingly 
upon approval from all parties concerned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

32 
 

 

 

 
 

Supplemental Information  
 



 

33 
 

Specific Audit Approach 
 
 

SCOPE / WORK PRODUCTS / RESULTS 
 
Grau’s Understanding of Work Product / Scope of Services: 
 
We recognize the District is an important entity and we are confident our firm is eminently qualified to 
meet the challenges of this engagement and deliver quality audit services. You would be a valued client 
of our firm and we pledge to commit  all  firm resources to provide the level and quality of services 
(as described below) which not only meet the requirements set forth in the RFP but will exceed 
those expectations. Grau & Associates fully understands the scope of professional services and work 
products requested. Our audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Rules 
of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and any other applicable Federal, State of Local regulations. 
We will deliver our reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
Proposed segmentation of the engagement 

 
Our approach to the audit engagement is a risk-based approach which integrates the best of traditional 
auditing techniques and a total systems concept to enable the team to conduct a more efficient and 
effective audit. The audit will be conducted in three phases, which are as follows: 

 
Phase I - Preliminary Planning 
 
A thorough understanding of your organization, service objectives and operating environment is essential 
for the development of an audit plan and for an efficient, cost-effective audit.  During this phase, we will 
meet with appropriate personnel to obtain and document our understanding of your operations and 
service objectives and, at the same time, give you the opportunity to express your expectations with 
respect to the services that we will provide.  Our work effort will be coordinated so that there will be 
minimal disruption to your staff.  

 
During this phase we will perform the following activities:  

 
• Review the regulatory, statutory and compliance requirements. This will include a review of 

applicable federal and state statutes, resolutions, bond documents, contracts, and other 
agreements. 

• Read minutes of meetings. 
• Review major sources of information such as budgets, organization charts, procedures, manuals, 

financial systems, and management information systems. 
• Obtain an understanding of fraud detection and prevention systems. 
• Obtain and document an understanding of internal control.  Consider the methods that are used 

to process accounting information which influence the design of the internal control.  This 
understanding includes knowledge about the design of relevant policies, procedures, and records, 
and whether they have been placed in operation.   

• Assess risk and determine what controls we are to rely upon and what tests we are going to 
perform.  Perform test of controls. 

• Develop audit programs to incorporate the consideration of financial statement assertions, 
specific audit objectives, and appropriate audit procedures to achieve the specified objectives. 

• Discuss and resolve any accounting, auditing and reporting matters which have been identified. 
 
  



 

34 
 

Phase II – Execution of Audit Plan 
 

The audit team will complete a major portion of transaction testing and audit requirements during this 
phase.  The procedures performed during this period will enable us to identify any matter that may impact 
the completion of our work or require the attention of management.  Tasks to be performed in Phase II 
include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
• Apply analytical procedures to further assist in the determination of the nature, timing, and extent 

of auditing procedures used to obtain evidential matter for specific account balances or classes 
of transactions. 

• Perform tests of account balances and transactions through sampling, vouching, confirmation and 
other analytical procedures.  

• Perform tests of compliance. 
 
Phase III - Completion and Delivery 

 
In this phase of the audit, we will complete the tasks related to year-end balances and financial reporting. 
All reports will be reviewed with management before issuance, and the partners will be available to meet 
and discuss our report and address any questions. Tasks to be performed in Phase III include, but are 
not limited to the following: 

 
• Perform final analytical procedures. 
• Review information and make inquiries for subsequent events. 
• Meeting with Management to discuss preparation of draft financial statements and any potential 

findings or recommendations. 
 

You should expect more from your accounting firm than a signature in your annual financial report. Our 
concept of truly responsive professional service emphasizes taking an active interest in the issues of 
concern to our clients and serving as an effective resource in dealing with those issues. In following this 
approach, we not only audit financial information with hindsight but also consider the foresight you apply 
in managing operations. 
 
Application of this approach in developing our management letter is particularly important given the 
increasing financial pressures and public scrutiny facing today’s public officials.  We will prepare the 
management letter at the completion of our final procedures. 

 
In preparing this management letter, we will initially review any draft comments or recommendations with 
management. In addition, we will take necessary steps to ensure that matters are communicated to those 
charged with governance. 
 
In addition to communicating any recommendations, we will also communicate the following, if any: 
 

• Significant audit adjustments; 
• Significant deficiencies or material weaknesses; 
• Disagreements with management; and, 
• Difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 
 

Our findings will contain a statement of condition describing the situation and the area that needs 
strengthening, what should be corrected and why. Our suggestions will withstand the basic tests of 
corrective action: 
  



 

35 
 

• The recommendation must be cost effective; 
• The recommendations are to be the simplest to effectuate in order to correct a problem; 
• The recommendation must go to the heart of the problem and not just correct symptomatic matter; 

and 
• The corrective action must take into account why the deficiency occurred. 

 
To assure full agreement with facts and circumstances, we will fully discuss each item with Management 
prior to the final exit conference. This policy means there will be no “surprises” in the management letter 
and fosters a professional, cooperative atmosphere. 
 
Communications 
 
We emphasize a continuous, year-round dialogue between the District and our management team. We 
typically begin our audit process with an entrance conference before the onsite fieldwork begins. We 
regularly communicate through personal telephone calls and electronic mail throughout the audit and on 
a regular basis. Our clients have the ability to transmit information to us on our secure client portal with 
the ability to assign different staff with separate log on and viewing capability.  This further facilitates 
efficiency as all assigned users receive electronic mail notification as soon as new information has been 
posted into the portal.  We strive to continue to keep an open line of communication through the fieldwork 
and ending with an exit conference.      
 
 

Additional Services 
 

 
CONSULTING / MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES 

 
Grau & Associates also provide a broad range of other management consulting services.  Our expertise 
has been consistently utilized by Governmental and Non-Profit entities throughout Florida.  Examples of 
engagements performed are as follows: 
 
• Accounting systems 
• Development of budgets 
• Organizational structures 
• Financing alternatives 
• IT Auditing 
 

• Fixed asset records 
• Cost reimbursement  
• Indirect cost allocation 
• Grant administration and compliance 
 

ARBITRAGE 
 

The federal government has imposed complex rules to restrict the use of tax-exempt financing. Their 
principal purpose is to eliminate any significant arbitrage incentives in a tax-exempt issue. We have 
determined the applicability of these requirements and performed the rebate calculations for more than 
150 bond issues, including both fixed and variable rate bonds. Please find a partial list of clients served 
on the following pages. 
 
 



 

36 
 

GRAU HAS PROVIDED ARBITRAGE SERVICES FOR 
GOVERMENTAL CLIENTS INCLUDING: 

 
 

 Aberdeen Community Development District  Heritage Palms Community Development District 
 Amelia Walk Community Development District  Heritage Pines Community Development District 
 Arlington Ridge Community Development District  Heritage Springs Community Development District 
 Bartram Park Community Development District  Huntington Community Development District 
 Bartram Springs Community Development District  Indigo East Community Development District 
 Bayside Improvement District  Islands of Doral III Community Development District 
 Baywinds Community Development District  Julington Creek Plantation Comm. Dev. District 
 Beacon Lakes Community Development District  Laguna Lakes Community Development District 
 Beacon Tradeport Community Development District  Lake Ashton Community Development District 
 Bobcat Trail Community Development District  Lake Ashton II Community Development District 
 Boynton Village Community Development District  Lake Powell Residential Golf Community Dev. District 
 Brandy Creek Community Development District  Lakes By The Bay South Community Dev. District 
 Briger Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 1 Community Development District 
 Brighton Lakes Community Development District  Landmark at Doral Community Development District 
 Brooks of Bonita Springs Community Development District  Jurlington Creek Plantation Community Dev. District 
 Candller Hills East Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 2 Community Development District 
 Capital Region Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 3 Community Development District 
 Cedar Pointe Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 4 Community Development District 
 Championsgate Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 5 Community Development District 
 Chevel West Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 6 Community Development District 
 City Place Community Development District  Legacy Springs Improvement District No. 1 
 Coconut Cay Community Development District  Live Oak Community Development District 
 Colonial Country Club Community Development District  Main Street Community Development District 
 Cory Lakes Community Development District  Marshall Creek Community Development District 
 Country Greens Community Development District  Meadow Pointe II Community Development District 
 Creekside Community Development District  Mediterra North Community Development District 
 Double Branch Community Development District  Mediterra South Community Development District 
 Dunes Community Development District  Mediterranea Community Development District 
 Durbin Crossing Community Development District  Midtown Miami Community Development District 
 East Bonita Beach Road Plantation Comm. Development District  Moody River Community Development District 
 East Homestead Community Development District  Monterra Community Development District 
 East Park Community Development District  Narcossee Community Development District 
 Enclave at Black Point Marina Community Development District  North Springs Improvement District 
 Falcon Trace Community Development District  Oakstead Community Development District 
 Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District I  Old Palm Community Development District 
 Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District II  Orchid Grove Community Development District 
 Fleming Island Plantation Comm. Dev. District  OTC Community Development District 
 Grand Haven Community Development District  Overoaks Community Development District 
 Griffin Lakes Community Development District  Palm Glades Community Development District 
 Habitat Community Development District  Parklands Lee Community Development District 
 Hamal Community Development District  Parklands West Community Development District 
 Hammocks Community Development District  Parkway Center Community Development District 
 Harbour Lakes Estates Comm. Development District  Pine Air Lakes Community Development District 
 Harmony Community Development District  Pine Island Community Development District 
 Heritage Bay Community Development District  Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 



ARBITRAGE SERVICES (Continued) 
 

37 
 

 Portofino Cove Community Development District 
 Portofino Isles Community Development District 

 Tuscany Reserve Community Development District 
 University Place Community Development District 

 Portofino Landings Community Development District  Urban Orlando Community Development District 
 Portofino Shores Community Development District  Vasari Community Development District 
 Portofino Vista Community Development District  Verandah East Community Development District 
 Reunion East Community Development District  Verandah West Community Development District 
 Reunion West Community Development District  Verano Center Community Development District 
 Ridgewood Trails Community Development District  Villa Portofino East Community Development District 
 River Place on the St. Lucie Community Dev. District  Villa Vizcaya Community Development District 
 Rolling Hills Community Development District  Villages of Westport Comm. Development District 
 Sampson Creek Community Development District  Villasol Community Development District 
 South Dade Venture Community Development District  Vista Lakes Community Development District 
 South Village Community Development District  Vizcaya Community Development District 
 Spicewood Community Development District  Vizcaya in Kendall Community Development District 
 Split Pine Community Development District  Walnut Creek Community Development District 
 Stonegate Community Development District  Waterchase Community Development District 
 Stoneybrook Community Development District  Waterford Estates Community Development District 

 Stoneybrook West Community Development District  Waterstone Community Development District 

 The Crossings at Fleming Island Comm. Dev. District  Wentworth Estates Community Development District 

 Tison’s Landing Community Development District  
 Treeline Preserve Community Development District  
 Turnbull Creek Community Development District 

 Westchester Community Development District #1 
 Woodlands Community Development District 
 Wynnfield Lakes Community Development District 

  
  

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
We look forward to providing Marshall Creek Community Development 
District with our resources and experience to accomplish not only those 
minimum requirements set forth in your Request for Proposal, but to 
exceed those expectations! 

 
 

For even more information on Grau & Associates  
please visit us on www.graucpa.com. 

 
 
 

Grau provides value and services 
above and beyond 

the traditional auditor’s “product” 

http://www.graucpa.com/


 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MARSHALL CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
  PROPOSAL FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED BY: 
 
 

Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PL 
 
 
 
 

600 Citrus Avenue, Suite 200            (772) 461-6120 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

 
 

CONTACT PERSON: 
 

J. W. Gaines, CPA, Director 
 
 

DATE OF PROPOSAL: 
 
 

January 7, 2019



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SECTION PAGE 
 
 
 A. Letter of Transmittal 1-2 
 

B. Profile of the Proposer 
   
  Description and History of Audit Firm 3 
 
  Professional Staff Resources  4-5 
 
  Ability to Furnish the Required Services 5 
 
  Arbitrage Rebate Services 6 
 
A. Governmental Auditing Experience 7-14 

 
B. Fee Schedule 15 

 
C. Scope of Work to be Performed 15 

 
D. Resumes 16-30 

 
E. Peer Review Letter 31 

 
 



- 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 7, 2019 
 
 
 
Marshall Creek Community Development District 
Inframark Management Services 
210 North University Drive, Suite 702 
Coral Springs, FL 33071 
 
Dear District Manager: 
 
Thank you very much for the opportunity to present our professional credentials to provide audit 
services for Marshall Creek Community Development District. 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has assembled a 
team of governmental and nonprofit specialists second to none to serve our clients.  Our firm 
has the necessary qualifications and experience to serve as the independent auditors for 
Marshall Creek Community Development District.  We will provide you with top quality, 
responsive service. 
 
Experience 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is a recognized leader 
in providing services to governmental and nonprofit agencies throughout Florida.  We have 
been the independent auditors for a number of local governmental agencies and through our 
experience in performing their audits, we have been able to increase our audit efficiency and; 
therefore, reduce costs.  We have continually passed this cost savings on to our clients and will 
continue to do so in the future.  As a result of our experience and expertise, we have developed 
an effective and efficient audit approach designed to meet or exceed the performance 
specifications in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the standards for 
financial and compliance audits.  We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; “Government Auditing 
Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of the Single 
Audit Act, Subpart F of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,  
with minimal disruption to your operations.  Our firm has frequent technical updates to keep our 
personnel informed and up-to-date on all changes that are occurring within the industry.  
 
 



- 2 - 

 
Marshall Creek Community Development District 
January 7, 2019 
 
Our firm is a member of the Government Audit Quality Center, an organization dedicated to 
improving government audit quality.  We also utilize the audit program software of a nationally 
recognized CPA firm to assure us that we are up to date with all auditing standards and to assist 
us maintain maximum audit efficiencies. 
 
To facilitate your evaluation of our qualifications and experience, we have arranged this 
proposal to include a resume of our firm, including our available staff, our extensive prior 
governmental and nonprofit auditing experience and clients to be contacted. 
 
You need a firm that will provide an efficient, cost-effective, high-quality audit within critical time 
constraints.  You need a firm with the prerequisite governmental and nonprofit experience to 
perform your audit according to stringent legal and regulatory requirements, a firm that 
understands the complex nature of community development districts and their unique 
compliance requirements.  You need a firm with recognized governmental and nonprofit 
specialists within the finance and governmental communities.  And, certainly, you need a firm 
that will provide you with valuable feedback to enhance your current and future operations.  
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is that firm.  J. W. 
Gaines is the person authorized to make representations for the firm. 
 
Thank you again for the opportunity to submit this proposal to Marshall Creek Community 
Development District. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank 
Certified Public Accountants PL 
Fort Pierce, Florida 

tjb
Firm Signature



- 3 - 

PROFILE OF THE PROPOSER 
 
Description and History of Audit Firm 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is a Treasure 
Coast public accounting firm, which qualifies as a small business firm, as established by the 
Small Business Administration (13 CFR 121.38), with offices in Fort Pierce and Stuart.  We are a 
member of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants.  The firm was formed from the merger of Edwards, Berger, Harris & 
Company (originated in 1972) and McAlpin, Curtis & Associates (originated in 1949).  J. W. 
Gaines and Associates (originated in 1979) merged with the firm in 2004.  Our tremendous 
growth rate experienced over the last 69 years is directly attributable to the firm’s unrelenting 
dedication to providing the highest quality, responsive professional services attainable to its 
clients. 
 
We are a member of the Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) to assure we meet the highest standards.  Membership in 
this practice section requires that our firm meet more stringent standards than standard AICPA 
membership.  These rigorous requirements include the requirement of a triennial peer review of 
our firm’s auditing and accounting practice and annual Continuing Professional Education (CPE) 
for all accounting staff (whether CPA or non-CPA).  For standard AICPA membership, only a 
quality review is required and only CPAs must meet CPE requirements. 
 
We are also a member of the Government Audit Quality Center (“the Center”) of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants to assure the quality of our government audits.  
Membership in the Center, which is voluntary, requires our firm to comply with additional 
standards to promote the quality of government audits.   
 
We have been extensively involved in serving local government entities with professional 
accounting, auditing and consulting services throughout the entire 69 year history of our firm.  
Our substantial experience over the years makes us uniquely qualified to provide accounting, 
auditing, and consulting services to these clients.  We are a recognized leader in providing 
services to governmental and nonprofit agencies on the Treasure Coast and in Central and 
South Florida, with extensive experience in auditing community development districts and water 
control districts.  We were the independent auditors of the City of Fort Pierce for over 37 years 
and currently, we are the independent auditors for St. Lucie County since 2002, and for 34 of the 
38 years that the county has been audited by CPA firms.  Additionally, we have performed audits 
of the City of Stuart, the City of Vero Beach, Indian River County and Martin County.  We also 
presently audit over 75 Community Development Districts throughout Florida. 
 
Our firm was founded on the belief that we are better able to respond to our clients needs 
through education, experience, independence, quality control, and personal service.  Our firm’s 
commitment to quality is reflected in our endeavor of professional excellence via continuing 
education, the use of the latest computer technology, professional membership in PCPS and 
peer review. 
 
We believe our approach to audit engagements, intelligence and innovation teamed with sound 
professional judgment enables us to explore new concepts while remaining sensitive to the 
fundamental need for practical solutions.  We take pride in giving you the assurance that the 
personal assistance you receive comes from years of advanced training, technical experience 
and financial acumen. 



- 4 - 

Professional Staff Resources 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has a total of 
27 professional and administrative staff (including 12 professional staff with extensive 
experience servicing government entities).  The work will be performed out of our Fort 
Pierce office with a proposed staff of one senior accountant and one or two staff 
accountants supervised by an audit manager and audit partner.  With the exception of the 
directors of the firm’s offices, the professional staff is not specifically assigned to any of our 
individual offices.  The professional and administrative staff resources available to you 
through Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL are as 
follows: 
   Total 
Partners/Directors (CPA’s) 5 
Principals (CPA) 1 
Managers (CPA) 1 
Senior/Supervisor Accountants (1 CPA) 3 
Staff Accountants 7 
Computer Specialist 1 
Paraprofessional 6 
Administrative   4 
 Total – all personnel 28 
 
Following is a brief description of each employee classification: 
 
Staff Accountant – Staff accountants work directly under the constant supervision of the 
auditor-in-charge and, are responsible for the various testing of documents, account 
analysis and any other duties as his/her supervisor believes appropriate.  Minimum 
qualification for a staff accountant is graduation from an accredited university or college with 
a degree in accounting or equivalent. 
 
Senior Accountant – A senior accountant must possess all the qualifications of the staff 
accountant, in addition to being able to draft the necessary reports and financial statements, 
and supervise other staff accountants when necessary. 
 
Managers – A manager must possess the qualifications of the senior accountant, plus be 
able to work without extensive supervision from the auditor-in-charge.  The manager should 
be able to draft audit reports from start to finish and to supervise the audit team, if 
necessary. 
 
Principal – A principal is a partner/director in training.  He has been a manager for several 
years and possesses the technical skills to act as the auditor–in-charge.  A principal has no 
financial interest in the firm. 
 
Partner/Director – The director has extensive governmental auditing experience and acts 
as the auditor-in-charge.  Directors have a financial interest in the firm. 
 
 
 



- 5 - 

Professional Staff Resources (Continued) 
 
Independence – Independence of the public accounting firm, with respect to the audit 
client, is the foundation from which the public gains its trust in the opinion issued by the 
public accounting firm at the end of the audit process.  This independence must be in 
appearance as well as in fact.  The public must perceive that the accounting firm is 
independent of the audit entity to insure that nothing would compromise the opinion issued 
by the public accounting firm. Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public 
Accountants, PL is independent of Marshall Creek Community Development District, 
including its elected officials and related parties, at the date of this proposal, as defined by 
the following rules, regulations, and standards: 
 

AuSection 220 – Statements on Auditing Standards issued by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 
 
ET Sections 101 and 102 – Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 
 
Chapter 21A-1, Florida Administrative Code; 
 
Section 473.315, Florida Statutes; and, 
 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

 
On an annual basis, all members of the firm are required to confirm, in writing, that they have no 
personal or financial relationships or holding that would impair their independence with regard to 
the firm’s clients. 
 
Independence is a hallmark of our profession.  We encourage our staff to use professional 
judgment in situations where our independence could be impaired or the perception of a conflict 
of interest might exist.  In the governmental sector, public perception is as important as 
professional standards.  Therefore, the utmost care must be exercised by independent auditors 
in the performance of their duties. 
 
Ability to Furnish the Required Services 
 
As previously noted in the Profile of the Proposer section of this document, our firm has been in 
existence for over 69 years.  We have provided audit services to some clients for over 30 years 
continually.  Our firm is insured against physical loss through commercial insurance and we also 
carry liability insurance.  The majority of our audit documentation is stored electronically, both 
on our office network and on each employee laptop or computer assigned to each specific job.  
Our office computer network is backed up on tape, so in the event of a total equipment loss, we 
can restore all data as soon as replacement equipment is acquired.  In addition, our field laptop 
computers carry the same data and can be used in the event of emergency with virtually no 
delay in completing the required services.   



- 6 - 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES PROVIDED  
 
Arbitrage Rebate Services 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL also provides 
arbitrage rebate compliance and related services to governmental issuers.  The Tax Reform Act 
of 1986 requires issuers of most tax-exempt obligations to pay (i.e., “rebate”) to the United 
States government any arbitrage profits.  Arbitrage profits are earnings on the investment of 
bond proceeds and certain other monies in excess of what would have been earned had such 
monies been invested at a yield equal to the yield on the bonds. 
 
Federal tax law requires that interim rebate calculations and payments are due at the end of 
every fifth bond year.  Final payment is required upon redemption of the bonds.  More frequent 
calculations may be deemed advisable by an issuer’s auditor, trustee or bond counsel or to 
assure that accurate and current records are available.  These more frequent requirements are 
usually contained in the Arbitrage or Rebate Certificate with respect to the bonds. 
 
Our firm performs a comprehensive rebate analysis and includes the following: 
 

 Verifying that the issue is subject to rebate; 
 Calculating the bond yield; 
 Identifying, and separately accounting for, all “Gross Proceeds” (as that term is defined 

in the Code) of the bond issue, including those requiring analysis due to “transferred 
proceeds” and/or “commingled funds” circumstances; 

 Determining what general and/or elective options are available to Gross proceeds of the 
issue; 

 Calculating the issue’s excess investment earning (rebate liability), if any; 
 Delivering appropriate documentation to support all calculations;  
 Providing an executive summary identifying the methodology employed, major 

assumptions, conclusions, and any other recommendations for changes in 
recordkeeping and investment policies; 

 Assisting as necessary in the event of an Internal Revenue Service inquiry; and, 
 Consulting with issue staff, as necessary, regarding arbitrage related matters. 



- 7 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL has been 
practicing public accounting in Florida for 69 years.  Our success over the years has been the 
result of a strong commitment to providing personalized quality service to our clients. 
 
The current members of our firm have performed audits of over 900 community development 
districts, and over 1,800 audits of municipalities, counties and other governmental entities such 
as the City of Fort Pierce and St. Lucie County. 
 
Our firm provides a variety of accounting, auditing, tax litigation support, and consulting 
services.  Some of the professional accounting, auditing and management consulting services 
that are provided by our firm are listed below: 
 

 Performance of annual financial and compliance audits, including Single Audits of state 
and federal financial assistance programs, under the provisions of the Single Audit Act, 
Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance), with minimal disruptions to your operations; 

 Performance of special compliance audits to ascertain compliance with the applicable 
local, state and federal laws and regulations; 

 Issuance of comfort letters and consent letters in conjunction with the issuance of tax-
exempt debt obligations, including compiling financial data and interim period financial 
statement reviews; 

 Calculation of estimated and actual federal arbitrage rebates; 
 Assistance in compiling historical financial data for first-time and supplemental 

submissions for GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting; 
 Preparation of indirect cost allocation systems in accordance with Federal and State 

regulatory requirements; 
 Providing human resource and employee benefit consulting; 
 Performance of automation feasibility studies and disaster recovery plans; 
 Performance feasibility studies concerning major fixed asset acquisitions and utility plant 

expansion plans (including electric, water, pollution control, and sanitation utilities); and 
 Assistance in litigation, including testimony in civil and criminal court. 
 Assist clients who utilize QuickBooks software with their software needs.  Our Certified 

QuickBooks Advisor has undergone extensive training through QuickBooks and has 
passed several exams to attain this Certification. 

 
Continuing Professional Education 
 
All members of the governmental audit staff of our firm, and audit team members assigned to 
this engagement, are in compliance with the Continuing Professional Education (CPE) 
requirements set forth in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  In addition, our firm is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Florida Statutes that require CPA’s to have met certain CPE requirements prior to proposing on 
governmental audit engagements. 
 
 



- 8 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
The audit team has extensive experience in performing governmental audits and is exposed to 
intensive and continuing concentration on these types of audits.  Due to the total number of 
governmental audits our team performs, each member of our governmental staff must 
understand and be able to perform several types of governmental audits.  It is our objective to 
provide each professional employee fifty hours or more of comprehensive continuing 
professional education each year.  This is accomplished through attending seminars throughout 
Florida and is reinforced through in-house training. 
 
Our firm has made a steadfast commitment to professional education.  Our active attendance 
and participation in continuing professional education is a major part of our objective to obtain 
the most recent knowledge on issues which are of importance to our clients.  We are growing on 
the reputation for work that our firm is providing today. 
 
Quality Control Program 
 
Quality control requires continuing commitment to professional excellence.  Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants, PL is formally dedicated to that 
commitment. 
 
To ensure maintaining the standards of working excellence required by our firm, we joined the 
Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA).  To be a participating member firm of this practice section, a firm must 
obtain an independent Peer Review of its quality control policies and procedures to ascertain 
the firm’s compliance with existing auditing standards on the applicable engagements. 
 
The scope of the Peer Review is comprehensive in that it specifically reviews the following 
quality control policies and procedures of the participating firm: 
 

 Professional, economic, and administrative independence; 
 Assignment of professional personnel to engagements; 
 Consultation on technical matters; 
 Supervision of engagement personnel; 
 Hiring and employment of personnel; 
 Professional development; 
 Advancement; 
 Acceptance and continuation of clients; and, 
 Inspection and review system. 

 
We believe that our commitment to the program is rewarding not only to our firm, but primarily to 
our clients. 
 
The external independent Peer Review of the elements of our quality control policies and 
procedures performed by an independent certified public accountant, approved by the PCPS of 
the AICPA, provides you with the assurance that we continue to conform to standards of the 
profession in the conduct of our accounting and auditing practice. 
 



- 9 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Our firm is also a member of Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC), a voluntary 
membership center for CPA firms that perform governmental audits.  This center promotes the 
quality of governmental audits. 
 
Our firm has completed successive Peer Reviews.  These reviews included a representative 
sample of our firm’s local governmental auditing engagements.  As a result of these reviews, 
our firm obtained an unqualified opinion on our quality control program and work procedures.  
On page 31 is a copy of our most recent Peer Review report.  It should be noted that we 
received a pass rating. 
 
Our firm has never had any disciplinary actions by state regulatory bodies or professional 
organizations. 
 
As our firm performs approximately one hundred audits each year that are reviewed by federal, 
state or local entities, we are constantly dealing with questions from these entities about our 
audits.  We are pleased to say that any questions that have been raised were minor issues and 
were easily resolved without re-issuing any reports. 
 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (CAFR) 
 
We are proud and honored to have been involved with the City of Fort Pierce and the Fort 
Pierce Utilities Authority when they received their first Certificates of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal years ended September 30, 1988 and 1994, 
respectively.  We were also instrumental in the City of Stuart receiving the award, in our first 
year of performing their audit, for the year ended September 30, 1999.   
 
We also assisted St. Lucie County, Florida for the year ended September 30, 2003, in preparing 
their first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, and St. Lucie County has received their 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting every year since.    
 
As continued commitment to insuring that we are providing the highest level of experience, we 
have had at least one employee of our firm serve on the GFOA – Special Review Committee 
since the mid-1980s.  This committee is made up of selective Certified Public Accountants 
throughout the United States who have demonstrated their high level of knowledge and 
expertise in governmental accounting.  Each committee member attends a special review 
meeting at the Annual GFOA Conference.  At this meeting, the committee reports on the 
Certificate of Achievement Program’s most recent results, future goals, and common reporting 
deficiencies. 
 
We feel that our previous experience in assisting the City of Fort Pierce, the Fort Pierce Utilities 
Authority and St. Lucie County obtain their first CAFRs, and the City of Stuart in continuing to 
receive a CAFR and our firm’s continued involvement with the GFOA, and the CAFR review 
committee make us a valued asset for any client in the field of governmental financial reporting. 
 
 
 



- 10 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
References 
 
Capron Trail Community Development   Gateway Community Development   
    District      District 
Jeff Walker, Special District Services Stephen Bloom, Severn Trent Management 
(561) 630-4922 (954) 753-5841 
 
The Reserve Community Development District Port of the Islands Community Development  
         District 
Darrin Mossing, Governmental Management Cal Teague, Premier District Management  
     Services LLC      
(407) 841-5524 (239) 690-7100 ext 101 
 
In addition to the above, we have the following additional governmental audit experience: 
 
Community Development Districts 
 
Aberdeen Community Development Celebration Pointe Community  

 District Development District

Amelia Concourse Community Channing Park Community 
Development District  Development District

Anthem Park Communnity Cheval West Community 
Development District  Development District

Arborwood Community Development City Center Community Development 
District District

Bannon Lakes Community Colonial Country Club Community 
Development District Development District

Beacon Lakes Community Creekside at Twin Creeks Community
 Development District  Development District

Candler Hills East Community Deer Run Community Development 
Development District District

Capron Trail Community Development Diamond Hill Community
  District  Development District

Cedar Hammock Community Eagle Point Community Development 
 Development District District



- 11 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Eastlake Oaks Community Legends Bay Community 

 Development District Development District

Easton Park Community Development Live Oak No 2 Community 
District Development District

Estancia @ Wiregrass Community Marshall Creek Community 
 Development District Development District

Forest Brooke Community Meadow View at Twin Lakes Community 
Development District Development District

Gramercy Park Community Meadow Point III Community 
 Development District Development District

Greyhawk Landing Community Meadow Point IV Community  
Development District Development District

Griffin Lakes Community Development Midtown Miami Community 
District Development District

Habitat Community Development Mira Lago Community Development
District  District

Harmony Community Development Narcoossee Community Development 
District District

Heritage Harbor Community New Port Tampa Bay Community
Development District  Development District

Heritage Isles Community Overoaks Community Development 
Development District District

Heritage Lake Park Community Panther Trace 2 Community 
Development District Development District

Heritage Palms Community Pine Island Community Development 
 Development District District

Julington Creek Community Pine Ridge Community Development 
 Development District District

Lake Bernadette Community  Piney-Z Community Development
Development District  District



- 12 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Remington Community Development Southern Hills Plantation III Community 

District Development District

Renaissance Commons Community St. John's Forest Community 
 Development District Development District

Reserve Community Development Stoneybrook West Community  
District Development District

Reserve at Pradera Community Tern Bay Community Development 
Development District District

Ridgewood Trails Community Terracina Community Development
Development District  District 

River Hall Community Development Twin Creeks North Community 
District Development District

River Place on the St. Lucie Community Valencia Acres Community
Development District  Development District

Riverwood Community Development Villages of Bloomingdale Community 
District Development District

Riverwood Estates Community Westside Community Development 
Development District District

Rolling Hills Community Development Willow Creek Community Development 
 District District

Sampson Creek Community Winston Trails Community 
Development District Development District

Seminole Improvement District

Solterra Resort Community 
Development District

South Village Community
 Development District

Southern Hills Plantation I Community
 District

 



- 13 - 

 
GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Other Governmental Organizations 
 
City of Westlake 
 
 
Florida Inland Navigation District 
 
Fort Pierce Farms Water Control 
 District 
 
Indian River Regional Crime 
   Laboratory, District 19, Florida 
 
Jobs and Education Partnership 

 
 
Office of the Medical Examiner, 
   District 19 
 
Rupert J. Smith Law Library  
   of St. Lucie County 
 
St. Lucie Education Foundation 
 
Town of Ocean Breeze Park 
 
Troup Indiantown Water  
   Control District 

 
Current or Recent Single Audits, 

 
St. Lucie County, Florida 
Early Learning Coalition, Inc. 
Treasure Coast Food Bank, Inc. 
 
Members of our audit team have acquired extensive experience from performing or participating 
in over 1,800 audits of governments, independent special taxing districts, school boards, and 
other agencies that receive public money and utilize fund accounting. 
 
Much of our firm’s auditing experience is with compliance auditing, which is required for publicly 
financed agencies.  In this type of audit, we do a financial examination and also confirm 
compliance with various statutory and regulatory guidelines. 
 
Following is a summary of our other experience, including Auditor General experience, as it 
pertains to other governmental and fund accounting audits. 
 
Counties  
(Includes elected constitutional officers, utilities and dependent taxing districts) 
 
Indian River 
Martin 
Okeechobee 
Palm Beach 
 
Municipalities 
 
City of Port St. Lucie 
City of Vero Beach 
Town of Orchid 



- 14 - 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDIT EXPERIENCE (CONTINUED) 
 
Special Districts 
 
Boggy Creek Community Development District 
Coquina Water Control District 
Dovera Community Development District 
Durbin Crossing Community Development District  
Golden Lakes Community Development District 
Lakewood Ranch Community Development District 
Martin Soil and Water Conservation District 
Myrtle Creek Community Development District 
St. Lucie County – Fort Pierce Fire District 
The Crossings at Fleming Island 
St. Lucie West Services District 
Indian River County Mosquito Control District 
St. John’s Water Control District 
Westchase and Westchase East Community Development Districts 
Pier Park Community Development District 
Verandahs Community Development District 
Magnolia Park Community Development District 
 
Schools and Colleges 
 
Federal Student Aid Programs – Indian River Community College 
Indian River Community College 
Okeechobee County District School Board 
St. Lucie County District School Board 
 
State and County Agencies 
 
Central Florida Foreign-Trade Zone, Inc. (a nonprofit organization affiliated with the St. Lucie     
    County Board of County Commissioners) 
Florida School for Boys at Okeechobee 
Indian River Community College Crime Laboratory 
Indian River Correctional Institution 
 
 



- 15 - 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
We propose the fee for our audit services described below to be $4,675 for the years ended 
September 30, 2018, 2019, and 2020. The fee is contingent upon the financial records and 
accounting systems of Marshall Creek Community Development District being “audit ready” and 
the financial activity for the District is not materially increased.  If we discover that additional 
preparation work or subsidiary schedules are needed, we will consult with your authorized 
representative.  We can assist with this additional work at our standard rates should you desire. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED 
 
If selected as the District's auditors, we will perform a financial and compliance audit in 
accordance with Section 11.45, Florida Statutes, in order to express an opinion on an annual 
basis on the financial statements of Marshall Creek Community Development District as of 
September 30, 2018, 2019, and 2020. The audits will be performed to the extent necessary to 
express an opinion on the fairness in all material respects with which the financial statements 
present the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to determine whether, for selected 
transactions, operations are properly conducted in accordance with legal and regulatory 
requirements.  Reportable conditions that are also material weaknesses shall be identified as 
such in the Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters.  Other (non-reportable) conditions discovered during the course of the audit 
will be reported in a separate letter to management, which will be referred to in the Auditors' 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters. 
 
Our audit will be performed in accordance with standards for financial and compliance audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, as well as in compliance with rules and 
regulations of audits of special districts as set forth by the State Auditor General in 
Chapter 10.550, Local Governmental Entity Audits, and other relevant federal, state and county 
orders, statutes, ordinances, charter, resolutions, bond covenants, Administrative Code and 
procedures, or rules and regulations which may pertain to the work required in the engagement. 
 
The primary purpose of our audit will be to express an opinion on the financial statements 
discussed above.  It should be noted that such audits are subject to the inherent risk that errors 
or irregularities may not be detected.  However, if conditions are discovered which lead to the 
belief that material errors, defalcations or other irregularities may exist or if other circumstances 
are encountered that require extended services, we will promptly notify the appropriate 
individual. 
 
 
 



- 16 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
J. W. Gaines, CPA, CITP 
Director – 38 years 
 
Education 
 Stetson University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Registrations 
 Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
 Certified Information Technology Professional (CITP) – American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
 Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
 Affiliate member Government Finance Officers Association 
 Past President, Vice President-Campaign Chairman, Vice President and Board Member of 

United Way of St. Lucie County, 1989 - 1994 
 Past President, President Elect, Secretary and Treasurer of the Treasure Coast Chapter of 

the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1988 - 1991 
 Past President of Ft. Pierce Kiwanis Club, 1994 - 95, Member/Board Member since 1982 
 Past President, Vice President and Treasurer of St. Lucie County Chapter of the American 

Cancer Society, 1980 -1986 
 Member of the St. Lucie County Chamber of Commerce, Member Board of Directors, 

Treasurer, September 2002 - 2006, Chairman Elect 2007, Chairman 2008, Past Chairman 
2009  

 Member Lawnwood Regional Medical Center Board of Trustees, 2000 – Present, Chairman 
2013 - Present 

 Member of St. Lucie County Citizens Budget Committee, 2001 – 2002 
 Member of Ft. Pierce Citizens Budget Advisory Committee, 2010 – 2011 
 Member of Ft. Pierce Civil Service Appeals Board, 2013 - Present 
 
Professional Experience 
 Miles Grant Development/Country Club – Stuart, Florida, July 1975 – October 1976 
 State Auditor General’s Office – Public Accounts Auditor – November 1976 through 

September 1979 
 Director - Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public Accountants PL, 

responsible for numerous government and nonprofit audits. 
 Over 30 years experience in all phases of public accounting and auditing experience, with a 

concentration in financial and compliance audits.  Mr. Gaines has been involved in all 
phases of the audits listed on the preceding pages. 



- 17 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
J. W. Gaines, CPA, CITP (Continued) 
Director 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Has participated in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors over the last two years to keep abreast of the latest 
developments in accounting and auditing such as: 

Governmental Accounting Report and Audit Update 
Analytical Procedures, FICPA 
Annual Update for Accountants and Auditors 
Single Audit Sampling and Other Considerations 



- 18 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David S. McGuire, CPA, CITP 
Accounting and Audit Principal – 9 years 
Accounting and Audit Manager – 4 years 
Staff Accountant  – 11 years 
 
Education 
 University of Central Florida, B.A. – Accounting 
 Barry University – Master of Professional Accountancy 
 
Registrations 
 Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
 Certified Information Technology Professional (CITP) – American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants 
 Certified Not-For-Profit Core Concepts 2018 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
 Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
 Associate Member, Florida Government Finance Office Associates 
 Assistant Coach – St. Lucie County Youth Football Organization (1994 – 2005) 
 Assistant Coach – Greater Port St. Lucie Football League, Inc. (2006 – 2010) 
 Board Member – Greater Port St. Lucie Football League, Inc. (2011 – present) 
 Treasurer, AIDS Research and Treatment Center of the Treasure Coast, Inc. (2000 – 

2003) 
 Board Member/Treasurer, North Treasure Coast Chapter, American Red Cross  

(2004 – 2010) 
 Member/Board Member of Port St. Lucie Kiwanis (1994 – 2001) 
 President (2014/15) of Sunrise Kiwanis of Fort Pierce (2004 – present) 
 St. Lucie District School Board Superintendent Search Committee (2013 – present) 
 
Professional Experience 
 Twenty-four years public accounting experience with an emphasis on nonprofit and 

governmental organizations.  
 Audit Manager in-charge on a variety of audit and review engagements within several 

industries, including the following government and nonprofit organizations: 
  St. Lucie County, Florida 
  19th Circuit Office of Medical Examiner 
  Troup Indiantown Water Control District 
  Exchange Club Center for the Prevention of Child Abuse, Inc. 
  Healthy Kids of St. Lucie County 
  Mustard Seed Ministries of Ft. Pierce, Inc. 
  Reaching Our Community Kids, Inc. 
  Reaching Our Community Kids - South 
  St. Lucie County Education Foundation, Inc. 
  Treasure Coast Food Bank, Inc. 
  North Springs Improvement District 
 Four years of service in the United States Air Force in computer operations, with a top 

secret (SCI/SBI) security clearance. 



- 19 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David S. McGuire, CPA, CITP (Continued) 
Accounting and Audit Principal  
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Mr. McGuire has attended numerous continuing professional education courses and 

seminars taught by nationally recognized sponsors in the accounting auditing and single 
audit compliance areas.  He has attended courses over the last two years in those areas as 
follows: 

  Not-for-Profit Auditing Financial Results and Compliance Requirements 
  Update:  Government Accounting Reporting and Auditing 
  Annual Update for Accountants and Auditors 
 
 



- 20 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David F. Haughton, CPA 
Accounting and Audit Manager – 27 years 
 
Education 
 Stetson University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Registrations 
 Certified Public Accountant – State of Florida, State Board of Accountancy 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
 Member of the American and Florida Institutes of Certified Public Accountants 
 Former Member of Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants Committee on State and 

Local Government 
 Affiliate Member Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for over 10 years 
 Affiliate Member Florida Government Finance Officers Association (FGFOA) for over 10 

years 
 Technical Review – 1997 FICPA Course on State and Local Governments in Florida 
 Board of Directors – Kiwanis of Ft. Pierce, Treasurer – 1994-1999; Vice President – 1999-

2001 
 
Professional Experience 
 Twenty-seven years public accounting experience with an emphasis on governmental and 

nonprofit organizations. 
 State Auditor General’s Office – West Palm Beach, Staff Auditor, June 1985 to September 

1985 
 Accounting and Audit Manager of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank, Certified Public 

Accountants PL, responsible for audit and accounting services including governmental and 
not-for-profit audits. 

 Over 20 years of public accounting and governmental experience, specializing in 
governmental and nonprofit organizations with concentration in special districts, including 
Community Development Districts which provide services including water and sewer utilities.  
Governmental and non-profit entities served include the following: 

 
Counties: 

  St. Lucie County 
 
  Municipalities: 
  City of Fort Pierce 
  City of Stuart 
 
 



- 21 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
David F. Haughton, CPA (Continued) 
Accounting and Audit Manager 
 
Professional Experience (Continued) 

Special Districts: 
Bluewaters Community Development District 
Country Club of Mount Dora Community Development District 
Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District #1 and #2 
Indigo Community Development District 
North Springs Improvement District 
Renaissance Commons Community Development District 
St. Lucie West Services District 
Stoneybrook Community Development District 
Summerville Community Development District 
Terracina Community Development District 
Thousand Oaks Community Development District 
Tree Island Estates Community Development District 
Valencia Acres Community Development District 

 
Non-Profits: 
The Dunbar Center, Inc. 
Hibiscus Children’s Foundation, Inc. 
Hope Rural School, Inc. 
Maritime and Yachting Museum of Florida, Inc. 
Tykes and Teens, Inc. 
United Way of Martin County, Inc. 
Workforce Development Board of the Treasure Coast, Inc. 
 

 While with the Auditor General’s Office he was on the staff for the state audits of the Martin 
County School District and Okeechobee County School District. 

 During 1997 he performed a technical review of the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants state CPE course on Audits of State and Local Governments in Florida.  His 
comments were well received by the author and were utilized in future updates to the 
course. 

 

Continuing Professional Education 
 During the past several years, he has participated in numerous professional development 

training programs sponsored by the AICPA and FICPA, including state conferences on 
special districts and governmental auditing in Florida.  He averages in excess of 100 hours 
bi-annually of advanced training which exceeds the 80 hours required in accordance with the 
continuing professional education requirements of the Florida State Board of accountancy 
and the AICPA Private Companies Practice Section.  He has over 75 hours of governmental 
CPE credit within the past two years. 

 
 



- 22 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Matthew Gonano, CPA 
Senior Staff Accountant – 7 years 
 
Education 
 University of North Florida, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 University of Alicante, Spain – International Business 
 Florida Atlantic University – Masters of Accounting 
 
Professional Affiliations/Community Service 
 
 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 
Professional Experience 
 
 Senior Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 Performed audits of nonprofit and governmental organizations in accordance with 

Governmental Accounting Auditing Standards (GAAS) 
 Performed Single Audits of nonprofit organizations in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, 

Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
 

Continuing Professional Education 
 Mr. Gonano has participated in numerous continuing professional education courses. 



- 23 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Paul Daly 
Staff Accountant – 6 years 
 
Education 
 Florida Atlantic University, B.S. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
 Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Working to attain the requirements to take the Certified Public Accounting (CPA) exam. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 24 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Melissa Arnold 
Senior Staff Accountant – 4 years 
 
Education 
 Indian River State College, A.A. – Accounting 
 Florida Atlantic University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
 Staff accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Ms. Arnold participates in numerous continuing professional education courses provided by 

nationally recognized sponsors to keep abreast of the latest developments. 
 

 



- 25 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Bryan Snyder 
Staff Accountant – 3 years 
 
Education 
 Florida Atlantic University, B.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
 Accountant beginning his professional auditing career with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, 

& Frank. 
 Mr. Snyder is gaining experience auditing governmental & nonprofit entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Mr. Snyder participates in numerous continuing education courses and plans on working to 

acquire his CPA certificate. 
 



- 26 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Maritza Stonebraker 
Staff Accountant – 2 years 
 
Education 
 Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
 Staff Accountant beginning her professional auditing career with Berger, Toombs, Elam, 

Gaines, & Frank. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Mrs. Stonebraker participates in numerous continuing education courses and plans on 

acquiring her CPA. 



- 27 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Jonathan Herman 
Senior Staff Accountant – 4 years 
 
Education 
 University of Central Florida, B.S. – Accounting 
 Florida Atlantic University, MACC  
 
Professional Experience 
 Accounting graduate with four years experience with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & 

Frank providing professional services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Working to study to take the Certified Public Accounting (CPA) exam. 



- 28 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 
Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Sean Stanton 
Staff Accountant  
 
Education 
 University of South Florida, B.S. – Accounting 
 Florida Atlantic University, M.B.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
 Staff accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank auditing governmental and 

non-profit entities. 
 
Continuing Professional Education 
 Mr. Stanton is working towards passing the CPA exam. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 29 - 

 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 

Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Brianne Davies 
Staff Accountant  
 
Education 
   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 30 - 

Commitment to Quality Service 
 

Personnel Qualifications and Experience 
 
Taylor Nuccio 
Staff Accountant  
 
Education 
   Indian River State College, B.S.A. – Accounting 
 
Professional Experience 
    Staff Accountant with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank providing professional 

services to nonprofit and governmental entities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 31 - 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Third Order of Business 
  



MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
MARSHALL CREEK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The Audit Committee meeting of the Marshall Creek Community Development 

District was held on Wednesday, December 19, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. at the Marshall Creek 

Amenity Center, 625 Palencia Club Drive, St. Augustine, Florida.   

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

Howard Hoffman  Chairman 
Howard Entman Vice Chairman  
Scott Raybuck  Assistant Secretary 
Jeff Riley  Assistant Secretary 
Kathy Moss Supervisor  

Also present were: 

Janice Eggleton Davis  District Manager 
Katie Buchanan  District Counsel  
Katie Hollis   General Manager   
Members of the Public  

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS  Roll Call 
Mr. Hoffman called the Audit Committee meeting to order and the Board 

members identified themselves.    

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Ranking of Audit Firm Proposals 
and Recommendation Selected 
Audit Firm  

• Discussion followed on only one proposal being submitted.  Ms. Davis noted it is 

from Grau & Associates.    

• Mr. Hoffman inquired if his is the firm that prepared the audit last year.   

o Ms. Davis noted they are not.  Grau & Associates did do the audit a couple 

of years back and there was an issue with all the IOTA foreclosures and 

having the SPE and they tried to increase your rate after the fact.  When 

you went out the next time you chose a different auditor.   

• Mr. Hoffman noted Grau is asking $8,000 per year and inquired if this is what 

they paid the other auditor?   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

2 

• Dr. Entman inquired if the current auditor declined or did they just not come back 

to us?   

o Ms. Davis noted they did not come back with a proposal.    

• Mr. Hoffman inquired if they are under any time pressure to do this?   

o Ms. Davis noted we would like to get an auditor engaged as soon as 

possible, but we can put it off for another month if you would like for us 

to get additional proposals.    

• Mr. Hoffman inquired if Ms. Hollis might know another auditor that might want 

to do this.   

o Ms. Hollis noted she does.   

o Mr. Hoffman suggested they postpone for another month.   

o Ms. Davis noted Inframark has a list of auditors that they know do CDDs 

and have government accounting experience.  We can also go to the one 

who currently does your audit.  Your fee last year was $3,725.   

• Discussion followed on postponing with Ms. Davis noting what she believes they 

need to do is reject all bids.   

On MOTION by Dr. Entman seconded by Mr. Riley, with 
all in favor, to reject all bids was approved.   

• Ms. Buchanan noted they will also want a motion for rebidding.   

On MOTION by Dr. Entman seconded by Mr. Riley, with 
all in favor, to rebid was approved.   

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Adjournment 
There being nothing further,  

On MOTION by Dr. Entman seconded by Mr. Riley with 
all in favor, the Audit Committee meeting was adjourned.  

_____________________________  __________________________ 
Janice Eggleton Davis  
Secretary Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
MARSHALL CREEK 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Marshall Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, December 19, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. at the 

Marshall Creek Amenity Center, 625 Palencia Club Drive, St. Augustine, Florida.   

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

Howard Entman  Chairman  
Jeff Riley Vice Chairman 
Howard Hoffman Assistant Secretary  
Kathy Moss Assistant Secretary  
Scott Raybuck  Assistant Secretary 

Also present were: 

Janice Eggleton Davis District Manager  
Katie Buchanan District Counsel  
Ryan Stilwell, P.E. District Engineer  
Katie Hollis General Manager  
Erin Gunia Director, Amenities & Strategic Planning 
Tom Salmon Director of Tennis 
Mary Heath Hines 
Members of the Public  

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the December 20, 
2018 Marshall Creek Board of Supervisors meeting.  

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call  
• Mr. Hoffman called the meeting to order and the Board and Staff identified 

themselves for the record.  

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters  
A.  Oath of Office  
Ms. Davis, a Notary Public of the State of Florida administered the oaths of office to 

Dr. Entman, Mr. Hoffman and Ms. Moss, copies of which is attached hereto and made part of 

the record. 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

2 

• Discussion followed on the oath with it being noted there are two: one is required by 

Chapter 190 and the other is required by the Department of State / Division of 

Elections.   

B. Election of Officers – Resolution 2019-3 
• Mr. Hoffman noted his understanding is there are two candidates for the Chairman 

position – Dr. Entman and himself.  Does anybody else want to be Chairman?   

• Discussion followed on nominations with Mr. Riley requesting each state what they 

plan to do in the next year that might be different.  

• Mr. Hoffman noted he does not plan to do anything differently.  He noted the most 

important thing the Board does is the budget.  The budget is done in the summer and 

it is very difficult if the Chairman is not here during the summer.  He does not feel 

you can do a good job on the phone and not be here to go out in the community when 

problems arise and not here to meet with Ms. Hollis when something has to be done.  

It is not that he is great, but he is here.  

• Dr. Entman noted they are one community and the fact that there is a CDD Board and 

a POA Board is an artifact of when Hines financed the project and used municipal 

bonds.  By virtue of that the CDD is a governmental body and is obligated to manage, 

protect and operate all of which was financed by the bonds.  The POA has the 

responsibility for homeowners and covenants.  After all is said and done, they are one 

community.  If it were not for the financing mechanisms Hines used, they would have 

one Board of Directors/Supervisors operating in the interest of the community.  It is 

important that both of these Board’s operate synergistically so they do not operate at 

cross purposes.  They are many projects that need to be done in the next few years 

that involve both the community property and individual properties and some of the 

things I would like to see done are those projects including the pressure washing of 

the streets and sidewalks which crosses lines between the community property and 

individual property.  Once again, the trimming of the street trees which involves some 

CDD work and some POA work.  There are several other projects along those lines 

that cross the boundary between CDD and POA and, yes, there are some legalities 

involved because the CDD is a municipality, but I would like to see us operating as 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

3 

one community rather than two different Boards only looking at what it is we are 

supposed to control.   

• Mr. Riley inquired if they are crossing anything with the idea of having the two 

Boards have a say so on how they address the street problems or other matters in the 

community.  

o Ms. Buchanan noted the POA and the CDD have different missions and 

responsibilities, both by their establishment and by statute.  It does not 

prohibit them from working together to solve problems, but they have 

different functions.   

o Mr. Riley noted in this case CDD assets may be requested to be used on POA 

issues.  They all pay for it as neighborhood members, but is it lawful and 

something that could be done?   

o Ms. Buchanan noted generally public funds should not be used on private 

property.  Although the POA is a community group it is still, on some level, a 

private organization.  That being said I will not tell you I have not had Boards 

vote to do it anyway because they think what is the risk.   

• Mr. Riley addressed the position of Chairman and rotation.    

• Ms. Moss inquired about the synergy of the two organizations going together and 

how it impacts the property management companies.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted it gets complicated.  The cleanest structure is a cost share 

agreement, but they would always need to be cautious that they are not 

spending public funds to benefit one part of the community more than another 

part of the community.   

Mr. Riley nominated Mr. Raybuck as Vice Chairman and Dr. 
Entman as Chairman and Dr. Entman seconded the 
nominations; with Mr. Riley, Dr. Entman and Mr. Raybuck 
voting aye and Mr. Hoffman and Ms. Moss voting nay, Dr. 
Entman was elected Chairman and Mr. Raybuck was elected 
Vice Chairman.   

• Dr. Entman noted Mr. Hoffman has served for eight years on the Board and is the 

senior Board member.  During the two years he has been Chair he has guided them 

through some really terrible times.  We had hurricanes and the boardwalk was torn up 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

4 

in the first hurricane and torn up worse in the second hurricane.  We had to deal with 

FEMA, our attorneys, and our management did a lot but Mr. Hoffman was the 

coordinator of the whole thing and according to the papers we just got, we are going 

to get back most of the money.  They owe him a debt of gratitude for the work he put 

in.  When he first came on the Board, there were always complaints about the 

amenities getting old.  During these two years they have put in a new splash pad and 

pickleball court.  As easy as these things seem, he knows these were hard battles to 

fight; they were difficult projects and Mr. Hoffman brought them through these.  

Recently they have had a management change.  It took a lot of time to go out and find 

management companies, they did not go to one they have ten.  He did his part on the 

POA, but Mr. Hoffman was the one who did the management review and interviews 

for the benefit of the Board.  As a Board they owe him a debt of gratitude and as a 

community they owe him a great deal of gratitude.  We are really fortunate that he 

was foolish enough to run for another four-year term so he will be on the Board for 

another four years so we do not lose the experience.  Thank you for serving as 

Chairman, do not go away.  [Applause] 

On MOTION by Mr. Riley seconded by Mr. Raybuck with all 
in favor, Resolution 2019-3 a resolution designating the 
officers of the Marshall Creek Community Development 
District with Howard Entman as Chairman, Scott Raybuck as 
Vice Chairman, Janice Eggleton Davis as Secretary, Stephen 
Bloom as Treasurer, Alan Baldwin as Assistant Treasurer and 
Howard Hoffman, Kathy Moss and Jeff Riley as Assistant 
Secretaries was adopted. 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Audience Comments  
• Ms. Jean Sachs noted she is impressed with the things that have been accomplished in 

the last few years.  She is a tennis player and was not a fan of having pickleball courts 

there.  She is impressed with pickleball.  When they had the grand opening, she 

played, and it is hard and fun.  Thank you for doing that.  With the usage, she has 

noticed how lovely the lighting is.  We have also talked with Mr. Salmon on the TAC 

about the lighting and she understands there has been some budget set aside for 

starting to implement LED lights on the tennis courts.  Based on her knowledge and 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

5 

research she came up with an estimate of eight or nine years to offset the cost in 

energy savings.   

o Dr. Entman asked Ms. Sachs to tell them what she would like to see them do.   

o Ms. Sachs noted she would like for them to go ahead start the retrofitting of 

the first couple of courts that were budgeted for.  The sooner they start 

investing in LED lighting, the sooner they will start reaping the savings.   

o Dr. Entman requested Ms. Sachs to get with Ms. Hollis to discuss.   

o Mr. Raybuck noted he has heard the lights are brighter and it is easier to lose 

the ball once the lights come up.  He would ask the tennis community to come 

together with Mr. Salmon to figure out if this is something they want to go 

ahead with or not, given it is going to affect play.  He will defer to the tennis 

pros as he has heard pluses and minuses talking with the tennis community.   

o Dr. Entman suggested if they are going to look at the lighting they look at 

tennis court lighting and not just if they will use halogen or LED.   

o Ms. Moss suggested tabling the proposal for now and place it on the agenda 

for the next meeting.  The Tennis Committee has met and are actively 

researching this very thing.   

o Discussion continued on the savings with LED lighting and bringing a 

proposal to the Board.   

• Mr. Paul Lentini noted he is a new resident and a certified lighting engineer.  He 

noted there are good, better, best out there as far as LEDs are concerned and they 

want to go to a national site to establish the criteria, testing and everything else for the 

LEDs.   

• Mr. Kemmish noted the reason he is here is speak with Mr. Stilwell to try to get an 

update on Regalo Road.   

• Mr. Stilwell noted he is working with the Mr. Phong Nguyen, Transportation 

Development Director inside Growth Management.  He is trying to get both Mr. 

Kemmish and Mr. Raybuck to attend so they have the history Mr. Kemmish has as 

well.  It looks like it will be after the first of the year and he will let them both know 

as soon as he has a date from the County.   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

6 

• Mr. Kemmish addressed walking the Loop noting when you get to the point of 

turning the corner on the North Loop and walking towards the guardhouse, where the 

cart path intersects the road and where the golf practice range exits onto the path – he 

is encountering many people on golf carts.  Being a private citizen now he has started 

asking if they know they are not supposed to be driving on here.  He gets a range of 

answers.  The bottom line is people do not know.  If you come off the driving range, 

there is no sign that says do not turn right with a golf cart.  You cannot expect them to 

go on it if they do not know.   

o Dr. Entman requested Ms. Hollis look at it with Mr. Hutcherson.   

• Mr. Kemmish noted there is an increase in the failure of the arm on the South Loop.   

o Ms. Hollis noted they thought it was hit by lightning.  They have been 

troubleshooting it and think they have a fix for it now.   

o Mr. Riley noted there is a problem with the gate and he does not know if it is 

electronic or the readers.  The guard said he believes some of the people are 

using handheld decals and their fingers are between the barcodes causing a 

problem.  He noted also with the golf cart issue he confronts people to ask 

why they are using the path and they say they did not know; they are with the 

club.  He does not know if they can say to the club that their carts are not to go 

beyond this area or something.   

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes  
A. November 14, 2018 Audit Committee and Regular Meeting  

On MOTION by Mr. Riley seconded by Mr. Hoffman, with all 
in favor, the minutes of the November 14, 2018 audit 
committee meeting were approved.

On MOTION by Mr. Hoffman seconded by Mr. Raybuck, with 
all in favor, the minutes of the November 14, 2018 regular 
meeting were approved. 

B. Discussion of Open Items 
• Ms. Hollis addressed the light shining into the owner’s window from the pickleball 

court.   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

7 

o Mr. Stilwell noted he does not have any information today and will make a 

note of it.   

• Ms. Hollis noted Palencia Village Drive was approved at the last meeting for the 

lighting.  The lighting has been ordered by Mr. Hutcherson and will move forward.  

The FPL conversion of lighting has been started and she believes completed.   

• She addressed the camera gate quotes noting she, Ms. Burns, Mr. Raybuck and Mr. 

Stephens of SCCDD had their first access meeting yesterday.  They are collecting the 

quotes and working together between the SCCDD and MCCDD to be sure the full 

access package between the three guardhouses is inline.   

• Dr. Entman inquired if they figured out where the FPL light conversions were done.   

o Ms. Hollis noted she did not.   

o Mr. Hoffman noted they were done on Calle Norte.   

o An unidentified speaker noted they are brighter, but they still have the 

obstruction from the trees that needs to be addressed.   

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Auditor Selection  
A. Consideration of Audit Committee Ranking Recommendations  
B Authorization to Enter into a Three Year Agreement with the Selected 

Auditor Firm 
This item tabled to January.    

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Engineer’s Report  
A. Ratification of Requisitions #74 - #79  

• Mr. Stilwell noted Requisitions #74 - #79.  Two are the final pay applications for the 

pickleball court, two are for the light poles, lighting and electric associated with the 

pickleball court and the other two are for our firm for processing the requisitions.  

The total is $43,449.   

On MOTION by Mr. Raybuck seconded by Mr. Hoffman, with 
all in favor, Requisitions #74 - #79 in the amount of $43,449 
were ratified.    

• Mr. Stilwell reported the pavement bids were received on Friday and they will bring 

it to the Board next month.  



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

8 

• Ms. Hollis requested the bids include the highly reflective striping now available, if 

possible.  

o Mr. Stilwell noted the striping on state roadways is a thermoplastic striping 

and they would not have spec’d this for local roads, but they can look at it 

what the additional cost would be.    

o Ms. Hollis addressed using reflectors for Palencia Village Drive noting it 

made a big difference.   

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  General Manager’s Operations 
Report  

• Ms. Hollis noted the report is in the package and she has been emailing it on a weekly 

basis with updates.  She outlined the report.   

A. SJSO Off-Duty Roving Patrol Violation 
• Ms. Hollis distributed the report, a copy of which is incorporated into the record.   

• Mr. Riley noted there were seven written citations which is the most he has seen.   

F.  FEMA Contract with Hines  
• Dr. Entman requested Ms. Heath update them on the FEMA claims for the 

boardwalk.  

o Ms. Heath reported there is a little over $274,000 in State review currently.  

There are nine steps to the State review, however, because invoices have 

already been approved for Hurricane Matthew they should move quickly.  

There is a little over $33,000 which has been approved in the small projects 

and are in State review.  There is $11,700 still out for FEMA approval.  She 

reported she will have to consult with both the FEMA and State representative 

regarding switching the authorized users title in the middle of the 

reimbursement efforts.  She is not sure whether this will negatively impact the 

process.   

o Dr. Entman inquired what this is about.   

o Ms. Heath noted the Chairman of the Board; Ms. Hoffman is the approved 

authorized signatory on all of grant approvals currently, so she will have to 

consult with them to see if that is going to set us back any.   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

9 

o Discussion followed on the change with Ms. Buchanan noting they can 

provide FEMA with the resolution as evidence they have changed.   

o A question was raised as to whether the Board can appoint Mr. Hoffman to be 

the signer as the project finishes out?  

o Ms. Buchanan noted they certainly can, but she does not know if that fixes 

Ms. Heath’s problem or not.  They can certainly delegate the authority to Mr. 

Hoffman to continue to act as the District’s representative in the process.   

On MOTION by Mr. Raybuck seconded by Mr. Riley, with all 
in favor, delegating authority to Mr. Hoffman to continue to act 
as the District’s representative for the Boardwalk damage 
reimbursement process was approved.   

• Dr. Entman outlined the Consultant Agreement to retain Ms. Heath to continue the 

reimbursement process.   

On MOTION by Mr. Hoffman seconded by Mr. Riley, with all 
in favor, the Consultant Agreement for Professional Services 
with HPPM was approved.    

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Manager’s Report 
• Ms. Davis noted she has nothing to report at this time, but she would be happy to take 

any questions.   

• Mr. Raybuck inquired where the October financials are?   

o Ms. Davis noted last month they met before the 15th of the month so they did 

not receive the prior month’s financials.  The November financials are 

cumulative and include the October and November check register and 

invoices.   

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Attorney’s Report  
• Ms. Buchanan noted she has nothing to report at this time, but would be happy to take 

any questions.  

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests 
A. Suggested Policy for Supervisor Authority (Hoffman)   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

10 

• Mr. Hoffman noted it seems to him the most important thing the Board should be 

doing is taking the big picture view, setting priorities and policies for the community 

and also the budget, but should stay out of the way of the Property Manager on day-

to-day operational matters.  They spent a lot of time and money bringing in the best 

firm they could find to do the property management and recruiting the best property 

manager.  So in terms of how he operated and how he thinks the Board ought to 

operate is that individual Board members should not be going to CDD staff and 

giving direction; they should work through Ms. Hollis.  Obviously, they live in the 

community and will see and talk to staff, but their suggestion should carry no more 

weight than any other resident.  If they think something should be done, they need to 

work with the Property Manager to not undercut her authority and her effectiveness.  

He would suggest that be the policy of the Board – Board members do not go to staff 

to give what might be perceived as direction.  Similarly, he does not believe any of 

them should be committing CDD resources to outside projects.  If they want to work 

with the POA on something or anybody on something it seems it should be the whole 

Board’s decision and not one person going out and making commitments of the CDD 

people, facilities, equipment or whatever on their own.  Likewise, he does not believe 

they should be going to contractors to negotiate terms, prices, conditions or anything 

else, because again, if they work around their Property Manager, they weaken their 

effectiveness considerably.  He would suggest it be the policy of the Board that no 

member do that.  Obviously, if they are working with a contractor like Ramco and 

Mr. Raybuck is the appointed person to do it, then he would be talking to them 

because the Board approved it beforehand rather someone going out on their own.  If 

someone needs to call Ms. Buchanan for a legal opinion or Mr. Stilwell for something 

on engineering he think it is a great idea to do that because they are great resources, 

but the whole Board, at some point, should know what the question and answer was.  

Again, so they are all informed and transparent and they are not individuals doing 

stuff on their own.  This would be his suggestion of a policy of what their authority is 

as Board members.  

Mr. Hoffman MOVED to approve the policy for Supervisor 
Authority.   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

11 

• Mr. Raybuck noted he agreed with everything Mr. Hoffman said, but it is not what is 

written in the policy provided.  He noted what is written is very restrictive and not in 

the spirit of what was just said.   

• Dr. Entman provided a handout regarding the primary responsibilities of the Board of 

Supervisors.  He noted the Board has been here for 12 years and will hopefully be 

here another 12 years.  The wording has to be very precise, otherwise six months 

from now somebody is pointing to the word no, thou shalt not.  There are only a 

couple of thou shalt nots that are absolute and even they are not totally absolute.  The 

word becomes critical if they are going to adopt some supervisor authority if there is 

a compelling need to adopt some supervisor authority.  He would ask that the Board 

consider it, sleep on it for a month and come up with what they think, if anything, and 

they can discuss it next month after everyone has given it more thought.   

• Ms. Moss inquired who penned this?   

o Dr. Entman noted he did.  She might want to pen something else and it is 

unfair to say do it right this very minute because we are going to take a vote in 

five minutes.  Come up with your own if there is a need.   

o Ms. Davis noted she needs a copy for the record.   

o Dr. Entman noted what he is trying to avoid is having the Board hamstring 

itself and end up tying itself in knots going down the road for no reason.  If 

there is a reason let us deal with the reason and not start passing global thou 

shalt nots unless Ms. Buchanan, Ms. Hollis, Ms. Davis or Mr. Stilwell are 

having a particular problem.  He inquired if Mr. Hoffman can give them a 

month?  

o Mr. Hoffman noted he absolutely can.  

• This item tabled to January.   

The prior motion died for lack of a second.   

B. Motions (Riley)  
• Mr. Riley noted some of his has been answered already.  He addressed his list noting 

the first thing he wanted to look at tonight was in a two-year cycle along with the 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

12 

newly elected being seated.  He does not want to turn it into a circus because they 

have an argument and someone says I want to make a motion for nomination of new 

officers and it has only been 30 or 60 days.  Is there a policy or directive that says 

these elections cannot be every meeting?   

o Ms. Buchanan noted the Rules of Procedure do not have that directive.  She 

noted she does not think it would be a circus; if someone makes a motion – 

there is a motion and it either dies for a second or there is a vote.   

o Mr. Riley noted he would not to see them go into a situation where every time 

there is a difference of opinions that somebody moves to try to restructure the 

Board in some way that it turns favorable for them.  This is why he is saying 

everyone should have their chance to plant their seeds and watch them grow 

before they are trampled before it has a chance to start.  Is it something they 

should consider – setting when elections can occur?   

o Ms. Buchanan noted there is no legal prohibition from them choosing to 

regulate themselves like that.  

o Mr. Riley noted if at the next meeting if everybody would like to consider that 

and maybe give it some thought as to stay the way they are now with 

nominations at any time or they come up with some time limit to say new 

Boards as seated get some time period to stay in place to do their business. 

o Mr. Hoffman noted this has never happened.   

o Mr. Riley noted there is always a first time and he is wondering if it might 

happen.   

o Ms. Perna inquired what if someone resigns or a change of Board.   

o Mr. Riley noted they would set it so if someone leaves the Board or on a 

structured basis that at such time there would be a change on the Board.   

o Dr. Entman suggested it be an open item for next meeting.     

o Ms. Moss noted she is not even sure she understands what he is suggesting.   

o Discussion continued on the possibility of someone floating nominations at a 

meeting.   

• Mr. Riley continued:   

o He agreed he liked the color of Mr. Hoffman’s statement and does not think 

any of them should be doing anything other than giving approval or 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

13 

disapproval to the performance of the management.  If someone is stepping 

out of bounds they need to have enough of a hammer to say it is not just going 

to be a phone call saying you are not supposed to do that under the scope of 

your position.  Is there something they do say to them – first time you get 

written up into the minutes, second time there are terms to remove or 

whatever.    

o Ms. Buchanan noted they do not have any authority to regulate each other’s 

behavior.  The Commission on Ethics is the Board that governs the conduct of 

elected officers.  Again, there is no precedent that she is aware of any CDD 

Board they represent adopting some sort of penalty system.   

o Discussion continued with Ms. Buchanan noting she does not know what type 

of sanctions or censure they could take.  They cannot strip someone of their 

position because they are elected by the public.  She does not think they have 

any authority to impose a monetary sanction.   

o Mr. Riley inquired if it is something that was addressed on the record at a 

meeting and it continuously happens should it be a referral to the Ethics 

Board.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted she will recirculate the Ethics handout.  Unless someone 

is abusing their position for personal gain or the gain of a relative, being a jerk 

does not constitute an ethics violation.  She noted she did not want to lecture 

them, but if they want to commit internally and to each other to act like 

professionals and put the interest of the community first, she thinks a lot of 

this does not have to be pinned down.  If they want to she would be happy to 

help, but she thinks they all have the same goals – work together, cooperate 

and behave in the best interest of the District, and continue to function in a 

healthy, wholesome way.   

• Mr. Riley continued addressing formalization of audience comment cards.  He noted 

when there is a lot in attendance and he does not hear all the comments by the person 

intended.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted she believes there has been a resolution authorizing the 

use of speaker cards and three minute limits, but it has never been enforced.   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

14 

o Mr. Hoffman noted he would leave it to the Chairman to run the meeting the 

way he wants to run it.   

• Mr. Riley addressed using emails that are linked to the community webpage.  He is 

looking at it as continuity of records and the fact that it is an efficient way of keeping 

government records in the government.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted it is currently their individual responsibility to make sure 

CDD emails are preserved.  If there is a problem with that and they are unable 

to produce records in response to a records request the Supervisor, not the 

District, would be subject to any fines or penalties attached.  She thinks 

having a CDD segregated account can be a wonderful thing if they remember 

to check it.  

o Mr. Hoffman noted he will not use it.  He has been doing it for eight years and 

wants to use his own email address.   

o Ms. Moss noted she choose to do and it does not seem to be very cumbersome 

for her.   

o Dr. Entman noted the rule is if he deletes an official email, it is gone and he 

does not go to jail.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted that is not the rule.  

o Dr. Entman inquired if he gets an email and in cleaning out his email he 

deletes it, if there is a records request is he liable to produce it.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted in the hypothetical he is presenting any emails that 

concern public records or CDD matters are supposed to be preserved by the 

Supervisor and should not be deleted.  Her guess is that they adopted a 

retention policy that says they have to keep everything forever.  The State has 

different retention policies that would allow minor communications to be 

deleted pretty quickly.   

o Ms. Davis noted she thinks they adopted the State policy.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted then there would be some leeway, but it is their 

responsibility to understand the policy and preserve emails in that way.    

• Mr. Riley addressed the traffic flow, use of radar signs, how fast they can determine 

where they have problems.  He is not that familiar with the North Loop, but it does 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

15 

not appear they have traffic flow problems like Sebastian Square and Oak Common.  

Working with Mr. Stilwell and Mr. Hutcherson maybe they can look at some of it.  

He further addressed parking areas and who owns them and if they ever did the video 

recording of the tennis lot/swimming pool lot so they know how bad it is at night.  

The installation of no parking red curbs within 30 feet of stop signs.  Use of speed 

bumps.   

o Mr. Hoffman noted it is his understanding that the County has a policy on 

speed calming devices and they cannot just put speed bumps wherever they 

want plus the cost associated with them.  

• Mr. Riley addressed the operations of the gates noting people tailgating through the 

gates.   

• Mr. Riley noted he is always looking to scrub the budget and addressed the 

decorating costs for this year and if they would be able to reduce them next year.   

o Mr. Hoffman noted they spent $10 per family this year to buy permanent 

decorations for the fitness center, tennis facility and gates.  Those are 

permanent decorations and the only ongoing costs is electricity.  They use 

staff to hang them.   

• Mr. Hoffman noted they previously discussed parking on Market Street by the corner 

of Palencia Club Drive.  He thinks they should put no parking signs on at least one 

side of this area.   

o Dr. Entman noted hopefully it resolve itself next month when the Engineer, 

Property Manager and whoever else gets together with the County to get a 

final resolution.   

o Mr. Hoffman noted he does not think it will keep people from parking there.  

o Dr. Entman inquired if they can have no parking signs?   

o Mr. Stilwell noted he does not see any reason why they could not.  

o Mr. Raybuck addressed lumping it in with a parking solution and letting 

people know where they can park.   

o Dr. Entman suggested it be an open item for next month.   

• Mr. Raybuck addressed the agenda packages arriving at 5:00 p.m. on Monday and 

requested they receive them earlier.  The other request is that it would be nice to have 



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

16 

a one-page item that says what all the tabs are.  Most are straightforward but simply 

saying the Budget Committee will review the book and this is the only one we 

received.   

o Discussion continued on how the tabs correspond to the agenda.   

• Dr. Entman noted they must get the books on the Thursday before the meeting.   

o Ms. Davis noted in the past the books are shipped on Wednesday for second 

day delivery on Friday.  If they would like, it can be made overnight for 

Thursday.  This month there was a delay with several items that came in late, 

such that they did not get it out on time.  She apologized for the delay; they 

were supposed to be sent overnight on Thursday and it did not happen.  It is 

not typical; typically, they receive them on Friday because they are always 

shipped on Wednesday for delivery on Friday.  If they would like a change to 

Thursday delivery, they can do so.   

o Mr. Riley inquired about the impact of the overnight costs?   

o Ms. Davis noted there is a cost to do it overnight as opposed to second day.   

o Ms. Buchanan noted a meeting or two ago there was a serious discussion 

regarding them not considering any item that was not in the agenda.  Staff has 

been struggling to balance it to make sure you have a very complete package 

with no walk-ons and make sure you have it on time.  If you want it that day 

and we can cut things off.   

o Ms. Davis noted there will be a lot of things that are not in their agenda.  This 

meeting we left out the roving patrol report; Ms. Hollis brought it to you 

today.  There were several things we had to ask for with part of the problem 

being because of the transition and new people are doing things; I do not 

expect it to be a problem the next time.   

o Dr. Entman noted they can discuss offline; the critical things they need are the 

items upon which they have to act.  If something is for information only, then 

he does not know that they need it a week ahead of time.  If there is a 

resolution, a contract or an issue.   

o Ms. Davis noted they will cut off Monday at noon and what they do not have 

will not be in the package.   



December 19, 2018 Marshall Creek CDD 

17 

o Dr. Entman addressed voting on critical items even if provided at the last 

minute.  He noted there is no absolute to this, but clearly getting it on Monday 

at 5:00 p.m. is not good.  

o Ms. Davis noted it will be delivered on Thursday’s going forward, noting 

unfortunately because it is residential FedEx delivers sometime before 8:00 

p.m.  

o It was suggested the agenda packages be delivered to Ms. Hollis and the 

Board members can pick them up at the MCCDD Amenity Center.  Ms. Davis 

noted if this is the direction of the Board, they can do that.  No final direction 

was given. 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of the November 2018 
Financial Reports and Approval of 
October through November 2018 
Check Register and Invoices  

• Dr. Entman noted going forward if they have a question it would be good to speak 

with Ms. Davis or Ms. Hollis or whoever, offline rather than having each question 

this or that check.  Unless they think it something worthy of discussion for the entire 

Board.   

On MOTION by Mr. Raybuck seconded by Mr. Hoffman, with 
all in favor, the November 2018 financials were accepted and 
the October through November 2018 Check Register and 
Invoices were approved.   

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment  
There being no further business,  

On MOTION by Mr. Riley seconded by Mr. Hoffman, with all 
in favor, the meeting adjourned.   

______________________________ __________________________ 
Janice Eggleton Davis Howard Entman   
Secretary Chairman 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fifth Order of Business 

  



5A 















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5B. 
  



 

MARSHALL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

Evaluation Criteria 
 
 
1.  Personnel.  (20 Points) 

E.g., geographic locations of the firm’s headquarters, adequacy and capabilities of key 
personnel, including the project manager and field supervisor; whether the entity/individual is 
a certified minority business enterprise, present ability to manage this project; evaluation of 
existing work load; proposed staffing levels, etc. 

 
2.  Proposer’s Experience and Available Equipment.  (15 Points) 

E.g., past record and experience of the respondent in self performing similar projects; past 
performance for this District in other contracts; character, integrity, reputation of respondent, 
etc. and equipment type; age and condition; quantity of equipment available; and number of 
trained operators. 

 
3.  Understanding of Scope of Work.     (20 Points) 

E.g. Demonstration of the Proposer’s understanding of the project requirements.  
 
4.  Schedule.  (20 Points) 
 
 Points available for schedule will be allocated as follows: 

15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the Bid Form with the most expedited 
construction schedule (i.e., the fewest number of days) for completing the work. All other Bid 
Forms will receive a percentage of this amount based upon the difference between the 
Proposer's time proposal and the most expedited construction schedule.  
5 Points are allocated for the Proposer's ability to credibly complete the project within the 
Proposer's schedule and demonstrate on-time performance.  

 
5.  Price. (25 Total Points) 
 

Points available for price will be allocated as follows: 
15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the lowest cost Bid Form for 
completing the work. All other Proposers will receive a percentage of this amount based upon 
the difference between the Proposer's bid and the low bid.  
10 Points are allocated for the reasonableness of unit prices and balance of bid.  

Total Points         100 Points 

 
 
 



BID ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT COST COST QTY UNIT UNIT COST COST Difference (Low Bid vs High Bid)
1 Palencia Village Drive (remove asphalt, rework base, replace asphalt) 10,391 SY 12.94$        134,459.54$           10,391 SY 16.98$           176,439.18$           (41,979.64)$                                               

2 North Loop Pkwy (mill and resurface) 4,882 SY 11.09$        54,141.38$             4,882 SY 13.49$           65,858.18$             (11,716.80)$                                               

3 West End Street (mill and resurface) 256 SY 23.42$        5,995.52$                256 SY 46.38$           11,873.28$             (5,877.76)$                                                 

4 Northlawn Drive (mill and resurface) 189 SY 29.76$        5,624.64$                1,089 SY 20.49$           22,313.61$             (16,688.97)$                                               

5 North End Street (mill and resurface) 1,345 SY 9.88$           13,288.60$             1,345 SY 18.38$           24,721.10$             (11,432.50)$                                               

6 Palencia Club Drive (mill and resurface) 756 SY 11.69$        8,837.64$                756 SY 25.48$           19,262.88$             (10,425.24)$                                               

7 Vale Drive  (mill and resurface) 667 SY 23.90$        15,941.30$             667 SY 27.02$           18,022.34$             (2,081.04)$                                                 

8 Vale Drive (mill and resurface) 400 SY 27.95$        11,180.00$             400 SY 38.83$           15,532.00$             (4,352.00)$                                                 

BASE BID TOTAL: 18,886 249,468.62$           354,022.57$           (104,553.95)$                                             

BID ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT COST COST QTY UNIT UNIT COST COST
10 Additional Work (mill and resurface 1.5" S‐III)

1‐100 SY 383.60$      NA 1‐100 SY 102.66$         NA 280.94$                                                      
101‐500 SY 86.82$        NA 101‐500 SY 31.61$           NA 55.21$                                                         
>500 SY 39.30$        NA >500 SY 26.48$           NA 12.82$                                                         

11 Additional Work (remove and replace 1.5" S‐I,  rework base)
1‐100 SY 383.35$      NA 1‐100 SY 134.43$         NA 248.92$                                                      

101‐500 SY 86.56$        NA 101‐500 SY 50.92$           NA 35.64$                                                         
>500 SY 39.61$        NA >500 SY 42.60$           NA (2.99)$                                                         

12 Additional Work (Cart Path‐Mill and Resurface or R&R, 1.25" S‐III) 1‐100 SY 523.36$      NA 1‐100 SY 122.89$         NA 400.47$                                                      
101‐500 SY 121.94$      NA 101‐500 SY 49.89$           NA 72.05$                                                         
>500 SY 50.80$        NA >500 SY 42.10$           NA 8.70$                                                          

Notes:

1
2 Preferred has unit prices significantly high compared to industry standards
3 The above bust (note #1) was not significant enough to change the low bid.

MCCDD Pavement Rehab 2019

Bid Evaluation

Unit Price Work

Preferred Materials Duval Asphalt

Bust in quantitiy on Northlawn Dr- Preferred Materials "Northlawn Dr ", 189 SY opposed to Duval Asphalt's 1,089 SY)



Marshall Creek CDD 

Request for Proposals – 2019 Pavement Rehabilitation Project 

Evaluation Form 

 

Criteria  Possible 
Points 

Preferred 
Materials 

Duval 
Asphalt 

Personnel ‐ Ability and adequacy of the 
professional personnel employed by each 
contractor  

20 pts 
   

Proposer’s Experience & Available 
Equipment 

15 pts 
 

   

Understanding of Scope of Work  20 pts 
   

Schedule  20 pts 
 

20 pts 
 

20 pts 

Price  ‐ 
 
‐ 

 
‐ 

      Lowest bid (Full points) 
      All other bids percentage of low bid 

15 pts 
 

15 pts 
 

7 pts 

      Reasonableness of unit prices  10 pts 
 
 

 
 

Total  100 pts     

 

 









































































































 



























































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sixth Order of Business 



Marshall Creek CDD 
Operations Report for January CDD Meeting 

Operations Management Team 
• Paperwork has been completed for a SNAP permit.  This permit will allow us to have several gator trappers that will 

remove community gators when reported.   
• Email sent to Ryan on 1/3 for an update on our parking meeting and the pickleball light shield.   
• Scheduled a meeting with our account manager at Republic for 1/7.  I will review tennis center recycling options with 

her.  These options will be given to the Tennis Committee and Tom. 
• An email was sent to the Tennis Committee on 1/3 regarding the tennis court light information they are putting 

together for the supervisors to review.  I have requested that they send me all their questions they need answered 
by Roy.  As a result of the email, we have decided to schedule a meeting with group in person.  Roy will invite his 
lightening expert.  I have communicated to the committee that all the information should be provided in advance to 
me to ensure it is included in the supervisor’s monthly package and the supervisors have time to review the 
information and ask questions.  I anticipate this will occur in February or March.   

• Communication has taken place with Mark at Clearwater.  This is our vendor that services our ponds.  An inspection 
will take place to ensure all our fish barriers are in place and working.  This will ensure when we are stocked with 
grass carp that the carp do not navigate between ponds.   

• South gate reader has been looked at by an outside contractor other than Ramco.  Another contractor will also look 
at it on Monday, 1/7.  Roy will have the internal lenses cleaned as it appears there is nothing actual wrong with the 
dual beam reader.  Updates to follow.   

• Suggestion:  I suggest we add an additional car separator at each entry.  This will allow each barcode to be read 
properly and continue the vehicle traffic at a slow speed.    

• The Sweetwater CDD Board voted to eliminate the Door King box.  This will result in less confusion at the Las 
Calianas entrance.  They will extend their guard hours by one hour a day and the other hours will be on the virtual 
guard system.   

• I, Scott Raybuck, Jill Burns and Stephen Handler will hold an operations meeting with Arthur from Ramco on 1/10.  
This will be routine and occur every 4-6 weeks.   

Updates from meeting on 12/19: 

• South gate reader not working:  I have spoken with Ramco this morning and they are going to have a supervisor, at 
no additional cost to us, complete testing to troubleshoot the reader.  After reviewing the reader today, I will note this 
is not Ramco’s equipment, but ours.  It is a dual beam reader and top of the line.  Periodically (twice a month), the 
lens should be lightly cleaned with a cloth to remove dust.  Arthur will ensure this is done.  Barcodes have a long 
useful life, although when not applied properly to a vehicle or placed on a piece of cardboard or CD case it could 
shorten that useful life.   

• Additional CDD CPA recommendation from my favorite CPA (that only does 718 and 720).  I have called Todd 
Neville and communicated that I am sending his information to Janice. 

Neville Wainio CPAs 
Address: 5 Arredondo Ave, St. Augustine, FL 32080 

Phone: (904) 586-0048 

Phone: Email:  tneville@nevillewainio.com

• FPL light conversions are completed for the FPL lights…. Although the question is, “where are these lights 
located”?  I will inquire to see if Roy has a map that shows what lights are the districts and what lights are FPLs.   



Action Items from meeting on 12/19: 

• Signage for path near putting range that communicates no motorized vehicles.  It was also communicated that 
the Golf Club is communicating that this is ok.  Do we need signage?  Will signage help?   

• The Tennis Committee will have concrete data for the Supervisors to review in January regarding the Tennis 
LED light conversions.  I will include myself and Tom in the updates. 

• Ryan is looking into a shield for the Pickleball lights.  If Ryan needs assistance, we can help fabricate a shield.   

Other updates outside the meeting: 
• Our website has been audited.  Janice has forwarded the results to Evan with neighborhood publications.  Evan 

will send a proposal to get our 16.5% failure in compliance.  I thought this percentage was excellent.   
• Ryan has sent me a draft community map for myself and engineering.  I have requested a few additional items 

are added to the map.  He will also be highlighting the areas the CDD is responsible for.   
• January shift schedule has been sent out for SJSO to sign-up.   
• Working on quotes to provide to Tom and the Tennis Committee for recycling at the Tennis Center.   
• I had a wonderful meeting with Scott Raybuck, Jill Burns and Stephen Handler from Sweetwater Creek CDD this 

week.  We are actively working on the following: 
1. Eliminating the Door King box at the Las Calianas Gate (which is only in use a few hours a day) 
2. Barrier Arm Quotes for Las Calianas  
3. Add car separators for Las Calianas  
4. Cameras for all gates 
5. Evaluation of Las Calianas loops and operators  

• Office signage has been ordered for outside the management offices and the amenities front doors. 
• All trees along Palencia Village Drive are being lifted by our in-house staff.   

Ongoing: 
• ADP upgrade is in the implementation phase and will save all the department head multiple hours every other 

week.   
• Reviewing pool furniture quotes with Erin so the new furniture arrives by March 2019 
• Parking Issues:  I am working with Ryan on meeting with the planning department.  We will have the planning 

department confirm Ryan’s findings and then have legal draft a letter.  Ryan and I exchanged emails on 12/10 
and concluded that Ryan will have better luck scheduling a meeting with the department after the first of the 
year.   

• Approved Palencia Village Drive lights have been ordered and I will communicate an ETA for installation once 
received.   

• Addressing homeowner CDD questions and issues daily  

Landscape Maintenance 
• Hand watering throughout community 
• Conducted annual general maintenance to all pumps and wells 
• Coordinated with an outside vendor to move an irrigation pump, line, and all electrical components  
• Bed and turf weeds 
• Replaced an irrigation control panel/box 
• Repaired a 4’ and a 3” mainline 
• Fertilized shrubs 
• Applied a plant protectant to St Augustine turf for disease 
• Coordinated with outside vendor for four loads of pine straw and spreading service 
• Started raising oak trees starting with ones blocking the view of street lights and signs 
• Started winter projects.  Wood line cut backs still in progress 



Engineering 
General Property 

• Installed holiday decorations  
• Transferred files to new storage facility 
• Helped PMO vacate and transition to the Amenity Center 
• Performed street light inspections and repairs 
• Performed annual HVAC PM’s 
• Repaired two street signs 
• Restored function at the Vale Drive speed sign 
• Re faced the fountain wall with tile 
• Repairs to McKenzie playscape from vandalism 
• Pressure washed all Playscapes 
• Safety Inspected Boardwalks  
• Street sweep 
• Investigated sewer drain issue at 184 Spanish Marsh Drive 
• Installed podium heaters at both guardhouses. 

 Amenity Center 

• Replaced the iron gate security latch 

• Daily pool maintenance including Sweetwater 

• Installed variable frequency drive for the Adult pool pump 

• Assisted in moving from property management offices 

• Replaced copy room floor tile 

• Trouble shoot steam room noise 

• Fabricated a portable pool vacuum/ water transfer system  

Swim and Fitness Facilities 
• Two successful community events: Tree Lighting Ceremony and Winter Celebration 
• Exterior Window Cleaning of Fitness Center 
• Employee Holiday Celebration 
• Organized new classes, orientations and seminars for the new year 
• Continued research on new pool furniture for the Amenity Center Family Pool 
• Dog Park was completed and opened 
• Small repairs to cardio technology 
• The front and back entrance of the Fitness Center was pressure washed 
• Hired people for the Fitness desk 
• Communicated with vendors for the upcoming events 
• Continued working with the Jacksonville Symphony to get the Symphony Series going for the neighborhood 
• Ordered office and cleaning supplies 
• Had several meetings and conversations with residents and staff 

Tennis Center 
• Starting preparations on our upcoming Social, “New Year’s Social with a Twist” to be held on Friday, Jan 25th… 
• Held two very successful Junior Camps over the Holiday break…Had between 40/50 juniors participate in the 

camps… 
• Continue to finish all our maintenance projects, clean awnings & patio…replace windscreens & nets where 

needed… 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6A. 
  





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6B. 
  



Palencia – Homeowners Association

Security Report 

December 17th, 2018- December 31st, 2018 

Report Prepared by: 

ARTHUR GRUBER, DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 

A.GRUBER@RAMCOPROTECTIVE.COM 

386-569-9184 

RAMCO PROTECTIVE SERVICES OFFICES JACKSONVILLE

The information contained within this report is considered 
proprietary and confidential to the {Palencia HOA}. Inappropriate 
and unauthorized disclosure of this report or portions of it could 
result in significant damage or loss to the {Palencia HOA}. This 
report should be distributed to individuals on a Need-to-Know basis 
only. Paper copies should be locked up when not in use. Electronic 
copies should be stored offline and protected appropriately. 



Page 2 

CMS System Update

The C.M.S system is fully functioning and operational.  

• There is nothing further to report at this time.  

Gate Entry Log – 12/17/2018- 12/31/2018 

• C.M.S Entries – (6994) 

• C.M.S Quick Log Entries – (99) 

EMS/Fire Rescue/Police Entry- 12/17/2018- 12/31/2018 

RAMCO Protective Services has recorded the following:  

• 12/21/2018 at 9:22 p.m., St Johns County Sheriff Officers 

entered the community. Location and reason are unknown, 

lights and sirens are not present.  

• 12/29/2018 at 8:49 p.m., St Johns County Sheriffs Officer 

entered the community. Location and reason are unknown, 

lights and sirens are not present.  

Incidents Report Summary– 12/17/2018- 12/31/2018 

RAMCO Protective Services has recorded the following 

incidents/complaints: 

• Nothing to report at this time. 



RAMCO Recommendations:  

• No current recommendations 

Leadership Team 

• Director of Operation – Arthur Gruber 

Cell- 386-569-9184 / Email - a.gruber@ramcoprotective.com

• Captain N. Wooden 

Cell- 904-446-5345 

NOTES: 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6C. 
  



Time

0:00

1:00

2:00

3:00

4:00

5:00

6:00

7:00

8:00

9:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

19:00

20:00

21:00

22:00

23:00

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

Palencia Traffic Pattern Chart
12/17/2018- 12/31/2018

Traffic Flow



Time # of cars

0:00 20

1:00 4

2:00 15

3:00 10

4:00 10

5:00 10

6:00 50

7:00 380

8:00 600

9:00 567

10:00 507

11:00 497

12:00 540

13:00 490

14:00 496

15:00 642

16:00 710

17:00 600

18:00 354

19:00 240

20:00 180

21:00 150

22:00 110

23:00 30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6D. 

 
  



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 1 of 3



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 2 of 3



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 3 of 3



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 1 of 4



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 2 of 4



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 3 of 4



Charts Report

Printed 1/9/2019 Page 4 of 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ninth Order of Business 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9A. 
  



Suggested Policy for Supervisor Authority 

The primary responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors are to (1) set policies, (2) determine 

priorities, and (3) approve a budget.  The primary responsibilities of the Property Manager 

are to (1) run the day to day operations of the community, (2) manage the CDD employees, 

and (3) interface with the contractors, suppliers, attorneys, District Engineer, and District 

Manager. 

No board member should give a directive to a CDD employee directly.  All suggestions should go 

through the Property Manager and CDD employees should refer all comments from board 

members to the Property Manager. 

No board member should commit the use of CDD facilities, equipment, or employees for non-

CDD projects, including on private property, for the POA, and for sub-associations, unless 

approved by the board. 

No board member should contact our attorney or district engineer without informing the other 

board members of the issue and information received. 

No board member should contact any potential supplier or contractor to negotiate terms or 

costs without prior board approval.  All contracts should go through the Property Manager. 

No board member should speak for the entire board unless the subject has been voted on in a 

previous meeting. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9B. 
  





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tenth Order of Business 
  



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Supervisors, Marshall Creek CDD

FROM: Fernand Thomas, Accountant II

CC: Janice Eggleton Davis, District Manager; Alan Baldwin, Accounting Manager

DATE: January 4, 2019

SUBJECT: December Financial Report

Attached, please find the December 2018 Financial Report. During your review, please keep in mind that the goal is for revenue to meet or

exceed the year-to-date budget and for expenditures to be at or below the year-to-date budget. To assist with your review, an overview is

provided below. Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at fernand.thomas@inframark.com.

General Fund:

Total Revenues for the General Fund are at approximately 39.5% of the adopted budget and 88.3% of the year to date budget.

Total Expenditures through month-end are at approximately 19.3% of the adopted budget and 82% of the YTD Budget.

Field:

• Capital Outlay: Purchase of 2010 Ford F-350 $14,885, Truck Mount Pressure Washer $5,521, and F-350 Conversion to flatbed

$4,444 and National Tank $1,112.

Landscape Services

• Payroll Benefits: Monthly premium from Zenith Insurance Company are higher in beginning of the fiscal year.

• ProfServ-Info Technology: Sonic Walls for $1,565.

• Communication-Telephone: Services are higher than budgeted.

• R&M- Building: Purchase of misc. janitorial supplies and other misc. supplies.

• R&M-Mulch: Purchase of 4 Trailers Pine straw $25,502.

• R&M-Pump Station: Service call for Flownet Pump $ 1,035, and pump relocation $ 3,785.

• Misc.-Employee Meals: Employee appreciation $ 2,160.



Operation & Maintenance:

• Payroll-Shared Personnel: Less staff is used during winter months so actual payroll is lower.

• ProfServ-Field Management: Accruals for First Service Residential December management services.

• Rentals General: 13 month’s rental storage space.

• Misc.-Connection Computer: Due to a new management company, Misc. Computer supplies $8,236.

Swimming Pool:

• Payroll Benefits: Monthly premium from Zenith Insurance Company are higher in the beginning of the year.

• R&M-Pools: Sand Filter emergency repairs $5,793, Pool Vacuum $2,053 and Sand Filter A/C $ 1,200, Purchase of Flow meter

$ 4,670 and misc. supplies.

• Misc.-Employee Meals: Employee appreciation $ 1,260.

Tennis Court:

• Payroll Benefits: Monthly premium from Zenith Insurance Company are higher in the beginning of the fiscal year.

• ProfServ-Info Tech: Club Connect $1,251, Office software renewal $740, Sonic Walls for tennis facility and service call $ 1,354.

• Misc.-Employee Meals: Purchase of gift cards $ 662. and Employee appreciation $ 800.

• Teaching Supplies: Misc. purchase of racquets, balls and sonic pro edger.

Balance Sheet Accounts:

Assessment Receivable: Delinquent Assessments from prior year.

Allow-Doubtful Collections: Delinquent Assessments from prior years.

Due from other Districts: Three months of Payroll Shared Personnel due from Sweetwater Creek CDD, expected payment by 1/31/19.

Prepaid Items: Employees’ benefits paid in advance.

Accounts Payable: Invoices received that will be paid in following month.

Accrued Expenses: Monthly Utilities, Contracts, and expenses known that will be paid in following month.

Deferred Revenue: prior year Delinquent Assessments.



MARSHALL CREEK

Prepared by

Community Development District

Financial Report

December 31, 2018



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page

Balance Sheet - All Funds ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..1-2

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..3-11

General 004 -2002 Area Capital Reserves Fund ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..12

Series 2002 Debt Service Fund ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..13

Series 2015 Debt Service Fund …………………………… 14

Series 2016 Debt Service Fund …………………………… 15

Series 2015 A Construction Fund ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..16

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments Collections ………………………………………………………………………………17-19

Bank Reconciliation ………………………….. 20-22

Cash and Investment Report ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..23

ADP Invoice Approval Listing ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..24-26

Series 2015 A Construction Report ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..27

Check Register ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..28-35

Table of Contents

Report Date: 1/9/2019



MARSHALL CREEK

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

December 31, 2018

Community Development District



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2018

Governmental Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

GENERAL

FUND

GENERAL

004 - 2002

AREA

CAPITAL

RESERVES

FUND

SERIES 2002

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

SERIES 2015

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

SERIES 2016

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

SERIES 2015 A

CONSTRUCTION

FUND TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash - Checking Account 3,107,734$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 3,107,734$

Assessments Receivable 91,002 - 30,559 26,364 1,701 - 149,626

Allow-Doubtful Collections (54,858) - (17,698) (14,892) (960) - (88,408)

Due From Other Districts 89,024 - - - - - 89,024

Due From Other Funds - 73,933 600,791 458,864 35,355 - 1,168,943

Investments:

Money Market Account 640,515 - - - - - 640,515

Construction Fund A - - - - - 87,710 87,710

Prepayment Account - - 693 - 1,946 - 2,639

Prepayment Account A - - - 12,990 - - 12,990

Reserve Fund - - 50,118 - 31,330 - 81,448

Reserve Fund A - - - 493,000 - - 493,000

Revenue Fund - - 9,164 - 1,532 - 10,696

Revenue Fund A - - - 67,366 - - 67,366

Prepaid Items 9,102 - - - - - 9,102

TOTAL ASSETS 3,882,519$ 73,933$ 673,627$ 1,043,692$ 70,904$ 87,710$ 5,832,385$

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 7,370$ -$ -$ -$ -$ (741)$ 6,629$

Accrued Expenses 131,216 - - - - - 131,216

Deferred Revenue 35,584 559 12,862 11,472 741 - 61,218

Due To Other Funds 1,168,202 - - - - 741 1,168,943

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,342,372 559 12,862 11,472 741 - 1,368,006

1



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2018

Governmental Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

GENERAL

FUND

GENERAL

004 - 2002

AREA

CAPITAL

RESERVES

FUND

SERIES 2002

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

SERIES 2015

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

SERIES 2016

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

SERIES 2015 A

CONSTRUCTION

FUND TOTAL

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items 9,102 - - - - - 9,102

Restricted for:

Debt Service - - 660,765 1,032,220 70,163 - 1,763,148

Capital Projects - - - - - 87,710 87,710

Assigned to:

Operating Reserves 600,151 - - - - - 600,151

Reserves - Field 440,675 - - - - - 440,675

Reserves - Gate 7,838 - - - - - 7,838

Reserves - Landscape 39,986 - - - - - 39,986

Reserves - Park 32,900 - - - - - 32,900

Reserves - Swim&Fitness Clubh 18,558 - - - - - 18,558

Reserves - Swimming Pools 132,635 - - - - - 132,635

Reserves - Tennis Courts 24,853 - - - - - 24,853

Unassigned: 1,233,449 73,374 - - - - 1,306,823

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 2,540,147$ 73,374$ 660,765$ 1,032,220$ 70,163$ 87,710$ 4,464,379$

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 3,882,519$ 73,933$ 673,627$ 1,043,692$ 70,904$ 87,710$ 5,832,385$

2



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 12,000$ 3,000$ 2,763$ (237)$ 1,000$ 836$ (164)$

Shared Rev - Other Local Units 476,151 - - - 39,679 - (39,679)

Interlocal Agreement - Other 356,097 89,025 89,024 (1) 29,675 29,675 -

Other Physical Environment Rev 15,000 3,750 2,000 (1,750) 1,250 - (1,250)

S/F Program Fees 37,000 - - - - - -

S/F Swimming Program Fees 2,000 - - - - - -

S/F Activity Fees 200 200 445 245 - - -

S/F Other Revenues 1,750 - 1,298 1,298 - 459 459

S/F Rental Fees 2,500 625 550 (75) 208 - (208)

S/F Snack Bar Revenue 500 125 - (125) 42 - (42)

Tennis Merchandise Sales 14,000 2,800 4,703 1,903 1,000 2,098 1,098

Tennis Special Events&Socials 1,000 250 - (250) - - -

Tennis Lessons & Clinics 150,000 37,500 55,052 17,552 12,500 16,518 4,018

Tennis Ball Machine Rental Fee 3,500 875 1,245 370 292 1,200 908

Tennis Membership 40,000 20,000 22,522 2,522 - 897 897

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 3,326,168 1,848,619 1,581,650 (266,969) 1,108,845 976,137 (132,708)

Special Assmnts- CDD Collected 11,994 2,999 4,838 1,839 1,000 - (1,000)

Special Assmnts- Discounts (99,785) (73,945) (63,484) 10,461 (29,872) (39,000) (9,128)

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 1,100 276 403 127 92 90 (2)

Gate Bar Code/Remotes 3,200 800 1,060 260 267 305 38

Impact Fee 30,000 7,500 13,064 5,564 2,500 4,209 1,709

TOTAL REVENUES 4,384,375 1,944,399 1,717,133 (227,266) 1,168,478 993,424 (175,054)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

3



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

EXPENDITURES

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 6,500 1,625 1,171 454 541 38 503

ProfServ-Arbitrage Rebate 1,200 1,200 - 1,200 - - -

ProfServ-Dissemination Agent 3,000 3,000 - 3,000 3,000 - 3,000

ProfServ-Engineering 20,000 5,000 5,013 (13) 1,667 3,956 (2,289)

ProfServ-Legal Services 75,000 18,750 9,121 9,629 6,250 4,276 1,974

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 60,320 15,080 15,080 - 5,027 5,027 -

ProfServ-Special Assessment 12,480 12,480 12,480 - 12,480 12,480 -

ProfServ-Trustee Fees 11,400 - 2,625 (2,625) - - -

Auditing Services 3,725 - - - - - -

Postage and Freight 3,500 876 399 477 292 181 111

Insurance - General Liability 28,012 14,006 19,759 (5,753) 14,006 6,587 7,419

Printing and Binding 4,000 1,000 1,069 (69) 333 435 (102)

Legal Advertising 3,000 750 530 220 250 94 156

Miscellaneous Services 6,000 1,500 2,793 (1,293) 500 640 (140)

Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 66,517 36,972 30,362 6,610 14,775 18,743 (3,968)

Shared Exp - Other Local Units 516,557 - - - - - -

Office Supplies 500 126 127 (1) 42 44 (2)

Annual District Filing Fee 175 175 175 - - - -

Total Administration 821,886 112,540 100,704 11,836 59,163 52,501 6,662

4



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Other Public Safety

Payroll-Benefits 6,915 1,729 1,257 472 576 410 166

Payroll-Engineering 38,349 9,587 6,493 3,094 3,196 2,001 1,195

Payroll-Gate Maintenance 3,058 765 408 357 255 147 108

Contracts-Security Services 264,272 66,068 55,144 10,924 22,023 20,275 1,748

Contracts-Roving Patrol 42,900 10,725 7,368 3,357 3,575 1,295 2,280

R&M-Gate 20,000 5,000 5,271 (271) 1,667 2,538 (871)

Misc-Bar Codes 4,100 1,025 - 1,025 342 - 342

Total Other Public Safety 379,594 94,899 75,941 18,958 31,634 26,666 4,968

Field

Payroll-Benefits 5,107 1,277 1,053 224 426 365 61

Payroll-Engineering 29,108 7,277 5,193 2,084 2,426 1,601 825

Utility - Water & Sewer 2,000 500 - 500 167 - 167

Lease - Land 2,000 2,000 - 2,000 - - -

R&M-Bike Paths & Asphalt 2,500 1,500 - 1,500 750 - 750

R&M-Boardwalks 7,720 6,000 (33) 6,033 6,000 (153) 6,153

R&M-Buildings 50,000 12,500 10,271 2,229 4,167 1,056 3,111

R&M-Electrical 12,500 8,000 - 8,000 2,500 - 2,500

R&M-Fountain 4,000 2,000 650 1,350 - 368 (368)

R&M-Mulch 3,489 - - - - - -

R&M-Roads & Alleyways 45,000 11,000 1,492 9,508 2,000 (178) 2,178

R&M-Sidewalks 20,000 8,000 3,237 4,763 - 1,904 (1,904)

R&M-Signage 8,000 2,000 - 2,000 - - -

Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 38,000 18,300 26,099 (7,799) 6,000 1,247 4,753

Total Field 229,424 80,354 47,962 32,392 24,436 6,210 18,226

5



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Landscape Services

Payroll-Salaries 201,591 50,398 33,128 17,270 16,799 12,229 4,570

Payroll-Other 12,000 3,000 - 3,000 1,000 - 1,000

Payroll-Administrative 7,038 1,760 1,131 629 587 251 336

Payroll-Benefits 66,352 16,588 19,015 (2,427) 5,529 6,116 (587)

Payroll-General Staff 97,222 24,305 16,021 8,284 8,102 6,326 1,776

Payroll-Irrigation Staff 63,222 15,806 12,075 3,731 5,269 4,893 376

Payroll-IPM Staff 91,931 22,983 18,650 4,333 7,661 6,420 1,241

Payroll-Equipment Mechanic 27,272 6,818 4,826 1,992 2,273 1,862 411

Payroll Taxes 34,391 8,598 6,543 2,055 2,866 2,546 320

ProfServ-Info Technology 1,000 250 2,465 (2,215) 83 2,405 (2,322)

Communication - Telephone 800 200 554 (354) 67 150 (83)

Utility - Cable TV Billing 3,520 880 342 538 293 170 123

Electricity - General 6,000 1,500 533 967 500 - 500

Utility - Refuse Removal 13,500 3,375 913 2,462 1,125 494 631

Utility - Water & Sewer 3,360 840 625 215 280 215 65

Rentals - General 1,500 375 - 375 125 - 125

R&M-Buildings 2,000 500 1,772 (1,272) 167 342 (175)

R&M-Equipment 30,000 7,500 6,906 594 2,500 3,317 (817)

R&M-Grounds 53,729 3,744 6,956 (3,212) - 836 (836)

R&M-Irrigation 21,000 5,250 2,886 2,364 1,750 719 1,031

R&M-Mulch 79,360 34,998 25,502 9,496 1,560 25,502 (23,942)

R&M-Pump Station 15,000 3,750 6,309 (2,559) 1,250 3,803 (2,553)

R&M-Trees and Trimming 13,495 3,374 - 3,374 1,125 - 1,125

Misc-Employee Meals 7,000 1,750 3,798 (2,048) 583 2,923 (2,340)

Office Equipment 4,000 1,000 186 814 333 186 147

Op Supplies - General 19,000 4,750 2,943 1,807 1,583 847 736

6



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Op Supplies - Uniforms 7,408 2,023 741 1,282 486 741 (255)

Op Supplies - Fuel, Oil 12,500 3,123 2,271 852 1,041 165 876

Impr - Landscape 57,452 14,363 3,293 11,070 4,788 1,358 3,430

Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 67,977 16,994 4,683 12,311 5,665 4,683 982

Total Landscape Services 1,020,620 260,795 185,067 75,728 75,390 89,499 (14,109)

Utilities

Electricity - Streetlighting 82,356 20,589 13,467 7,122 6,863 - 6,863

Utility - Water & Sewer 3,600 900 447 453 300 210 90

R&M-Lake 53,080 13,270 12,870 400 4,423 4,290 133

Total Utilities 139,036 34,759 26,784 7,975 11,586 4,500 7,086

Operation & Maintenance

Payroll-Shared Personnel 356,097 89,025 56,511 32,514 29,675 19,621 10,054

ProfServ-Field Management 229,272 57,318 30,591 26,727 19,106 10,918 8,188

Travel and Per Diem 400 99 61 38 33 61 (28)

Communication - Telephone 2,100 525 386 139 175 148 27

Postage and Freight 100 25 - 25 8 - 8

Rentals - General - - 1,905 (1,905) - - -

R&M-Vehicles 6,000 1,500 1,563 (63) - 359 (359)

Printing and Binding 4,500 1,125 754 371 375 220 155

Misc-Connection Computer 3,700 925 13,234 (12,309) 308 3,660 (3,352)

Billback Expenses Developer - - 1,560 (1,560) - 1,605 (1,605)

Office Supplies 1,500 375 971 (596) 125 252 (127)

Op Supplies - General 7,200 1,800 1,526 274 600 763 (163)

OP-Supplies – Buildings 300 75 - 75 25 - 25

Total Operation & Maintenance 611,169 152,792 109,062 43,730 50,430 37,607 12,823

7



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Parks and Recreation - General

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 21,840 5,460 5,460 - 1,820 1,820 -

Insurance -Property & Casualty 103,143 25,786 68,750 (42,964) 8,595 22,917 (14,322)

Total Parks and Recreation - General 124,983 31,246 74,210 (42,964) 10,415 24,737 (14,322)

Clubhouse

Contracts-Misc Labor 4,000 1,000 637 363 333 106 227

Contracts-Outside Fitness 10,000 2,500 2,361 139 833 630 203

R&M-Buildings 22,770 5,693 6,021 (328) 1,898 - 1,898

R&M-Equipment 5,000 1,250 - 1,250 417 - 417

Misc-Special Events 15,000 3,750 5,106 (1,356) 1,250 2,722 (1,472)

Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 3,500 881 - 881 291 - 291

Total Clubhouse 60,270 15,074 14,125 949 5,022 3,458 1,564

Swimming Pool

Payroll-Salaries 60,042 15,011 13,639 1,372 5,004 5,560 (556)

Payroll-Hourly 63,855 15,964 10,115 5,849 5,321 3,871 1,450

Payroll-Lifeguards 38,000 9,500 - 9,500 3,167 - 3,167

Payroll-Benefits 31,415 7,854 17,449 (9,595) 2,618 4,744 (2,126)

Payroll-Engineering 29,108 7,277 4,598 2,679 2,426 1,392 1,034

Payroll-Janitor 8,000 2,000 1,836 164 667 660 7

Payroll Taxes 13,189 3,297 1,902 1,395 1,099 807 292

ProfServ-Info Technology 6,300 1,575 134 1,441 525 - 525

ProfServ-Swim Pool Commiss 1,800 450 - 450 150 - 150

Contracts-Landscape 3,500 875 - 875 292 - 292

Travel and Per Diem 500 125 24 101 42 24 18

Communication - Telephone 8,400 2,100 2,545 (445) 700 1,023 (323)

8



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Utility - General 57,000 14,250 8,491 5,759 4,750 3,295 1,455

Utility - Cable TV Billing 1,624 406 347 59 135 238 (103)

Utility - Refuse Removal 2,000 500 387 113 167 105 62

R&M-Buildings 30,000 7,500 6,276 1,224 2,500 3,272 (772)

R&M-Pools 30,000 7,500 19,769 (12,269) 2,500 6,874 (4,374)

R&M-Vehicles 500 125 - 125 42 - 42

Advertising 1,800 450 330 120 150 110 40

Miscellaneous Services 1,500 375 - 375 125 - 125

Misc-Employee Meals 3,770 942 2,544 (1,602) 314 2,523 (2,209)

Misc-Training 3,000 750 - 750 250 - 250

Misc-Licenses & Permits 2,000 500 - 500 167 - 167

Office Supplies 1,750 437 447 (10) 146 127 19

Cleaning Supplies 2,000 500 332 168 167 191 (24)

Office Equipment 2,500 625 7 618 208 7 201

Snack-Bar Expenses 1,500 375 - 375 125 - 125

Op Supplies - Spa & Paper 2,250 563 331 232 188 - 188

Op Supplies - Uniforms 2,500 624 - 624 208 - 208

Op Supplies - Summer Camp 16,000 - 92 (92) - - -

Subscriptions and Memberships 1,200 - 371 (371) - 371 (371)

Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 90,000 22,500 - 22,500 7,500 - 7,500

Cap Outlay - Pool Furniture 18,000 4,500 4,788 (288) 1,500 3,763 (2,263)

Total Swimming Pool 535,003 129,450 96,754 32,696 43,153 38,957 4,196

9



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Tennis Court

Payroll-Salaries 122,500 30,625 24,614 6,011 10,208 8,973 1,235

Payroll-Hourly 36,000 9,000 7,583 1,417 3,000 2,691 309

Payroll-Benefits 28,346 7,086 8,428 (1,342) 2,362 2,312 50

Payroll-Engineering 23,831 5,958 3,449 2,509 1,986 1,044 942

Payroll-Commission 135,000 33,750 42,311 (8,561) 11,250 12,448 (1,198)

Payroll Taxes 23,026 5,757 5,144 613 1,919 1,737 182

ProfServ-Administrative 1,000 255 - 255 85 - 85

ProfServ-Info Technology 7,000 1,750 4,971 (3,221) 583 2,920 (2,337)

Contracts-Janitorial Services 6,000 1,500 1,500 - 500 500 -

Communication - Telephone 6,000 1,500 1,243 257 500 565 (65)

Utility - Cable TV Billing 1,738 434 478 (44) 145 215 (70)

Electricity - General 14,500 3,625 2,592 1,033 1,208 - 1,208

Utility - Refuse Removal 1,800 450 326 124 150 105 45

Utility - Water & Sewer 1,500 375 209 166 125 - 125

Rental/Lease - Vehicle/Equip 1,700 425 396 29 142 132 10

R&M-General 6,000 1,500 1,582 (82) 500 1,057 (557)

R&M-Court Maintenance 12,000 3,000 1,708 1,292 1,000 488 512

R&M-Vandalism 500 125 - 125 42 - 42

Printing and Binding 1,000 250 - 250 83 - 83

Advertising 1,500 375 330 45 125 110 15

Misc-Employee Meals 1,900 500 1,463 (963) - 1,463 (1,463)

Misc-Special Events 1,000 250 544 (294) 83 - 83

Misc-Training 500 125 - 125 42 - 42

Misc-Licenses & Permits 250 250 - 250 250 - 250

Office Supplies 3,000 750 731 19 250 220 30

Office Equipment 3,000 750 - 750 250 - 250

10



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

Teaching Supplies 3,000 600 1,545 (945) - 859 (859)

Op Supplies - Uniforms 500 200 - 200 200 - 200

COS - Start Up Inventory 10,000 5,250 3,395 1,855 1,750 728 1,022

Subscriptions and Memberships 800 600 - 600 600 - 600

Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 45,000 10,000 7,749 2,251 10,000 6,143 3,857

Total Tennis Court 499,891 127,015 122,291 4,724 49,338 44,710 4,628

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,421,876 1,038,924 852,900 186,024 360,567 328,845 31,722

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures (37,501) 905,475 864,233 (41,242) 807,911 664,579 (143,332)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (37,501) - - - - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (37,501) - - - - - -

Net change in fund balance (37,501)$ 905,475$ 864,233$ (41,242)$ 807,911$ 664,579$ (143,332)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 1,675,914 1,675,914 1,675,914

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 1,638,413$ 2,581,389$ 2,540,147$

11



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
General 004 - 2002 Area Capital Reserves Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 51,149 27,514 25,025 (2,489) 15,795 15,445 (350)

Special Assmnts- CDD Collected 1,668 834 673 (161) - - -

Special Assmnts- Discounts (2,046) (1,102) (1,004) 98 (633) (617) 16

TOTAL REVENUES 50,771 27,246 24,694 (2,552) 15,162 14,828 (334)

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 1,023 550 480 70 316 297 19

Total Administration 1,023 550 480 70 316 297 19

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,023 550 480 70 316 297 19

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures 49,748 26,696 24,214 (2,482) 14,846 14,531 (315)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance 49,748 - - - - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 49,748 - - - - - -

Net change in fund balance 49,748$ 26,696$ 24,214$ (2,482)$ 14,846$ 14,531$ (315)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 49,160 49,161 49,160

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 98,908$ 75,857$ 73,374$

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

12



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
Series 2002 Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 250$ 63$ 792$ 729$ 21$ -$ (21)$

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 1,173,275 633,391 572,848 (60,543) 363,613 353,541 (10,072)

Special Assmnts- CDD Collected 38,056 19,028 15,351 (3,677) - - -

Special Assmnts- Discounts (46,931) (25,336) (22,993) 2,343 (14,545) (14,125) 420

TOTAL REVENUES 1,164,650 627,146 565,998 (61,148) 349,089 339,416 (9,673)

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 23,466 12,667 10,996 1,671 7,272 6,788 484

Total Administration 23,466 12,667 10,996 1,671 7,272 6,788 484

Debt Service

Principal Debt Retirement 580,000 - - - - - -

Principal Prepayments - - 105,000 (105,000) - - -

Interest Expense 571,250 285,625 285,625 - - - -

Total Debt Service 1,151,250 285,625 390,625 (105,000) - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,174,716 298,292 401,621 (103,329) 7,272 6,788 484

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures (10,066) 328,854 164,377 (164,477) 341,817 332,628 (9,189)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (10,066) - - - - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (10,066) - - - - - -

Net change in fund balance (10,066)$ 328,854$ 164,377$ (164,477)$ 341,817$ 332,628$ (9,189)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 496,388 496,388 496,388

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 486,322$ 825,242$ 660,765$

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

13



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
Series 2015 Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 200$ 50$ 544$ 494$ 17$ 143$ 126$

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 1,029,143 575,266 487,072 (88,194) 327,942 300,603 (27,339)

Special Assmnts- Prepayment - - 10,733 10,733 - - -

Special Assmnts- Discounts (41,166) (24,374) (19,550) 4,824 (13,589) (12,010) 1,579

TOTAL REVENUES 988,177 550,942 478,799 (72,143) 314,370 288,736 (25,634)

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 20,583 12,638 9,350 3,288 7,186 5,772 1,414

Principal Debt Retirement 505,000 - - - - - -

Interest Expense 472,050 236,025 236,025 - - - -

Total Administration 997,633 248,663 245,375 3,288 7,186 5,772 1,414

Debt Service

Principal Prepayments - - 20,000 (20,000) - - -

Total Debt Service - - 20,000 (20,000) - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 997,633 248,663 265,375 (16,712) 7,186 5,772 1,414

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures (9,456) 302,279 213,424 (88,855) 307,184 282,964 (24,220)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers-Out - - (374) (374) - (123) (123)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (9,456) - - - - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (9,456) - (374) (374) - (123) (123)

Net change in fund balance (9,456)$ 302,279$ 213,050$ (89,229)$ 307,184$ 282,841$ (24,343)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 819,170 819,170 819,170

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 809,714$ 1,121,449$ 1,032,220$

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

14



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
Series 2016 Debt Service Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 100$ 27$ 225$ 198$ 9$ -$ (9)$

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 65,650 34,987 31,105 (3,882) 19,655 19,197 (458)

Special Assmnts- Discounts (2,626) (1,438) (1,249) 189 (826) (767) 59

TOTAL REVENUES 63,124 33,576 30,081 (3,495) 18,838 18,430 (408)

EXPENDITURES

Administration

Misc-Assessmnt Collection Cost 1,313 720 597 123 413 369 44

Total Administration 1,313 720 597 123 413 369 44

Debt Service

Principal Debt Retirement 10,000 - - - - - -

Principal Prepayments - - 10,000 (10,000) - - -

Interest Expense 49,296 24,648 24,648 - - - -

Total Debt Service 59,296 24,648 34,648 (10,000) - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 60,609 25,368 35,245 (9,877) 413 369 44

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures 2,515 8,208 (5,164) (13,372) 18,425 18,061 (364)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance 2,515 - - - - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 2,515 - - - - - -

Net change in fund balance 2,515$ 8,208$ (5,164)$ (13,372)$ 18,425$ 18,061$ (364)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) 75,327 75,327 75,327

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 77,842$ 83,535$ 70,163$

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

15



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District
Series 2015 A Construction Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($) DEC-18 DEC-18 VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV) BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments -$ -$ 141$ 141$ -$ 34$ 34$

TOTAL REVENUES - - 141 141 - 34 34

EXPENDITURES

Construction In Progress

Construction in Progress - - 59,440 (59,440) - 41,340 (41,340)

Total Construction In Progress - - 59,440 (59,440) - 41,340 (41,340)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - 59,440 (59,440) - 41,340 (41,340)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures - - (59,299) (59,299) - (41,306) (41,306)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Interfund Transfer - In - - 374 374 - 123 123

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - 374 374 - 123 123

Net change in fund balance -$ -$ (58,925)$ (58,925)$ -$ (41,183)$ (41,183)$

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2018) - - 146,635

FUND BALANCE, ENDING -$ -$ 87,710$

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018

16



MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District

Supporting Schedules

December 31, 2018



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District All Funds

Discount / 2002 Area

Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Gross General Capital Reserves Debt Service (1)

Received Received Amount Cost Amount Fund Fund Funds

Assessments Levied FY 2019 5,693,651$ 3,338,162$ 52,817$ 2,302,672$

Allocation% 100% 59% 1% 40%

11/07/18 41,099$ 2,215$ 839$ 44,153$ 25,887$ 410$ 17,857$

11/20/18 416,349$ 17,702$ 8,494$ 442,545$ 259,462$ 4,105$ 178,977$

11/28/18 513,753$ 21,843$ 10,485$ 546,080$ 320,165$ 5,066$ 220,850$

12/14/18 596,855$ 25,376$ 12,181$ 634,412$ 371,953$ 5,885$ 256,574$

12/27/18 969,581$ 41,143$ 19,787$ 1,030,512$ 604,184$ 9,560$ 416,768$

TOTAL 2,537,637$ 108,279$ 51,786$ 2,697,702$ 1,581,650$ 25,025$ 1,091,026$

TOTAL OUTSTANDING 2,995,949$ 1,756,512$ 27,792$ 1,211,646$

% COLLECTED TO DATE 47.38% 47.38% 47.38% 47.38%

(1) Debt Services Funds - Series 2002 and 2015A and 2016

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - St Johns County Tax Collector

(Monthly Assessment Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2019

Allocation by Funds

Report Date: 1/4/2019 17



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District All Funds

Discount / 2002 Area Series 2002

Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Gross General Capital Reserves Debt Service

Received Received Amount Cost Amount Fund Fund Fund

District Collected Assessments FY 2019 (1) 51,717$ 11,994$ 1,668$ 38,056$

Allocation% 100% 23% 3% 74%

10/22/18 20,861$ 4,838$ 673$ 15,351$

-$ -$

-$ -$ -$ -$

TOTAL 20,861$ -$ -$ -$ 4,838$ 673$ 15,351$

% COLLECTED TO DATE 0% 40% 40% 40%

Total Collected 20,861$

Series 2002

(1) Assessment Notes: Total General Fund
Reserve Capital

Project Fund
Debt Service Fund

St. Augustine Land & Timber LLC Total 51,717 11,994 1,668 38,056

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - District Collected

(Monthly Assessment Collection Distributions)

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2019

Allocation by Funds

Report Date: 12/12/2018 18



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District All Funds

Discount / Series 2002 Series 2015 & 2016
Date Note Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Gross General Debt Service Debt Services

Received Reference # Received Amount Cost Amount Fund Fund Funds

Assessments Levied FY 2016 44,922$ 29,654$ 15,268$ -$

Assessments Levied FY 2017 78,568$ 45,018$ 17,698$ 15,852$
Assessments Levied FY 2018 (1) 61,218$ 36,143$ 12,862$ 12,213$

184,708$ 110,815$ 45,827$ 28,065$

Payments

01/22/18 Unidentified Parcel 16,604$ (4,283)$ 339$ 12,659$ 12,659$ -$ -$

Assessmts FY 2016 10/08/18 Parcel # 072420-0026 22,423$ 7,155$ 15,268$ -$

10/08/18 Unidentified Parcel FY18 45,695$ 26,978$ 9,601$ 9,116$

TOTAL OUTSTANDING WITH 10/5/18 PAYMENT 16,604$ (4,283)$ 339$ 149,626$ 91,001$ 30,559$ 28,065$

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - St Johns County Tax Collector Delinquent
(Monthly Assessment Collection Distributions)

Prior Year Delinquent Assessments

Allocation by Funds

Report Date: 12/12/2018 19



Posting
Date

Document
Type

Document
No. Description Amount

Cleared
Amount Difference

Outstanding Checks

5/8/2018 Payment 9856 NOELANI TAYLOR 140.00 0.00 140.00

8/6/2018 Payment 10451 MADELIN LEPRI 70.00 0.00 70.00

11/13/2018 Payment 11102 MONICA FOURMAN 210.00 0.00 210.00

11/15/2018 Payment DD249 Payment of Invoice 039131 508.89 0.00 508.89

11/26/2018 Payment 11150 SARAH MANN 105.00 0.00 105.00

11/28/2018 Payment DD260 Payment of Invoice 039312 141.10 0.00 141.10

11/28/2018 Payment 11170 JARED MONIE 140.00 0.00 140.00

11/28/2018 Payment 11179 MONICA FOURMAN 210.00 0.00 210.00

12/4/2018 Payment 11197 AMASON'S PORTABLE TOILETS 144.84 0.00 144.84

12/12/2018 Payment 11240 CATHERINE NOELANI TAYLOR 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/12/2018 Payment 11241 CHAD EUGENE HALLMAN 105.00 0.00 105.00

12/12/2018 Payment 11243 CRONIN ACE HARDWARE 47.41 0.00 47.41

12/12/2018 Payment 11248 ERIN M LANDRY 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/12/2018 Payment 11261 MONICA FOURMAN 105.00 0.00 105.00

12/12/2018 Payment 11265 REBECCA STEPHENSON 105.00 0.00 105.00

12/12/2018 Payment 11266 RENEE R YOOS 105.00 0.00 105.00

12/18/2018 Payment 11275 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 3,130.30 0.00 3,130.30

12/18/2018 Payment 11281 CASUAL LIVING UNLIMITED LLC 767.60 0.00 767.60

12/18/2018 Payment 11283 COLOR WORKS NURSERY, INC 1,215.00 0.00 1,215.00

12/18/2018 Payment 11284 DEBOW'S APPLIANCE SERVICE 132.08 0.00 132.08

12/18/2018 Payment 11286 EVANS, THOMAS 140.00 0.00 140.00

12/18/2018 Payment 11287 FLORIDA JANITOR & PAPER SUPPLY 69.50 0.00 69.50

G/L Balance 3,107,734.41

Bank Account No. 2195

Statement No. 12-18

Statement Date 12/31/2018

Statement Balance 3,169,808.69G/L Balance (LCY) 3,107,734.41

Difference 0.00

Ending G/L Balance 3,107,734.41

Subtotal 3,107,734.41

Outstanding Deposits 0.00

Negative Adjustments 0.00

Positive Adjustments 0.00

Subtotal 3,169,808.69

Outstanding Checks 62,074.28

Ending Balance 3,107,734.41

Differences 0.00

BB&T - GF NEW

Bank Reconciliation

Marshall Creek CDD

20



Posting
Date

Document
Type

Document
No. Description Amount

Cleared
Amount Difference

12/18/2018 Payment 11290 HARDWICK LOCK LLC 188.00 0.00 188.00

12/18/2018 Payment 11291 HINES PALENCIA PROPERTY MANAGEME 2,909.31 0.00 2,909.31

12/18/2018 Payment 11296 JOANNE L CATOGGIO 140.00 0.00 140.00

12/18/2018 Payment 11297 KATIE HOLLIS 489.11 0.00 489.11

12/18/2018 Payment 11310 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 77.93 0.00 77.93

12/26/2018 Payment 11314 AMASON'S PORTABLE TOILETS 144.84 0.00 144.84

12/26/2018 Payment 11315 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 7,354.56 0.00 7,354.56

12/26/2018 Payment 11316 AT&T 736.22 0.00 736.22

12/26/2018 Payment 11317 COLOR WORKS NURSERY, INC 52.50 0.00 52.50

12/26/2018 Payment 11318 CRONIN ACE HARDWARE 78.56 0.00 78.56

12/26/2018 Payment 11319 DANIEL P CALDARERA 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11320 DEFOREST E. BOWMAN 35.00 0.00 35.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11321 ERIN GUNIA 723.65 0.00 723.65

12/26/2018 Payment 11322 ERIN M LANDRY 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11324 GARY PERNA 105.00 0.00 105.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11325 GLENDA AVILE'S MALEWICKI 140.00 0.00 140.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11326 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 815.12 0.00 815.12

12/26/2018 Payment 11327 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 138.23 0.00 138.23

12/26/2018 Payment 11328 HOPPING, GREEN & SAMS 4,275.50 0.00 4,275.50

12/26/2018 Payment 11329 INFRAMARK, LLC 19,856.73 0.00 19,856.73

12/26/2018 Payment 11330 JAMES JOHNSTON 250.00 0.00 250.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11331 JERMAINE ANTONIO SOLOMON 202.50 0.00 202.50

12/26/2018 Payment 11332 JOSIE LYNN CARLETON 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11333 LAMP SALES UNLIMITED, INC. 42.48 0.00 42.48

12/26/2018 Payment 11334 LAURA CORREA 210.00 0.00 210.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11335 MADELIN LEPRI 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11337 MICHAEL KYPRISS 525.00 0.00 525.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11338 MIRANDA G BULGER 280.00 0.00 280.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11339 MONICA FOURMAN 210.00 0.00 210.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11341 MY RECEPTIONIST 28.00 0.00 28.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11342 NEIGHBORHOOD PUBLICATIONS 440.00 0.00 440.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11343 NOELANI TAYLOR 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11344 NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT 24.98 0.00 24.98

12/26/2018 Payment 11345 OFFICE DEPOT 340.70 0.00 340.70

12/26/2018 Payment 11348 RANDSTAD 506.99 0.00 506.99

12/26/2018 Payment 11349 RENEE R YOOS 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11350 RONALD C. CULLUM 70.00 0.00 70.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11351 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 138.59 0.00 138.59

12/26/2018 Payment 11352 ST. AUGUSTINE POWER HOUSE 147.14 0.00 147.14

Bank Reconciliation

Marshall Creek CDD

21



Posting
Date

Document
Type

Document
No. Description Amount

Cleared
Amount Difference

12/26/2018 Payment 11353 ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 94.24 0.00 94.24

12/26/2018 Payment 11354 SUNBELT GATED ACCESS 1,023.40 0.00 1,023.40

12/26/2018 Payment 11355 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 80.35 0.00 80.35

12/26/2018 Payment 11356 VINELLE MILLER 3,025.95 0.00 3,025.95

12/26/2018 Payment 11357 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 375.81 0.00 375.81

12/26/2018 Payment 11358 ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY 5,508.00 0.00 5,508.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11359 ZUZANA PADUANO 162.00 0.00 162.00

12/26/2018 Payment 11360 PROSSER 1,976.17 0.00 1,976.17

Total Outstanding Checks...................................................................................................................... 62,074.28 62,074.28

Bank Reconciliation

Marshall Creek CDD

22



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District All Funds

Account Name Bank Name Investment Type Maturity Yield Balance

GENERAL FUND

Checking Account - Operating BB&T Checking Account n/a 0.00% $3,107,734

Money Market BankUnited Money Market Account n/a 1.00% $640,515

Subtotal $3,748,249

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Series 2002 Prepayment Fund US Bank Government Obligation Fund n/a 0.05% $693

Series 2002 Reserve Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $50,118

Series 2002 Revenue Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $9,164

Series 2015A Prepayment Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $12,990

Series 2015A Reserve Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $493,000

Series 2015A Revenue Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $67,366

Series 2016 Prepayment Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $1,946

Series 2016 Reserve Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $31,300

Series 2016 Revenue Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $1,532

CONSTRUCTION FUND

Series 2015A Construction Fund US Bank US Bank Open-Ended Commercial Paper n/a 0.05% $87,710

Total $4,504,068

Cash and Investment Report

December 31, 2018

Report Date: 1/4/2019 23



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District

Week Date Amount

Week # 49 12/07/18 $42,525.27

Week # 51 12/21/18 $52,110.17

Total $94,635.44

Payroll Invoice Approval Listing

December 31, 2018

Report Date: 1/4/2019 24



25



26



MARSHALL CREEK
Community Development District

Recap of Capital Project Fund Activity Through December 31 , 2018

Source of Funds: Amount
Opening Balance in Construction Account 1,508,037$
Opening Balance in Cost of Issuance account 159,750

Interest Earned
Construction Account 5,313$
Cost of Issuance Account 4
Reserve Account (transferred) 2,783

8,099$

Total Source of Funds: 1,675,887$

Use of Funds:
Disbursements:
Cost of Issuance 157,875$
Stormwater System -
General Infrastucture-Roadway Renewal and Reconstruction 14,515
Swim/Fitness Facility 71,278
Tennis Center 157,250
Landscape Maintenance Storage Building 1,187,258
Tolomato Boardwalk Golf Cart Parking -
Retainage

Total Use of Funds: 1,588,176$

Net Available Amount to spend in Construction Account at December 31, 2018 87,710$

Construction Report

Series 2015A Bonds

27



December 1 - December 31, 2018

MARSHALL CREEK

Community Development District

Check Register



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

GENERAL FUND - 001

001 11194 12/03/18 POOLSURE 131295582796 12/18 WATER MANAGEMENT TREATME R&M-Pools 546074-57205 $1,031.75

001 11195 12/04/18 A-1 SOD OF JACKSONVILLE, INC. 106844 SOD R&M-Grounds 546037-53902 $738.00

001 11196 12/04/18 ADP, INC. 525086701 PERIOD ENDING 11/18/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53902 $74.66

001 11196 12/04/18 ADP, INC. 525086701 PERIOD ENDING 11/18/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57205 $167.83

001 11196 12/04/18 ADP, INC. 525086701 PERIOD ENDING 11/18/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57206 $52.67

001 11196 12/04/18 ADP, INC. 525086701 PERIOD ENDING 11/18/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $4.84

001 11196 12/04/18 ADP, INC. 525086701 PERIOD ENDING 11/18/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $3.87

001 11196 12/04/18 ADP, INC. 525086701 PERIOD ENDING 11/18/18 P/R-Board of Supervisors 511001-51101 $27.65

001 11197 12/04/18 AMASON'S PORTABLE TOILETS 78713 HANDI CAP RENTAL R&M-Boardwalks 546009-53901 $144.84

001 11198 12/04/18 ASCAP 112018 LICENSE 12/1/18-12/31/18 Subscriptions and Memberships 554001-57205 $370.51

001 11200 12/04/18 COASTAL CONSTRUCTION INV-001504733 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $9.47

001 11200 12/04/18 COASTAL CONSTRUCTION INV-001504733 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Fountain 546032-53901 $179.14

001 11202 12/04/18 ERIN GUNIA 112118 REIMBURSEMENT FOR POINSETTIA Office Supplies 551002-57205 $92.43

001 11203 12/04/18 FEDEX 6-374-06029 SERVICE FOR 11/8/18 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $65.38

001 11204 12/04/18 GABE BAGBY GB112618 SECURITY FOR 11/23/18 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $175.00

001 11205 12/04/18 GARY PERNA GP112618 SECURITY FOR 11/21,11/24,11/25 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $420.00

001 11206 12/04/18 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 5192865231 SONIC PRO EDGE REEL Teaching Supplies 551009-57206 $306.94

001 11206 12/04/18 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 5192868793 HYDROSORB COMFORT COS - Start Up Inventory 552143-57206 $136.94

001 11207 12/04/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 35939 Management Fees Nov 2018 ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,026.67

001 11207 12/04/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 35939 Management Fees Nov 2018 ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-57201 $1,820.00

001 11207 12/04/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 35939 Management Fees Nov 2018 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $76.52

001 11207 12/04/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 35939 Management Fees Nov 2018 Printing and Binding 547001-51301 $286.40

001 11207 12/04/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 35939 Management Fees Nov 2018 Office Supplies 551002-51301 $44.00

001 11208 12/04/18 KATIE HOLLIS 110918 REIMB FOR MICROSOFT 365 Misc-Connection Computer 549016-53910 $199.98

001 11209 12/04/18 MICHAEL KYPRISS 112718 TENNIS LESSONS Payroll-Commission 512040-57206 $192.75

001 11210 12/04/18 MUNICIPAL CAPITAL CORP 900121018 PMT# 26 OF 36 Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-53902 $1,534.83

001 11211 12/04/18 N.Y. PIZZA CO 5475 PIZZA FOR EMPLYEE MEALS Misc-Employee Meals 549015-57205 $32.85

001 11212 12/04/18 NEWVENTURE OF JACKSONVILLE, INC 168008 12/18 JANITORIAL SERVICE Contracts-Janitorial Services 534026-57206 $500.00

001 11213 12/04/18 OFFICE DEPOT 229931311001 THERMAL ROLL Office Supplies 551002-57206 $24.23

001 11213 12/04/18 OFFICE DEPOT 232539726001 USB Office Supplies 551002-57206 $16.98

001 11214 12/04/18 PROPET DISTRIBUTORS INC 124147 LITTER AND TRASH BAGS Op Supplies - General 552001-53902 $773.35

001 11215 12/04/18 RANDSTAD R23910878 TEMP HELP THRU 11/18/18 Payroll-Administrative 512009-53902 $125.68

001 11215 12/04/18 RANDSTAD R23871655 TEMP HELP 11/11/18 Payroll-Administrative 512009-53902 $125.68

001 11216 12/04/18 REPUBLIC SERVICES OF FL, L.P 0687-000940630 SERVICE FOR 12/1-12/31/18 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-57205 $104.96

001 11216 12/04/18 REPUBLIC SERVICES OF FL, L.P 0687-000940630 SERVICE FOR 12/1-12/31/18 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-57206 $104.95

001 11216 12/04/18 REPUBLIC SERVICES OF FL, L.P 0687-000937909 SERVICE FOR 12/1-12/31/18 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53902 $209.91

001 11217 12/04/18 ROMULO PINE STRAW, INC 112618 4 TRAILERS PINESTRAW R&M-Mulch 546059-53902 $25,502.40

001 11218 12/04/18 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC 1805383326 MISC SUPPLIES Op Supplies - Fuel, Oil 552030-53902 $142.85

001 11219 12/04/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC CM584591 RETURN COUPLING, ADAPTER, HOSE R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 ($40.21)

001 11219 12/04/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 585601 HOSE FITTING, HOSE,COUPLINGS R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $53.70

001 11219 12/04/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 585595 3 8DR E-12 EXTST SKT R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $8.49

001 11219 12/04/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 585590 BATTERY R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $62.49

001 11220 12/04/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE 87756055-001 PINE STRAW Billback Expenses Developer 549921-53910 $65.32

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

28



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11220 12/04/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE 87934941-001 GLUE, COUPLING, PVC FITTING R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 $128.29

001 11220 12/04/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE 87731105-001 PINE STRAW Billback Expenses Developer 549921-53910 $39.19

001 11221 12/04/18 ST. AUGUSTINE POWER HOUSE 183083 V-BELT,WHEEL RR R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $46.07

001 11221 12/04/18 ST. AUGUSTINE POWER HOUSE 183084 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $131.96

001 11221 12/04/18 ST. AUGUSTINE POWER HOUSE 182997 STARTER R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $235.99

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-133660 514213-133660 10/19-11/19/18 Utility - Water & Sewer 543021-53902 $197.17

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-126261 532033-126261 10/19-11/19/18 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $38.21

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-114659 514215-114659 10/19-11/19/18 Utility - General 543001-57205 $456.03

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-104785 514213-104785 10/19-11/19/18 Utility - General 543001-57205 $395.38

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-101723 514213-101723 10-19-11/19/18 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $38.16

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-114653 514211-114653 10/19-11/19/18 Utility - Water & Sewer 543021-53903 $55.68

001 11222 12/04/18 ST. JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT. 111918-121119 514214-121119 10/18-11/19/18 Utility - Cable TV Billing 543003-57206 $85.60

001 11223 12/04/18 SYNCHRONY BANK 9262334 AAA BATTERIES R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 $41.00

001 11224 12/04/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3715/3 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-General 546001-57206 $72.96

001 11225 12/04/18 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE E0383430-112618 COVERAGE PERIOD 11/1-11/30/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53902 $162.26

001 11225 12/04/18 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE E0383430-112618 COVERAGE PERIOD 11/1-11/30/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57205 $74.48

001 11225 12/04/18 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE E0383430-112618 COVERAGE PERIOD 11/1-11/30/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57206 $65.46

001 11225 12/04/18 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE E0383430-112618 COVERAGE PERIOD 11/1-11/30/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $10.12

001 11225 12/04/18 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE E0383430-112618 COVERAGE PERIOD 11/1-11/30/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $8.10

001 11226 12/04/18 WELCH TENNIS COURTS, INC. 49828 FILTER, NET R&M-Court Maintenance 546017-57206 $488.00

001 11227 12/04/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40868800 SENSOR R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $117.18

001 11227 12/04/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40868092 SENSOR COOLANT, SPINDLE R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $156.89

001 11228 12/04/18 WILLIAMS' PLANT NURSERY 89466 EAGLESTON HOLLY Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-57206 $975.00

001 11229 12/10/18 HOPPING, GREEN & SAMS 104086 General Counsel October 2018 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $2,367.50

001 11229 12/10/18 HOPPING, GREEN & SAMS 104087 Monthly Meeting October 2018 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $1,598.44

001 11229 12/10/18 HOPPING, GREEN & SAMS 104088 DEVELOPER LAND TRANSFERS 10/18 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $880.00

001 11230 12/12/18 AT&T 111918-7313 171-799-7313 11/18 Communication - Telephone 541003-57206 $452.07

001 11231 12/12/18 COASTAL CONSTRUCTION INV-001504733.01 PAINT FOR FOUNTAIN R&M-Fountain 546032-53901 $174.51

001 11232 12/12/18 FLORIDA JANITOR & PAPER SUPPLY 310918 GLOVES R&M-Buildings 546012-53902 $210.08

001 11233 12/12/18 INTERSTATE BATTERIES 1918701018591 MARINE BATTERY R&M-Roads & Alleyways 546081-53901 $97.35

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. CM58951 RETURN SUPPLIES FOR BOARDWALK R&M-Boardwalks 546009-53901 ($269.28)

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. 522806 SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $79.84

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. 522310 SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALK REPAIR R&M-Roads & Alleyways 546081-53901 $74.88

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. 523866 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $34.93

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. 524616 CONCRETE R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $24.95

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. 524634 CONCRETE FOR SIDEWALKS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $24.95

001 11234 12/12/18 L. WERNINCK & SONS, INC. 524394 SOD R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $319.02

001 11235 12/12/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3712/3 FORD KEY AND ADAPTER Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $8.17

001 11236 12/12/18 ADP, INC. 525549185 PERIOD ENDING 11/29/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53902 $93.75

001 11236 12/12/18 ADP, INC. 525549185 PERIOD ENDING 11/29/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57205 $205.50

001 11236 12/12/18 ADP, INC. 525549185 PERIOD ENDING 11/29/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57206 $71.44

001 11236 12/12/18 ADP, INC. 525549185 PERIOD ENDING 11/29/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $6.56

001 11236 12/12/18 ADP, INC. 525549185 PERIOD ENDING 11/29/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $5.25

001 11236 12/12/18 ADP, INC. 525549185 PERIOD ENDING 11/29/18 P/R-Board of Supervisors 511001-51101 $37.50

001 11237 12/12/18 AGW ENTERPRISES INC 120518-PUMPS RELOCATE PUMPS R&M-Pump Station 546075-53902 $3,785.00

29



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11238 12/12/18 BB&T- 2056 2056-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-10/27/18 ST AUGUSTINE RECORD MOW CREW POSITION AD 552001-53902 $15.00

001 11238 12/12/18 BB&T- 2056 2056-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-10/27/18 AMAZON VACUUMS 546074-57205 $90.99

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 BIRCHMORE GROUP-REINDEER 549052-57202 $890.50

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 HESTER'S ABBEY FLOORCOVERINGS 546012-57205 $2,380.00

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 AMAZON LIGHT BULBS 551005-57205 $6.72

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 DUVAL COUNTY 549052-57202 $601.25

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 PUBLIX GIFT CARDS FOR FIELD MAINT 531016-53910 $1,881.40

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 COCSTCO POINSETTIA 546001-57206 $139.90

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 AMAZON TABLECLOTH, IMPACT DECOR 549052-57202 $131.33

001 11239 12/12/18 BB&T-2031 2031-112118 PURCHASES FOR 10/24-11/21/18 AMAZON HARRY POTTER CALENDAR 551002-57205 $14.24

001 11240 12/12/18 CATHERINE NOELANI TAYLOR 120318 SPIN Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11241 12/12/18 CHAD EUGENE HALLMAN CH120518 SECURITY FOR 11/28/18 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $105.00

001 11243 12/12/18 CRONIN ACE HARDWARE 494/2 RESPIRATOR, SAFETY GLASSES Cleaning Supplies 551003-57205 $47.41

001 11244 12/12/18 DANIEL P CALDARERA 120318 SPIN Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $35.00

001 11245 12/12/18 DEFOREST E. BOWMAN 120318 KIDS FITNESS Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11246 12/12/18 DOWLING DOUGLAS CO. INC. 054705 OFFICE SUPPLIES Office Supplies 551002-53910 $35.00

001 11247 12/12/18 DOWNEY'S JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 41-16230 CITRUS 4 PACK R&M-General 546001-57206 $91.43

001 11247 12/12/18 DOWNEY'S JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 41-16277 38*58 2MIL 100/CS R&M-General 546001-57206 $42.95

001 11248 12/12/18 ERIN M LANDRY 120318 YOGA Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11249 12/12/18 FEDEX 6-381-67263 SERVICE FOR 11/19/18 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $13.01

001 11249 12/12/18 FEDEX 6-387-90429 SERVICE FOR 11/21-11/26/18 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $38.83

001 11250 12/12/18 GARY PERNA GP120418 SECURITY FOR 11/29,11/30,12/1/ Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $420.00

001 11251 12/12/18 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 5192870956 RACQUETS FOR SALE COS - Start Up Inventory 552143-57206 $228.47

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2123274 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $8.79

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2123274 MISC SUPPLIES Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $189.00

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2123274 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $11.26

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2123274 MISC SUPPLIES Impr - Landscape 563023-53902 $90.88

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5020810 GREASE GUN,PISTOL GRIP,GREASE Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $34.23

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1073530 COAT HOOK R&M-General 546001-57206 $26.82

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8072207 MISC OP SUPPLIES Op Supplies - General 552001-53902 $58.40

001 11252 12/12/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8072207 MISC OP SUPPLIES Office Supplies 551002-57205 $19.98

001 11253 12/12/18 JERMAINE ANTONIO SOLOMON 120318 PERSONAL TRAINING Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $162.00

001 11254 12/12/18 JIVE COMMUNICATIONS, INC IN6000065037 HANDSET, TELEPHONE Communication - Telephone 541003-57206 $112.80

001 11255 12/12/18 JOSIE LYNN CARLETON 120318 PILATES AND SUB Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $105.00

001 11256 12/12/18 LAURA CORREA 120318 ZUMBA Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $140.00

001 11257 12/12/18 MADELIN LEPRI 120318 YOGA Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11258 12/12/18 MEDICAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 201802729 DRUG SCREENING 11/1-11/9/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53902 $27.00

001 11258 12/12/18 MEDICAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 201802729 DRUG SCREENING 11/1-11/9/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $13.50

001 11258 12/12/18 MEDICAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 201802729 DRUG SCREENING 11/1-11/9/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $13.50

001 11259 12/12/18 MICHAEL KYPRISS 120418 TENNIS LESSONS 11/26-11/28/18 Payroll-Commission 512040-57206 $231.00

001 11260 12/12/18 MIRANDA G BULGER 120318 HITT, SPIN AND SUB Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $437.50

001 11261 12/12/18 MONICA FOURMAN 120318 EXTREME BURN Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $105.00

001 11262 12/12/18 OFFICE DEPOT 232539726002 USB Office Supplies 551002-57206 $6.99

001 11263 12/12/18 PETER BUCHKOVICH EKCDD-112818 REPLACE 4LF VINYL CHAIN LINK F Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-57206 $450.00

001 11264 12/12/18 RAMCO PROTECTIVE SECURITY SOLUTIONS 23452 SECURITY THRU 11/30/18 Contracts-Security Services 534037-52901 $5,068.80

30



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11265 12/12/18 REBECCA STEPHENSON 120318 SENIOR YOGA, SENIOR STRETCH Contracts-Outside Fitness 534111-57202 $105.00

001 11266 12/12/18 RENEE R YOOS 120318 SENIOR STRETCH Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $35.00

001 11266 12/12/18 RENEE R YOOS 120318-FIT FIT, BALLS & BARRE Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11267 12/12/18 RONALD C. CULLUM 120318 TAI CHI Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $35.00

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Travel and Per Diem 540001-53910 $17.99

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Travel and Per Diem 540001-53910 $14.72

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Travel and Per Diem 540001-53910 $14.17

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Travel and Per Diem 540001-53910 $13.63

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $50.00

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $50.00

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $50.00

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Op Supplies - Uniforms 552028-53902 $95.23

001 11268 12/12/18 ROY HUTCHERSON 120618 REIMB FOR 8/22-12/6/18 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53902 $42.75

001 11269 12/12/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC CM586071 RETURN EXTST SKT R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 ($8.49)

001 11269 12/12/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 585920 BRAKE KIT, BLSTR PK MINIATURES R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $50.97

001 11269 12/12/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 586335 ADAPTER R&M-Pools 546074-57205 $30.39

001 11269 12/12/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 586320 KMISC SUPPLIES R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $14.04

001 11270 12/12/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE CM88224191-001 RETURN XERI DRIPLINE 17MM R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 ($6.35)

001 11270 12/12/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE 88177827-001 ACC FRONT PANEL R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 $355.05

001 11271 12/12/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3774/3 GARMENT HOOK R&M-General 546001-57206 $25.96

001 11271 12/12/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3778/3 GARMENT HOOK,SPRAYPAINT, R&M-General 546001-57206 $24.96

001 11272 12/12/18 ZUZANA PADUANO 120318 PERSONAL TRAINING Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $216.00

001 11273 12/18/18 ADP, INC. 525904397 PERIOD ENDING 12/02/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53902 $80.88

001 11273 12/18/18 ADP, INC. 525904397 PERIOD ENDING 12/02/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57205 $164.53

001 11273 12/18/18 ADP, INC. 525904397 PERIOD ENDING 12/02/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57206 $61.63

001 11273 12/18/18 ADP, INC. 525904397 PERIOD ENDING 12/02/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $5.66

001 11273 12/18/18 ADP, INC. 525904397 PERIOD ENDING 12/02/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $4.53

001 11274 12/18/18 ALPINE ARTISAN STUDIOS, LLC 24250-2 TENNIS SUPPLIES Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-57206 $3,442.95

001 11274 12/18/18 ALPINE ARTISAN STUDIOS, LLC 24250-2 TENNIS SUPPLIES Cap Outlay - Pool Furniture 564020-57205 $2,487.50

001 11275 12/18/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24301 SONIC WALLS FOR TENNIS FACILIT ProfServ-Info Technology 531020-53902 $1,565.15

001 11275 12/18/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24301 SONIC WALLS FOR TENNIS FACILIT ProfServ-Info Technology 531020-57206 $1,565.15

001 11276 12/18/18 AT&T 112818-0006 904 819 0006 11/28-12/27/18 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $205.22

001 11277 12/18/18 BABOLAT VS NORTH AMERICA INC 2618563 RACQUET FOR SALE COS - Start Up Inventory 552143-57206 $99.59

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 BOZARD FORD MISC REPAIRS TO VEHICLES 546104-53910 $435.28

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 BOZARD FORD RETURN 546104-53910 ($76.50)

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 HAGGAR SHIRTS 552001-53910 $65.98

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 SCP DISTRIBUTORS SEAT BELT ASSY 546074-57205 $52.25

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 PULSE-BAC MISC SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALKS 546084-53901 $779.25

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 PULSE-BAC MISC SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALK 546084-53901 $236.93

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON TANK, POOL FILTER, VACCUMM TO WASTE PUMP 546074-57205 $328.49

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON POOL PUMP 546074-57205 $313.19

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON WATERLINK SPIN CHLORINE 546074-57205 $143.95

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON LANDSCAPE ROCK 546012-53902 $62.41

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 PLASTIC WATER TANKS 546009-53901 ($442.99)

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 NATIONAL TANK 546001-53901 $1,112.30

31



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON BODY O-RING SPA FILTER 546032-53901 $5.95

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 CRAIGSLIST PROPERTY MAINT TECH ADD 552001-53910 $25.00

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 CRAIGS LIST PROPERTY MAINT ADD 552001-53910 $15.00

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 NINE MILE LANDSFILL 546084-53901 $136.00

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON FILE CABINET 551005-53902 $185.99

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 TRUST MOTORS 564001-53901 $135.00

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 PUBLIX PARAFIN WAX 546032-53901 $8.50

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON SAUNA HEATER ROCKS 546074-57205 $36.99

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON MAGNETS 546081-53901 $14.31

001 11278 12/18/18 BB&T-2064 112118-2064 PURCHASES FOR 10/23-11/20/18 AMAZON CHARGING CABEL 552001-53910 $96.01

001 11279 12/18/18 BEAUTIFUL & SPOTLESS LAWN SERVICES, INC 1 LAYING SOD AND HAY R&M-General 546001-57206 $550.00

001 11280 12/18/18 BIRCHETT MARKETING CONCEPTS, LLC 97164 HOLIDAY DECOR 2018 Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-57206 $1,275.00

001 11280 12/18/18 BIRCHETT MARKETING CONCEPTS, LLC 97164 HOLIDAY DECOR 2018 Cap Outlay - Pool Furniture 564020-57205 $1,275.00

001 11281 12/18/18 CASUAL LIVING UNLIMITED LLC 112370 SWINGING BENCH R&M-Buildings 546012-53901 $767.60

001 11282 12/18/18 CLEAR WATERS INC. 93455 11/18 TREATMENT OF LAKES R&M-Lake 546042-53903 $4,290.00

001 11283 12/18/18 COLOR WORKS NURSERY, INC 1849-00973 MISC LANDSCAPING Impr - Landscape 563023-53902 $210.00

001 11283 12/18/18 COLOR WORKS NURSERY, INC 1849-00962 MISC LANDSCAPING Impr - Landscape 563023-53902 $1,005.00

001 11284 12/18/18 DEBOW'S APPLIANCE SERVICE 120118 ICE MACHINE RENTAL FOR 12/18 Rental/Lease - Vehicle/Equip 544003-57206 $132.08

001 11285 12/18/18 DOWNEY'S JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 41-16267 LAUDRY DETERGENT Cleaning Supplies 551003-53902 $143.75

001 11286 12/18/18 EVANS, THOMAS TE121218 SECURITY FOR 12/8/18 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $140.00

001 11287 12/18/18 FLORIDA JANITOR & PAPER SUPPLY 311221 SUPPLIES FOR BUILDING REPAIRS R&M-Buildings 546012-53902 $69.50

001 11288 12/18/18 FLORIDA PUMP SERVICE 66657 FLOW METER R&M-Pools 546074-57205 $4,670.00

001 11289 12/18/18 GARY PERNA GP121218 SECURITY FOR 12/4,12/5,12/7/18 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $385.00

001 11290 12/18/18 HARDWICK LOCK LLC 986381 C123 REKEY R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $188.00

001 11291 12/18/18 HINES PALENCIA PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 2018-2 FEMA HURRICANE MATTHEW ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53910 $2,909.31

001 11292 12/18/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 0023378 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 $80.51

001 11293 12/18/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8023582 DECORATION POWER CORDS R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $78.13

001 11294 12/18/18 HOWARD FERTILIZER & CIN-000220534 PROTECT DF R&M-Grounds 546037-53902 $382.80

001 11295 12/18/18 INTERSTATE BATTERIES 118112 ATCORE R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $100.20

001 11296 12/18/18 JOANNE L CATOGGIO JC121218 SECURITY FOR 12/9/18 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $140.00

001 11297 12/18/18 KATIE HOLLIS 121118 REIMB FOR 11/14-11/29/18 ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53910 $329.13

001 11297 12/18/18 KATIE HOLLIS 121118 REIMB FOR 11/14-11/29/18 Misc-Connection Computer 549016-53910 $159.98

001 11298 12/18/18 MICHAEL KYPRISS 121018 SERVICE FOR 12/10/18 Payroll-Commission 512040-57206 $953.63

001 11299 12/18/18 NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT 41488501 HEATER R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $519.98

001 11300 12/18/18 OFFICE DEPOT 238927342001 PAPER ROLLS Office Supplies 551002-57206 $47.97

001 11301 12/18/18 PARTRIDGE WELL DRILLING CO., I 87193 PIPE 2" GALV T&C R&M-Pump Station 546075-53902 $18.03

001 11302 12/18/18 PROFORMA OA98004226 RED HOODIES AND RAIN COATS Op Supplies - Uniforms 552028-53902 $645.47

001 11303 12/18/18 PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS, INC. 1304471529 COOKIES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS Misc-Special Events 549052-57202 $149.25

001 11304 12/18/18 RAMCO PROTECTIVE SECURITY SOLUTIONS 23585 SECURITY THRU 12/7/18 Contracts-Security Services 534037-52901 $5,068.80

001 11304 12/18/18 RAMCO PROTECTIVE SECURITY SOLUTIONS 23715 SECURITY THRU 12/14/18 Contracts-Security Services 534037-52901 $5,068.80

001 11305 12/18/18 RANDSTAD R23986619 TEMP HELP FOR PERIOD 12/2/18 Payroll-Administrative 512009-53902 $125.68

001 11306 12/18/18 REPUBLIC SERVICES OF FL, L.P 0687-000941691 3-0687-0004771 11/18 SERVICES Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53902 $241.38

001 11307 12/18/18 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC 78264101 WASHER R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $142.85

001 11308 12/18/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 586871 INDLOCK, LOCK PINS ROUND R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $122.15

001 11308 12/18/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 587064 LINK PIN R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $106.79

32



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11308 12/18/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 586613 OP SUPPLIES GENERAL Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $27.99

001 11308 12/18/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 587074 SOAPSTONE 10 PACK Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $3.75

001 11308 12/18/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 587070 12 VOLT HEATER R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $98.10

001 11309 12/18/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE 88224218-001 1/2 SPIRAL BARB CP R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 $12.35

001 11309 12/18/18 SITEONE LANDSCAPE 88167125-002 VALVE, OVERLAPPING COVER R&M-Irrigation 546041-53902 $108.41

001 11310 12/18/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3796/3 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-General 546001-57206 $77.93

001 11311 12/18/18 VILLAGE KEY & ALARM, INC. 380343 BATTERIES, SMART CODE R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $409.31

001 11312 12/18/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40871352 BRAKE PAD R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $208.95

001 11312 12/18/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40871351 COPPER WASHER R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $14.45

001 11313 12/20/18 FEDEX 6-395-65655 SERVICE FOR 12/4/18 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $12.85

001 11314 12/26/18 AMASON'S PORTABLE TOILETS 83788 11/18 HANDI CAP RENTAL R&M-Boardwalks 546009-53901 $144.84

001 11315 12/26/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24540 12/3/18 SERVICE CALL Misc-Connection Computer 549016-53910 $3,300.00

001 11315 12/26/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24540 12/3/18 SERVICE CALL ProfServ-Info Technology 531020-57206 $1,354.56

001 11315 12/26/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24540 12/3/18 SERVICE CALL ProfServ-Info Technology 531020-53902 $840.00

001 11315 12/26/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24540 12/3/18 SERVICE CALL R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $240.00

001 11315 12/26/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24540 12/3/18 SERVICE CALL Billback Expenses Developer 549921-53910 $1,500.00

001 11315 12/26/18 AT SERVICES OF NORTH FLORIDA 24601 SPLIT NETWORK WIRE FOR FAX Communication - Telephone 541003-53910 $120.00

001 11316 12/26/18 AT&T 9020-120218 904 599 9020 12/2-1/1/18 Communication - Telephone 541003-57205 $736.22

001 11317 12/26/18 COLOR WORKS NURSERY, INC 1850-00992 KALE (PIGEON PURPLE) Impr - Landscape 563023-53902 $52.50

001 11318 12/26/18 CRONIN ACE HARDWARE 535/2 KEY-120 PK Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $2.78

001 11318 12/26/18 CRONIN ACE HARDWARE 526/2 SUPPLIES FOR DOOR WIRING R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $75.78

001 11319 12/26/18 DANIEL P CALDARERA 121718 SPIN Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11320 12/26/18 DEFOREST E. BOWMAN 121718 KIDS FITNESS Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $35.00

001 11321 12/26/18 ERIN GUNIA CREEK-121418 REIMB FOR 12/14/18 Misc-Special Events 549052-57202 $700.00

001 11321 12/26/18 ERIN GUNIA 121418 REIMB FOR 12/14/18 COSTCO Travel and Per Diem 540001-57205 $23.65

001 11322 12/26/18 ERIN M LANDRY 121718 YOGA Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11323 12/26/18 FOSTER & COMPANY INC 895094 LOCK NUTS R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $958.99

001 11324 12/26/18 GARY PERNA GP121298 SECURITY FOR 12/10/18 Contracts-Roving Patrol 534099-52901 $105.00

001 11325 12/26/18 GLENDA AVILE'S MALEWICKI CREEK-121718 SENIOR YOGA Contracts-Outside Fitness 534111-57202 $140.00

001 11326 12/26/18 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 5192880620 RACQUETS, DEMO RAQUET COS - Start Up Inventory 552143-57206 $262.98

001 11326 12/26/18 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 5192880620 RACQUETS, DEMO RAQUET Teaching Supplies 551009-57206 $71.55

001 11326 12/26/18 HEAD PENN/ RACQUET SPORTS 5192878921 PENN CONTROL PLUS Teaching Supplies 551009-57206 $480.59

001 11327 12/26/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 0023279 MISC SUPPLIES FOR GATE REPAIR R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $60.60

001 11327 12/26/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2293410 UPHOLSTERY CLEANER R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $9.99

001 11327 12/26/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 5063092 MISC BUILDING SUPPLIES R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $33.91

001 11327 12/26/18 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 242031 CARPET CLEANER RENTAL R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $33.73

001 11328 12/26/18 HOPPING, GREEN & SAMS 104530 Monthly Meeting November 2018 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $1,500.00

001 11328 12/26/18 HOPPING, GREEN & SAMS 104529 General Counsel November 2018 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $2,775.50

001 11329 12/26/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 36740 Management Fees Dec 2018 ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,026.67

001 11329 12/26/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 36740 Management Fees Dec 2018 ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-57201 $1,820.00

001 11329 12/26/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 36740 Management Fees Dec 2018 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $50.76

001 11329 12/26/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 36740 Management Fees Dec 2018 Printing and Binding 547001-51301 $435.30

001 11329 12/26/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 36740 Management Fees Dec 2018 Office Supplies 551002-51301 $44.00

001 11329 12/26/18 INFRAMARK, LLC 36740 Management Fees Dec 2018 ProfServ-Special Assessment 531038-51301 $12,480.00

001 11330 12/26/18 JAMES JOHNSTON 121418 MUSIC FOR TREE LIGHTING Misc-Special Events 549052-57202 $250.00

33



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11331 12/26/18 JERMAINE ANTONIO SOLOMON 121718 PERSONAL TRAINING Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $202.50

001 11332 12/26/18 JOSIE LYNN CARLETON 121718 PILATES Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11333 12/26/18 LAMP SALES UNLIMITED, INC. 181229 LIGHT BULB R&M-Buildings 546012-57205 $42.48

001 11334 12/26/18 LAURA CORREA 121718 ZUMBA Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $210.00

001 11335 12/26/18 MADELIN LEPRI 121718 YOGA Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11336 12/26/18 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 79296216 DRILL BIT, CONCRETE SCREW Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $43.64

001 11336 12/26/18 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 80443142 MISC SUPPLIES R&M-Buildings 546012-53901 $89.63

001 11336 12/26/18 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 80558019 STAINLESS STEEL HEX NUT R&M-Pools 546074-57205 $15.28

001 11336 12/26/18 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 79048062 CONDUIT CONTROL CABLE R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $55.67

001 11336 12/26/18 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 80554228 MISC SUPPLIES FOR SIDEWALKS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $382.73

001 11336 12/26/18 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO. 81075069 BARREL AND SCREW, TORX L-KEY R&M-Buildings 546012-53901 $278.48

001 11337 12/26/18 MICHAEL KYPRISS CREEK-121918 TENNIS LESSONS Payroll-Commission 512040-57206 $525.00

001 11338 12/26/18 MIRANDA G BULGER 121718 HIIT,SPIN,BALLS AND BARRE Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $280.00

001 11339 12/26/18 MONICA FOURMAN 121718 EXTREME BURN Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $210.00

001 11340 12/26/18 MUNICIPAL CAPITAL CORP 900011118 CONTRACT PMT# 22 OF 36 Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-53902 $1,613.39

001 11340 12/26/18 MUNICIPAL CAPITAL CORP 900261118 CONTRACT PMT# 27 OF 36 Cap Outlay-Machinery and Equip 564001-53902 $1,534.83

001 11341 12/26/18 MY RECEPTIONIST OS17261212 VOICEMAIL 11/14-12/11/18 Communication - Telephone 541003-53910 $28.00

001 11342 12/26/18 NEIGHBORHOOD PUBLICATIONS MCCDD0598 12/18 WEBSITE MAINT Printing and Binding 547001-53910 $220.00

001 11342 12/26/18 NEIGHBORHOOD PUBLICATIONS MCCDD0598 12/18 WEBSITE MAINT Advertising 548001-57205 $110.00

001 11342 12/26/18 NEIGHBORHOOD PUBLICATIONS MCCDD0598 12/18 WEBSITE MAINT Advertising 548001-57206 $110.00

001 11343 12/26/18 NOELANI TAYLOR 121718 SPIN Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11344 12/26/18 NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT 41591294 PAD LOCK Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $24.98

001 11345 12/26/18 OFFICE DEPOT 242469034001 OFFICE SUPPLIES Office Supplies 551002-53910 $216.80

001 11345 12/26/18 OFFICE DEPOT 242818693001 OFFICE SUPPLIES Office Supplies 551002-57206 $123.90

001 11347 12/26/18 RAMCO PROTECTIVE SECURITY SOLUTIONS 23823 SECURITY THRU 12/21/18 Contracts-Security Services 534037-52901 $5,068.80

001 11348 12/26/18 RANDSTAD R24046711 TEMP HELP FOR 12/9/18 Payroll-Administrative 512009-53902 $125.68

001 11348 12/26/18 RANDSTAD R24046711 TEMP HELP FOR 12/9/18 ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53910 $381.31

001 11349 12/26/18 RENEE R YOOS 121718 FIT Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11350 12/26/18 RONALD C. CULLUM 121718 TAI CHI Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $70.00

001 11351 12/26/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC CM587125 INDLOCK RETURN R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 ($100.99)

001 11351 12/26/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 587533 MISC SUPPLIES FOR EQUIPMENT R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $32.95

001 11351 12/26/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 587805 BELT R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $27.00

001 11351 12/26/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 588101 BATTERY R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $157.67

001 11351 12/26/18 SANFORD & SON AUTO PARTS INC 588109 CHAIN OIL Op Supplies - Fuel, Oil 552030-53902 $21.96

001 11352 12/26/18 ST. AUGUSTINE POWER HOUSE 183413 RAPID MICRO CHAIN R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $131.16

001 11352 12/26/18 ST. AUGUSTINE POWER HOUSE 183414 BRAKE STRAP, TENSION SPRING R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $15.98

001 11353 12/26/18 ST. AUGUSTINE RECORD 0003121103-01 NOTICE OF MEETING 12/12/18 Legal Advertising 548002-51301 $94.24

001 11354 12/26/18 SUNBELT GATED ACCESS 70084 DECALS R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $1,023.40

001 11355 12/26/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC CM3799/3 RETURN POWERSTAKE 3 OUTLET R&M-General 546001-57206 ($19.99)

001 11355 12/26/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3812/3 TANK TOP, TOWELS Op Supplies - General 552001-53910 $76.35

001 11355 12/26/18 TURNER ACE ST. AUGUSTINE, INC 3847/3 FLOW THRU WASH BRUSH R&M-General 546001-57206 $23.99

001 11356 12/26/18 VINELLE MILLER CREEK-121518 REIMB FOR GIFT CARDS Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $168.87

001 11356 12/26/18 VINELLE MILLER CREEK-121518 REIMB FOR GIFT CARDS Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $168.87

001 11356 12/26/18 VINELLE MILLER CREEK-121518 REIMB FOR GIFT CARDS Misc-Employee Meals 549015-53902 $762.74

001 11356 12/26/18 VINELLE MILLER CREEK-121518 REIMB FOR GIFT CARDS Misc-Employee Meals 549015-57205 $1,262.74

34



Fund

No.

Check /

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 12/1/2018 to 12/31/2018

Community Development District

MARSHALL CREEK

001 11356 12/26/18 VINELLE MILLER CREEK-121518 REIMB FOR GIFT CARDS Misc-Employee Meals 549015-57206 $662.73

001 11357 12/26/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40871536 REAR CALIPER R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $107.02

001 11357 12/26/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40871864 HYDRALIC CYLINDER R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $215.85

001 11357 12/26/18 WESCO TURF SUPPLY INC. 40872112 TAILIGHT R&M-Equipment 546022-53902 $52.94

001 11358 12/26/18 ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY ST071669608003 BILLING PERIOD 12/1-12/31/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53902 $1,745.82

001 11358 12/26/18 ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY ST071669608003 BILLING PERIOD 12/1-12/31/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57205 $2,726.49

001 11358 12/26/18 ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY ST071669608003 BILLING PERIOD 12/1-12/31/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-57206 $856.43

001 11358 12/26/18 ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY ST071669608003 BILLING PERIOD 12/1-12/31/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-52901 $99.59

001 11358 12/26/18 ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY ST071669608003 BILLING PERIOD 12/1-12/31/18 Payroll-Benefits 512010-53901 $79.67

001 11359 12/26/18 ZUZANA PADUANO 121718 PERSONAL TRAINING Payroll-Shared Personnel 512011-53910 $162.00

001 11360 12/26/18 PROSSER 40995 Gen Engineering Svcs Nov 2018 ProfServ-Engineering 531013-51501 $1,976.17

001 DD265 12/16/18 COMCAST -ACH 112518-3316-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/29-12/28/18 Utility - Cable TV Billing 543003-57205 $152.68

001 DD265 12/16/18 COMCAST -ACH 112518-3316-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/29-12/28/18 Communication - Telephone 541003-57205 $286.55

001 DD269 12/18/18 COMCAST -ACH 112718-8689-ACH 8495743101258689 12/1-12/31/18 Utility - Cable TV Billing 543003-57205 $84.90

001 DD270 12/28/18 COMCAST -ACH 120718-9430 8495 74 310 1259430 12/11-1/10 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $339.31

001 DD271 12/23/18 COMCAST -ACH 120218-2201-ACH 8495 74 310 1272201 12/6-1/5/1 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $141.10

001 DD272 12/16/18 FPL 12.05.18-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/5-12/5/18 Electricity - Streetlighting 543013-53903 $6,035.90

001 DD272 12/16/18 FPL 12.05.18-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/5-12/5/18 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $68.57

001 DD273 12/16/18 FPL 12.05.18-ACH-2 SERVICE FOR 11/5-12/5/18 Electricity - Streetlighting 543013-53903 $11.89

001 DD274 12/18/18 FPL 12.18.18-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/7-12/7/18 Electricity - Streetlighting 543013-53903 $520.71

001 DD274 12/18/18 FPL 12.18.18-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/7-12/7/18 Utility - General 543001-57205 $2,544.62

001 DD274 12/18/18 FPL 12.18.18-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/7-12/7/18 Electricity - General 543006-57206 $1,377.15

001 DD274 12/18/18 FPL 12.18.18-ACH SERVICE FOR 11/7-12/7/18 R&M-Gate 546034-52901 $80.82

001 DD275 12/22/18 COMCAST -ACH 120118-4033 SERVIEC FOR 12/5-1/4/19 Utility - Cable TV Billing 543003-57206 $112.13

001 DD276 12/18/18 COMCAST -ACH 112718-9406-ACH SERVICE FOR 12/1-12/30/18 Utility - Cable TV Billing 543003-53902 $160.64

Fund Total $190,709.75

SERIES 2015 A CONSTRUCTION FUND - 303

303 11228 12/04/18 WILLIAMS' PLANT NURSERY 89462 REQ-69-WILLIAMS' PLANT NURSERY, INC. Construction in Progress 565001-53001 $741.25

Fund Total $741.25

Total Checks Paid $191,451.00

35


	Agenda Cover.pdf
	Board 1.16.19 mls.pdf
	AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING.pdf
	2ND.pdf
	Grau & Associates 
	Berger Toombs Elam Frank & Gaines 
	REGULAR MEETING.pdf
	3RD.pdf
	MCCDD 12.19.18  Audit Committee mlsjed.pdf
	MINUTES _2_.pdf
	MCCDD 12.19.18 mlsjed.pdf
	5TH .pdf
	5A.pdf
	Req 80_&_81.pdf
	5B.pdf
	MCCDD Pvmt Rehab 2019 Criteria Evaluation and Scoresheet.pdf
	Preferred Materials, Inc
	Duval Asphalt 
	6TH.pdf
	January_GM Report.pdf
	6A.pdf
	December Violation Log.pdf
	6B.pdf
	Palencia Security Report 12.17 to 12.31.pdf
	6C.pdf
	Palencia Traffic Pattern Chart 12.17.18 to 12.31.18.pdf
	6D.pdf
	Radar_Costa Del Sol.pdf
	Radar_Vale.pdf
	9TH.pdf
	9A.pdf
	Suggested Policy for Supervisor Authority.pdf
	9B.pdf
	Primary responsibilities of Board - Howard Entman.pdf
	10TH.pdf
	MCCDD December 2018 Financial Report 
	Insert from: "Grau_Auditing Services - Marshall Creek CDD.pdf"
	Firm Qualifications & Experience
	Partial List of Clients

	Staff Qualifications,
	Experience & Resumes
	Forty-five percent of engagement is
	performed by “Management”


	References
	Cost of Services
	Supplemental Information
	Grau’s Understanding of Work Product / Scope of Services:


